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Laxmi Bank is a young and forward looking Bank that
represents ‘traditional weds modern’; our values and
ethics are as strong as Nepal’s culture and tradition.
Our roots keep us grounded and our values bind us
with our stakeholders. Since our inception in 2002
we have dared to be different - adopting new ideas,
processes and technologies - helping Nepali banking
industry evolve along the way. In this journey of 10
years, we take pride in having established ourselves as
a responsible bank.
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The country’s economic situation
has not been favorable throughout
the review period. The year marked
challenges in managing liquidity,
reduced public confidence in
the financial sector due to few
financial institutions being declared
problematic and continued political
instability in the country. Despite the
adverse business environment, Laxmi
Bank has been successful in achieving
satisfactory growth in deposits,
maintaining quality of risk assets and
sustainable profits.
The Bank today operates through 30
branches and 33 ATMs. We provide
wide range of modern banking
services including Visa branded cards,
Internet Banking and Mobile Banking.
The Bank has established a subsidiary
- Laxmi Capital Markets Limited,
Pulchowk, Lalitpur for merchant
banking activities. The company has
been in operation since 16 January,
2011. Further, to drive forward our
micro finance business, the Bank
has established a subsidiary named
Laxmi Micro Finance Development
Bank Limited which is expected to
commence operations from the
current fiscal year after obtaining
operating license from Nepal Rastra
Bank. The Bank aims to expand its
operations further by leveraging on
these new ventures infrastructure.
The Bank will continue to expand
services through new branches,

merchant banking, micro finance and
new products. In order to support
and manage our growth, we have
recently established Risk Management
Committee that will help strengthen
control and risk management practices
across the Bank.
We have proposed 15.79% dividend
(10.79% cash dividend and 5% bonus
shares) to our shareholders. The Bank
will continue to enhance shareholders’
value and returns by balancing growth
and strengthening our risk management
capabilities.
I take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to Nepal Rastra Bank
and other regulatory bodies for their
guidance and encouragement. Similarly,
I thank our Shareholders for the trust and
belief you have placed on Laxmi Bank
and our customers for your patronage
and support. I extend my appreciation
and thank the staff and management
of the Bank for their hard work and
unwavering commitment towards
achieving our goals.

Thank You.
Rajendra Kumar Khetan
Chairman
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This Annual Report contains certain
forward-looking statements with respect
to Laxmi Bank’s future financial condition,
performance and businesses based on
current plans, estimates and projections.
Forward-looking statements are
statements that are not historical facts
and includes the Bank’s beliefs and
expectations. Forward-looking statements
use words like such as ‘aim’, ‘expect’,
‘anticipate’, ‘target’, ‘intend’, ‘plan’, ‘believe’,
‘seek’, ‘estimate’, ‘potential’, ‘reasonably
possible’ and variations of these words and
similar expressions.
By their nature, forward-looking
Statements involve risk and uncertainty
because they relate to future events or
circumstances and a number of factors
beyond Laxmi Bank’s control. In view of
this, readers are cautioned that a number
of factors could cause actual results to
differ, in some instances materially, from
those stated herein due to changes in
basic assumed conditions. Forwardlooking Statements speak only as of the
date they are made, and it should not
be assumed that they will be revised or
updated in the light of new information or
future events.
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Laxmi Bank was incorporated in April
2002 as the country’s 16th Commercial
Bank. In 2004 the Bank merged with
HISEF Finance Limited, a first generation
Finance Company, marking the first ever
corporate merger in Nepal.
Laxmi Bank has been registered as a
Category ‘A’ Financial Institution under
the “Banks and Financial Institutions Act”.
The Bank’s shares are listed and traded in
the Nepal Stock Exchange.
In a relatively short history the Bank has
grown its balance sheet to NPR 23 billion
serving a wide range of customers across
the country through 31 branches and
400 employees. The Bank has strongly
established itself as one of the best
managed Banks in the country and
ranks amongst the 10 top Financial
Institutions in terms of market share, size
of operations and profitability.
Laxmi Bank is recognized for high
standards of corporate governance, risk
management capabilities, innovative

financial solutions and technology
strength that help us deliver our services
in a convenient and efficient manner to
our customers.
Laxmi Bank is a responsible corporate
citizen and a green friendly company
actively contributing to the betterment
of our community and the planet.
Brand Laxmi Bank
The Brand “Laxmi Bank” continues to
gain appreciation and wider recognition
as a young, modern and technologically
advanced Bank that values the Nepali
tradition, roots and aspirations and
protects our customers’ wealth by
adopting prudent banking practices in a
chaotic business environment.
For us, banking is a long term proposition
and this approach is reflected in our
business, balance sheet management
and branding. Strong risk management
and corporate governance culture is
embraced across the organization – from
the Board to each and every employee.

35.56 %
general public

9.02 %
citizen investment trust

55.42 %
promoter group

OWNERSHIP
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Over the last 8 years of our operations, we
have given equal importance to building
and strengthening our operations,
systems, network and delivery channels
as we have to customer acquisition and
balance sheet growth. This approach has
helped us achieve a steady year-on-year
growth since our inception in 2002 without
compromising the high ethical and
business standards.

MISSION STATEMENT
We are committed to
excellence in delivery of the
entire gamut of financial
services in order to achieve
sound business growth
and maximize stakeholder
values by embracing
team spirit, progressive
technology and good
corporate governance.

Ownership
Laxmi Bank’s ownership structure consists of three broad
categories of shareholders:
• The Promoter Group, comprising of the country’s
leading and reputed business houses - 55.42%
• Citizen Investment Trust, a Government of Nepal
undertaking - 9.02%
• General Public, comprising of more than 10,000
shareholders - 35.56%
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What we do

Senior Business Managers

Our Business
Our business is based on our vision of
empowering our customers to help
them realize their financial goals and
aspirations through innovative financial
solutions delivered efficiently and
professionally.
In a competitive and crowded market,
we understand the need to give our
customers clear and real reasons to
trust their finances to us as protectors
of their hard earned wealth. We provide
reliable and responsive customer service
and invest in technology and ideas to
make banking convenient, cost effective
and simple for our customers. We
believe, that our customers choose to
patronize us with their business due to
our sustainable relationship approach
that makes Laxmi Bank a partner in their
growth and progress.

Bricks & Clicks
As thought leaders of electronic
banking in Nepal since 2002, Laxmi
Bank uses ‘bricks & clicks’ strategy to
reach out to new customers and new
markets. Our customers are now able
to touch us through 31 bricks & mortar
branches, 33 ATMs and 700 plus business
correspondents in addition to the
internet and mobile phones.
Despite unfavourable business
environment, we have continued to add

new branches to our network identifying
places of long term strategic and
commercial importance to business goals
and in line with the need to enhance
access to finance across the country.
While we promote remote service delivery
channels for standardized transactions,
our customers use our branches for
specialized services such as investments,
mortgages and small business services.
We operate through 11 branches inside
Kathmandu valley that are strategically
located and designed to cater to the
upwardly mobile urban population of
the metropolis. Among these, 3 branches
– Ekantakuna, Lagankhel and Pulchowk
are in Lalitpur district and the remaining
8 – Boudha, Sukedhara, Maharajgunj,
Bhatbhateni, New Baneshwor, Teku, New
Road and Hattisar in Kathmandu district.

Butwal and Taulihawa
• Pokhara hub – New Road and Pokhara
Industrial Estate
• Narayani hub – Narayanghat and
Parsa-Chitwan
• Birgunj hub – Birgunj and Janakpur
We will continue to expanding our
branch network in emerging semi-urban
and rural markets around the country in
order to grow our business by reaching
newer customers who have limited or no
access to modern banking services.

• Business Correspondents
More than 700 Business Correspondents
represent Laxmi Bank across the length
and breadth of the country mainly helping
us move international and domestic
remittances in remote areas where we do
not yet have a physical branch.

We use a hub-spoke model for branches
outside Kathmandu valley primarily
to achieve operational and business
efficiencies. We currently offer both
general and customized services to the
local populace from deposit accounts to
small and micro loans to bancassurance
from the following clusters:

Apart from paying out remittances, many
of these Business Correspondents have
also been linked to our mobile financial
services network which allows them
to act as pay-in and pay-out points for
our banking customers. A few of these
agents also facilitate administration of
our micro enterprise loans.

• Central hub – Banepa, Khadichour,
Charikot
• Eastern hub – Biratnagar, Itahari, Damak,
Dharan, Hile, Birtamod and Ilam
• Western hub – Nepalgunj, Bhairahawa,

We shall continue to develop, train and
enhance the capabilities and roles of our
Business Correspondents to upgrade
them to deliver more services for the
convenience of our customers.
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• ATM Network
We have continued to grow our ATM
footprint which is now spread over
14 cities - Kathmandu, Lalitpur, Pokhara,
Birgunj, Nepalgunj, Butwal, Itahari,
Dharan, Banepa, Taulihawa, Narayanghat,
Janakpur, Biratnagar and Bhairahawa.
Laxmi Bank ATMs are also located in a
number of major hospitals in Kathmandu
valley – Patan Hospital, Sahid Gangalal
Heart Center, Tilganga Eye Hospital and
Norvic International Hospital.
Laxmi Bank is a founding member of
the SCT network, an integrated shared
services network for ATMs and Pointof-Sale terminals managed through a
national switch. Apart from Laxmi Bank
ATMs, our customers have access to
over 800 additional ATMs and 1300 PoS
located around the country under the
SCT network.
Similarly, Laxmi Bank is a member of the
Visa International Network which gives
our card-holders access to more than
30,000 ATMs in Nepal and India via their
Laxmi Bank Visa cards.

• Laxmi iBank – complete
internet banking
Laxmi iBank is our flagship electronic
banking channel that has been helping
our customers manage their financial
transactions through the internet in
a safe and convenient manner since
2002. Laxmi iBank continues to enjoy
its position in the market as the most
complete and versatile internet banking
service. Laxmi iBank users enjoy true
24 hour banking from their home,
work place or the road, allowing them
to access their Laxmi Bank account for
various purposes such as – bill payments,
mobile phone air time top ups, fund
transfers to other accounts, balance
viewing, statement downloads and more.
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Laxmi iBank today is used extensively by
both personal account holders as well as
corporate/institutions.

• Mobile Money – complete
mobile banking
Laxmi Bank’s Mobile Money is the first
complete mobile banking solution in
the country. It started as a basic enquiry
service launched several years ago
that allowed customers to check their
account balances, foreign exchange rates
and to receive transaction alerts through
their mobile phones. In 2009, it evolved
further with the introduction of features
such as p2p fund transfers, bill payment,
airtime top up and remittance that
enabled real time financial transactions
to be carried out from a basic mobile
phone.
The Mobile Money system has been
developed and managed in-house and
has built-in multiple layers of security
that ensures safe and secure remote
banking for our customers.
While Mobile Money is an additive model
that caters mainly to the urban populace,
we plan to add more services aimed
at the rural mass and people who do
not have conventional bank accounts.
This transformational model based on
‘mobile wallets’ holds the potential
to bring the country’s 11 million and
increasing mobile phone users into
formal financial system and usher in a
new era in Nepalese financial history. A
mobile phone is a tool for empowerment
in more ways than one and Laxmi Bank
is keen to leverage on its ubiquity to
enhance access to formal finance for the
larger segment of our population who
remain un-banked.
Laxmi Bank is working with telecom
operators, development agencies and
private entrepreneurs to introduce a
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transformational based mobile banking
solution since 2009 and will launch
mobile wallets in 2012.

Corporate Banking
Corporate Banking is a principal revenue
driver for the Bank contributing around
60% of our total revenue. Corporate
Banking holds the largest portion of our
risk assets portfolio and our customer
base mostly includes the top end of the
market. Through a team of skilled and
experienced Relationship Managers,
Corporate Banking is able to offer the
entire gamut of financial services such
as project finance, working capitals,
trade finance and foreign exchange
management to our high end business
customers.
Corporate Banking aims to provide
customized financial solutions through
teams of Relationship Managers who
work on building, understanding and
deepening customer relationships. This
approach has always given us a distinct
advantage over our competitors and is
reflected in the profile of our competitors
and is reflected in the profile of our
corporate banking customers. We have
been successful both at retaining and
growing the wallet share of the existing
customer as well as building new
relationship with customers who fit our
risk appetite.
With the presence of Corporate Banking
Business Centers in 5 locations including
two inside Kathmandu Valley and in
Birgunj, Biratnagar and Bhairahawa, we
are able to service the business needs
of corporate customers all over Nepal.
During the year under review, Corporate
Banking achieved a number of major
‘wins’ by putting together as the lead
bank, syndicated loan arrangements for
borrowers in the areas of energy, tourism
and manufacturing.

Under an initiative called Corporate
Banking plus, we pursue non-traditional
businesses including off balance
sheet businesses such as high value
international and domestic bonding,
institutional cash management, cobranding activities and general financial
advisory services. These activities have
generated satisfactory revenue for the
Bank helping us diversify our revenue
sources. With growth of market size
and maturity, our revenue from these
activities is expected to increase.

Microfinance
Microfinance is a strong focus area for
Laxmi Bank both as a source of new
business opportunities as well as a
tool to empower micro entrepreneurs
in areas with relatively low access to
finance in line with our band vision.
Apart from wholesale loans through our
partner Microfinance Institutions, we
provide micro loans directly to the end
consumers through various programs
launched across the country. Laxmi
Bank’s microfinance business is an
independent profit center that comprises
of relationship managers who bring their
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experience and select branches who
manage the loans in their target areas.
At present we are involved in 4 distinct
microfinance activities.
•

We have joined hands with one of the
country’s largest private dairy processors to finance milk yielding livestock
in 5 districts – Kaski, Tanahun, Nawalparasi, Rupendehi and Chitwan. An
estimated 1,500 people have directly
benefited from this program.

• Using our Laxmi Bank Business Correspondents in the eastern part of
the country we have extended loans
to support various micro enterprises
in Jhapa district. These loans support
income generating activities such as
animal husbandry, foreign employment, groceries, eateries to name a few.

• In Mukundapur VDC of Nawalparasi
district we have tied up with the country’s largest brewery to extend loans
to finance purchase of livestock to
individuals who reside in and around
the vicinity of the plant. Till date
around 100 families have benefited
from this scheme which is partly
subsidized by the brewery as part of
their Corporate Social Responsibility
program.

EXCHANGE EARNING
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• Our Banepa branch extends loans to
farmers and entrepreneurs in Banepa,
Panauti, Nala, Nepalthok and Sanga.
These loans support various income
generating activities such as carpentry, pharmacy, agriculture, groceries
and are managed under the group
guarantee model.

As at preparing this Annual Report, Laxmi
Bank’s subsidiary -“Laxmi Microfinance
Development Bank” is awaiting operating
license from Nepal Rastra Bank to
commence business as a national level

16

microfinance institution. We expect this
approval within December 2011.

Treasury
Laxmi Bank’s Treasury functions as
a separate profit centre / business
unit. Treasury has moved beyond
its traditional role of managing and
monitoring the Bank’s projected cash
flow and overall asset-liability position
to a role where it is involved directly in
profit centered activities.
Treasury’s primary earnings is in the
form of exchange income which comes
from proactive management of foreign
exchange and this has become especially
relevant with the increasing inflow of
foreign currency through the workforce
remittance business and growth of trade
finance activities. Further Treasury also
manages structured investment deals
wherein it matches high value assets and
liabilities.
Growth in exchange earning has been
achieved in spite of intense competition in
remittance and trade business which has
continuously narrowed the forex spread.
Liquidity squeeze in the banking sector
during the fiscal year also resulted in
lower volumes of trade related activities.
The core treasury operations comprise
the balance sheet management function,
the client-related corporate markets
business and the proprietary trading
activity. Fiscal year 20010/11 saw high
volatility in global stock and commodity
markets with varying liquidity conditions,
global credit tightening and inflationary
concerns resulting in significant
movement in the market interest as
well as exchange rate at various points
in time. The principal responsibilities of
the Treasury included management of
liquidity and exposure to market risks.
Nepal Rastra Bank Treasury Bill markets
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also witnessed significant volatility in
yields. The balance sheet management
function continued to actively manage
the cash, bank balances, other
investments and government securities
portfolio held for compliance with
statutory reserves viz. Credit Deposit (CD)
Ratio, Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR), Statutory
Liquidity Ratio (SLR) and Liquid Assets
Ratio of the bank and to optimize the
yield on this portfolio, while maintaining
an appropriate portfolio duration given
the volatile interest rate environment.
The focus of our proprietary trading
operations was to maximize profits from
positions across key markets including
bonds, government securities, and
foreign exchange markets.
Further, Treasury leveraged its strong
relationships with other national and
international financial sector players to
provide a wide range of banking services
in addition to its liability products.

Other Functions
There are other functions often housed
within the treasury department,
including a process known as funds
transfer pricing (FTP). At a high-level,
the FTP process centrally manages the
funding requirements of the entire bank
in lieu of having each division/branch
fund its own balance sheet.
Additionally, the department also
assumes the responsibility for monitoring
the institution’s risk and capital levels
including the rules set forth in the Capital
Adequacy Framework under Basel II by
Nepal Rastra Bank.

Institutional Banking
Since 2009 Institutional Banking has been
working as an independent business unit
to service the growing and complex needs
of our Institutional clients comprising of
government and semi-government entities,
foreign counter parties, infrastructure
developers, insurance companies and other
private companies with specialized needs.

Bullion Trading
This fiscal year, Laxmi Bank Treasury added
bullion trading to the array of products
offered to the customers. In the span of
a short time, Laxmi Bank has become a
major player in the bullion trading market.
The bank has currently been trading in
physical gold bars and plans to launch
physical silver trading in the near future.

FX Forward and Derivatives

Laxmi Bank is a preferred banker for all
major public and private institutions
in the country based on our balance
sheet strength, quality of assets and
professional relationship management
approach. Institutional Banking provides
services such as financial advisory,
investments, trade finance, cash
management, bonding, and linkage to
other traditional banking businesses.

Laxmi Bank Treasury is a major
participant in the FX Forward market.
The Bank deals in FX Forward for balance
sheet management and market making
purposes, whereby the Bank offers
forward products to its customers,
enabling them to hedge their risks.

Laxmi Bank provides banking services for
Nepal’s largest commodity exchanges
providing a strong banking platform
for the individual investors and market
makers.

Dealing in FX Forward is carried out by
authorized dealers based on the purpose
of the transaction.

As a thought leader in the Nepalese retail
banking space, Laxmi Bank today offers one
of the widest range of personal financial

Retail Financial Services
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Laxmi Bank is a member bank of IFC’s Global
Trade Finance Program
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services and solutions. We promise and
deliver hi-tech and user friendly banking
experience to our retail customers
that comprise of a diversified range
of customers – salaried individuals,
women, youth, students, children,
migrant workers, non-residents and high
networth individuals.
• Branch Banking

Branch Banking is the major channel that
Distributes our retail financial services.
Our 31 and growing number of branches
help in customer acquisition, sales and
servicing.
Our branches offer a number of
innovative retail deposit schemes such as
“Green Savings”, “Super Woman Savings”,
“Maxi Invest” and “Reinvestment Deposit
Plan”. With growing competition for
retail liabilities we have continued to
invest in research and development of
new and innovative deposit schemes
complimented by excellence in our
customer service standards. These
initiatives help us to improve our
customer deposit mix in favor of retail
liabilities that now contribute more
than 50% of our local currency liabilities
portfolio.
In addition to deposits, our branches
also offer our customers a number of
life insurance solutions. Laxmi Bank is
an authorized agent of all major life
insurance companies in the country
and is also a 15% owner of Prime Life
Insurance Limited.

• Consumer Finance
Laxmi Bank is a key mortgage lender
in Kathmandu valley. We have a quality
portfolio comprising of loans extended
for purchase and / or construction of
residential homes, home improvements
and home equity loans.
We are also a major lender for Hyundai
private vehicles in the country through
our partnership with the authorized
distributor for Hyundai vehicles.

18

Laxmi Bank offers Green Loans for
purchase and installation of solar home
systems under our consumer finance
solutions.
We have recently started a new
consumer finance program – Loans
against Gold. This service is currently
available from the Retail Financial
Services Center in Lalitpurfor individuals
seeking quick liquidity against their gold
or gold ornaments.
• Cards

Laxmi Bank has been a member of Visa
International since 2007 and we currently
issue Classic Credit and Debit cards to
our customers. This association with Visa
gives our cardholders access to Visa’s
India-Nepal network of over 30,000 ATMs
and 400,000 merchant outlets.
The Bank recently added “Orange
International” to our suite of plastic
cards. The Orange International is a US
Dollar denominated prepaid travel card
that is accepted in the Visa International
network across the world.
In addition to Visa branded cards,
Laxmi Bank offers “DhanaLaxmi” – a
SCT branded ATM Card. SCT has gained
brand acceptance as the major shared
services card platform in Nepal and our
association with SCT gives our customers
access to 800 ATMs and more than 1300
Point of Sale outlets across Nepal at an
affordable cost.

• Bank 2.0
Bank 2.0 is the business unit that drives
and manages our electronic banking and
alternative service channels.
This unit was established in 2009 in
response to the growth in the overall
e-banking activities, customers and
products. Bank 2.0 is responsible
for research and development and
deployment of new products and
solutions in the e-banking domain. This
unit works with Laxmi Bank branches
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Kathmandu Branch Managers
for customer acquisition and servicing
as well as linking them with external
vendors and payment partners allowing
payments for goods and services to be
made through electronic channels such
as internet and mobile phones.
Laxmi Bank’s Bank 2.0 unit is recognized
as the industry leader and pioneers
of a number of innovative e-payment
solutions.
Laxmi Bank expects to launch Mobile
Wallets targeting the under-banked
segment of the population and has
joined the Hello Paisa shared access
mobile payment platform as a founding
partner bank. This Access to Finance
project will be commercially launched in
early 2012

• Laxmi Bank Express Money
Transfer
Laxmi Bank Express Money Transfer
(EMT) is the brand under which
Laxmi Bank serves the large number
of Nepalese migrant workers in the
Middle East, South East Asia, Europe
and the United States.With more than
2 million Nepalese employed in these

regions, workforce remittance has been
a mainstay of Nepal’s economy in the last
decade. Laxmi Bank has been a major
player in “bringing money home” since
we entered this space in 2007.
With strategic alliances with major
internationally active money transfer
companies, Laxmi Bank helps channel
more than USD 100M per year to Nepal
which are distributed through all
Laxmi Bank branches and 700 Business
Correspondents covering 65 districts.
EMT also facilitates domestic money
transfer services through the same
network of Business Correspondents. This
on-line platform offers a safe and secure
medium of sending and receiving money
within Nepal in locations where Laxmi
Bank does not yet have a branch.
“Manakamana Savings” is a customized
savings account for our workforce
remittance customers. This account can
be opened and operated by a Remitter
or a Beneficiary. This has helped the
previously under-banked customers
avail all basic financial services such as
savings, insurance and credit.
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• Small Business Financial
Services
Since 2002 we have been providing
total financial solutions including
financial advisory to Small Business
owners adding value to their business
and personal finances. Our experience
and expertise in serving this special
segment has helped us achieve
significant year on year growth riding
on our strategic network expansion in
emerging urban markets.
Small Business continues to be a
strong thrust area for us and we
expect to maintain quality and
growth through innovative financial
solutions, team of trained, dedicated
relationship managers and increase in
our footprints.
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This report reviews the Bank’s activities
during the financial year 2010/11 including
a commentary on the progresses,
achievements, challenges and plans for
the future and has been prepared in
conformity with the provisions of the
Company Act 2063, Banking and Financial
Institutions Act 2063 and applicable Nepal
Rastra Bank Directives.
The Directors present this report along
with the Balance Sheet and Profit and
Loss statements for the financial year that
ended on July 16, 2011.

1. Review of Bank’s Operation
for the Financial Year 2010/11
A. Key Financial Highlights
The Bank achieved growth of 1% in
Deposits, 4% in Risk Assets, 11% in the
Operating Profits and 15% increase in the
Net Profit in the FY 2010/11. The Bank
takes pride in achieving these growth
figures and is confident of maintaining
the growth momentum in the coming
years as well. Non Performing Assets level
of the Bank can be considered one of the
lowest in the Nepalese banking industry.
The major financial indicators for the
fiscal year are highlighted below:
Particular

Paid up capital
Net Worth
Deposits
Risk Assets
Investments
Operating Profit
Net Profit
Provision for Loan Loss

As in the previous years, the key financial
indicators continue to improve and the
Bank has been able to achieve growth
momentum in spite of the unfavorable
economic condition of the country. The
Bank gives high priority to Corporate
Governance and Risk Management
standards and has established itself as a
leading private commercial bank in Nepal.
The bank is recognized for its management
capabilities and technology driven services.

customer base and in generating retail
deposits, strengthening distribution
and delivery of workforce remittance
payments and expanding retail financial
services to new customers.

C. ATM Network
Our ATMs have been installed at 33
locations in 14 different cities. We will
continue to increase our ATM footprints
based on market demand.

B. Network & Representation

D. Remittances

The Bank is represented by 30 branches
as on December end 2011.

Remittance business of the Bank has
already expanded to Saudi Arabia,
UAE and Oman in the Middle East and
Malaysia in South East Asia. Apart from
these major corridors, the Bank is also
strengthening our business from the
USA, UK, Canada and European corridors.
The Bank has been working with 17
different international remittance partners
to source business and help our large
migrant workforce send home their hard
earned money in an efficient and safe
manner. The Bank continues to maintain
representatives and staffs abroad who are
responsible for business development and
client servicing. The Bank has successfully
established itself as a key player in this
sector supported by a growing network of
over 700 Payout Agents spread across 65
districts in Nepal.

During the review period, the Bank
added 5 new branches at Dharan
(Sunsari), Ekantakuna (Lalitpur), Charikot
(Dolkha), Khadichour (Sindhupalchowk
and Hile (Dhankuta).
Furthermore, two new branches at
Birtamod in Jhapa and Ilam have already
been operational in the current fiscal
year. The Bank has plans for further
expansion with new branches during the
current financial year.
Strategic expansions through branches
and remote delivery channels is expected
to help the Bank cater to a larger

16/7/2010

16/7/2011

% Change

1,613
1,912
18,082
14,736
4,101
542
327
176

1,613
2,032
18,299
15,389
3,101
602
375
189

-6%
1%
4%
-24%
11%
15%
7%
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E. Activities of the Bank’s Subsidiaries
The Bank’s merchant banking subsidiary,
Laxmi Capital Markets Limited has
started operations with head office at
Pulchowk, Lalitpur since 16 January,
2011. The company is licensed by Securities
Exchange Board of Nepal to carry out
activities related to portfolio management,
issue management, share underwriting
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and registrar to shares. The company
could not expand its services in the review
period due to the country’s economic
scenario with depressed capital market as
reflected by the NEPSE index. The company
expects to increase its business scope
and dimension and improve revenue in
the current financial year by leveraging
on the parent company’s brand and by
introducing new products and services.
The Bank will expand its micro finance
business through the proposed
subsidiary - Laxmi Micro Finance
Development Bank Limited. This
company is awaiting final regulatory
approvals and expects to commence
operations from the current fiscal year.

F. New Services
The Bank has introduced a number of
new financial products and solutions to
our customers during the year. These
include innovative deposit products, new
loan products and technology based
e-banking services.
The Bank has recently launched Loans
against Gold for Small Businesses and retail
customers. Further, the Bank has started
bullion trading as a new line of business
and also increased international bonding
business during the review period in order
to increase our non fund based revenues.
We will continue to expand these services
during the current fiscal year.

G. Others
1. The 10th AGM of the bank approved
change in registered office of the
Bank from Birgunj, Parsa to Hattisar,
Kathmandu and launch of Mutual Fund
through its subsidiary. Upon approval
from Nepal Rastra Bank, necessary
amendments have been made in the
Article and Memorandum of Association.
2. Construction of office complex in joint
ownership with three other companies on property behind the existing
Laxmi Complex building (existing
corporate office at Hattisar, Kathman-

du) has been completed and Bank has
occupied the new space to accommodate our growing operations.
3. Laxmi Bank has been sanctioned
a credit limit by the International
Finance Corporation (IFC) under the
Global Trade Finance Program (GTFP).
IFC’s GTFP extends and complements
the capacity of banks to deliver trade
financing by providing risk mitigation
in new or challenging markets where
trade lines may be constrained. IFC
sanctioned the limit to Laxmi Bank
after conducting on-site due diligence
covering the Bank’s asset quality, risk
management standards and operating
practices.

2. Impact of National and
International Events on the
Bank’s Business
The major economic indicators of Nepal
have not been very positive during the
FY 2010/11 with its effect in the banking
sector as well. The national economy
witnessed low economic growth,
increased trade deficit, double digit
inflation, liquidity squeeze in the banking
sector, decreased agriculture production,
unemployment, unstable capital market
and reduction in government’s foreign
currency reserves due to Balance of
Payment deficit. Further, the year saw
increase in petroleum and gold prices in
the international market. Considering
the above economic indicators and
political situation of the nation, the
overall external environment cannot
be considered favorable for business.
The economy was not able to gain the
expected momentum due to various
reasons such as political instability, weak
security situation, energy crisis and
weak distribution system. Competition
in the banking sector increased along
with scarce skilled human resource,
increased operating cost, limited
investment opportunities and unstable
foreign exchange and interest rates.
Notwithstanding these events, the
Bank was successful in maintaining the
momentum and achieving substantial
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growth in the Balance Sheet. We can
assume that the expected political
stability, peace and security for the
business sector will herald a new era not
only for the Banking industry but for the
entire nation in the days ahead.

3. Current year’s achievements and Plan of Action:
a. Financial highlights as on 08
December 2011 is presented below:
Figures in NPR Thousand

S.No.	Particular			

1.
2.
3.
4.

Deposits
Risk Assets
Investments
Operating Profit

19,107,597
16,054,421
2,548,642
253,753

b. The Board of Directors of the bank
have envisaged the following action
plan for the future progress of the
bank:
• Strengthen the Bank’s control and risk
management systems, a Board level
Risk Management Committee also has
been established for this purpose.
• Expand distribution network through
new branches, additional ATMs.
• Establish new remittance corridors and
expand agent network to strengthen
workforce remittance business.
• Introduce new deposit and other
modern products and services.
• Expand technology driven banking
services including mobile banking
network and ecosystems.
• Enhance Bullion trading business by
adding Silver as a new commodity.
• Work towards expansion of the services by leveraging on the infrastructure and products developed over the
past 9 years.
• Launch Mutual Fund as a depositary
through Laxmi Capital Markets Limited and increase investment in the
company as required.
• Expand micro finance business
through the subsidiary - Laxmi Micro
Finance Development Bank Limited
• Work as registrar to shares upon
operations of Central Depository
Services.
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4. Industrial and Professional
relations
The Bank takes great efforts to maintain
cordial professional relationship with
various national and international
governmental and non-governmental
entities and all stakeholders. With
increasing expansion of our operations
and network, the Bank has been
able to build cordial and transparent
relationships with all levels / sections of
the society.

Human Resources
In order to develop the skills and
quality of our workforce, we continue to
provide in-house and external trainings
and opportunities to participate in
seminars and workshops related to
their work areas to our staff members.
These programs provide them exposure
in national and international best
practices. During the review period
26 in-house training programs were
conducted where 205 Bank officials
participated, while 58 Bank officials
received external trainings. There are
currently 8 middle and senior level staff
that are undergoing a 2 year Leadership
Development Program conducted by
the Indian Institute of Management,
Ahmedabad; this training program has
been organized for the first time in the
Nepal banking sector. Our Performance
Management system continues to be
based on performance linked incentives
and benefits aimed at recognizing
and motivating deserving performers.
Our policy and systems ensures that
all employees undergo an Annual
Performance Appraisal that form the
basis for annual salary increments. The
Bank is proactive in recruiting skilled and
qualified manpower and takes measures
to ensure that we motive and retain our
skilled and committed workforce.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Bank recognizes its roles and
responsibility towards the society we
operate in and actively engages in
activities aimed at betterment of our
community. Among other such activities,

the Bank partnered with Britain Nepal
Medical Trust to support community
based child nutrition program in Pakadi
VDC of Kapilvastu during the review
period.
The Bank manages its CSR activities
through “Laxmi Nishwarth Pahal”
(Laxmi Cares), a non-profit organization
managed by Laxmi Bank family. Various
functions like movie shows and
mountain bike rally 2011 were organized
during the review period which raised
funds and proceeds were used for a
number of social causes including
installation of solar lights in the historic
Patan Durbar Square. We will continue to
contribute helping people in need and
in the development of sports, education
and health system in the country. We also
continued our “One Account, One Tree”
campaign this year with tree plantations
at a number of sites around the country.

5. Changes in the Board of
Directors
There has been no change in the
composition of the Board of directors
during the Fiscal Year 2010/11.

6. Main factors affecting the
business
Following are the main factors that will
affect the Bank’s business:
a. Possibility of unhealthy competition
and the risk of operating in such an
environment
b. Risk associated with volatile liquidity
conditions in the banking sector
c. Challenge to maintain quality assets in
deteriorating economic environment
d. Risk associated with changes in laws
and regulations
e. Risk due to volatility in the capital market
f. Risk due to low investment opportunities
g. Effects of volatility in the global financial
market

7. Comments and Justifications on any remarks on the
Audit Report
There are no significant remarks in the
Audit Report. Issue raised has already
been corrected.
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8. Recommendation for distribution of Dividend
As decided by the 117th Board Meeting
held on 9 December, 2011, we have
proposed 15.79% dividend in the form
of 10.79% Cash Dividend and 5% Bonus
Shares on the share capital as at the
Fiscal Year end 2010/11. We believe that
the proposed dividend will be approved
by the forthcoming AGM.

9. Forfeiture of Shares and
particulars thereof
No shares were forfeited during the year
under review.

10. Progress Report of the
Bank and Subsidiaries
The Bank’s progress in the financial year
2010/11 has already been highlighted
above. The Bank plans to launch Mutual
Fund through its subsidiary – Laxmi
Capital Market Limited soon. Further,
the Bank’s second subsidiary - Laxmi
Micro Finance Development Bank
Limited is expected to commence
operations during the running financial
year.

11. Main transactions of the
bank and its subsidiary company during the financial
year and important changes,
if any, therein
These have been disclosed above.

12. Details of information
made available to the Bank by
basic shareholders
No significant information has been
made available to the Bank by such
shareholders. We are aware that a few
financial institutions have issued notice
and auctioned the Bank’s shares that had
been pledged with them by our basic
shareholders during the financial year.

13. Details of Shares purchased by the Board Directors and office bearers of
the Bank
The Bank does not have any information
of any Director or Management
Committee member having transacted
in any shares of the Bank.

ANNUAL REPORT

2010 | 11

Traditional
weds
Modern

14. Details of contracts /
agreements entered by the
Bank with any directors or
any entities where any
Director or an immediate
family member of Directors
has personal interest

Ram Gautam and Mr. Shambhu Prasad
Acharya who are Directors of the Bank.
Ms. Chandnee Jha, Manager Internal
Audit, is an ex-officio member of the
Committee.

The Bank has not entered into any
contracts or agreements with such entities.

15. Details of buy back of
shares, if any
The Bank has not bought back any shares
till date.

16. Internal Control system
and details thereof
The Bank has an independent Internal
Audit department that reports directly
to the Audit Committee which is a Board
level Committee. Furthermore, the Bank
has separate units to manage operational
and credit risks and has adequate policies
and practices in place to manage our risks.
The Bank has also established a Board level
Risk Management Committee for oversight
and to further strengthen control and
risk management across our operations.
Furthermore, the Bank has also appointed a
Chief Risk Officer during the review period.

17. Management Expenses in
the last fiscal year
The breakdown of Management Expenses
in the financial year 2010/11 is as follows:
Particulars of 	Amount in
Management	NPR millions
Expenses

Staff Expenses
Office Overhead Expenses
Total Management Expenses

157
169
326

18. Details of members of the
Audit Committee, remenuration paid to them and report
of their activities
The Audit Committee constitutes of three
members, Mr. Ratan Sanghai, Mr. Rishi

The Audit Committee has been carrying
out its regular duties through the Internal
Audit department including audits of all
Branches and departments, introduction
and implementation of measures
and standards to make audits more
transparent and effective and reviewing
and addressing comments made by
Nepal Rastra Bank inspections.
During the review period the Audit
Committee met 12 times for which total
meeting fee allowance of NPR 204,000.00
was paid to the members. The ex-officio
member of the Committee is not entitled
to meeting fee allowance.

19. Details of receivables from
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, General Shareholders
or any company, firm or entity
associated with such individuals or their immediate family
members
There are no receivables from any such
individuals or entities.

20. Remuneration and allowance paid to the Board / Committee Members, Management
Executives
The Directors are not entitled to receive
salaries from the Bank. The Board
Meeting allowance for the Chairman and
Directors has been set at NPR 8,000.00
and NPR 6,000.00 respectively for each
meeting attended. In addition to this NPR
2,000.00 per month is reimbursed to all
Directors for mobile telephone expenses
and members are provided domestic air
ticket at the time of traveling to attend
a Board Meeting. Mr. Rajendra Khetan,
Chairman, has not claimed the amount
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for the mobile expenses reimbursement.
The remuneration paid to the Chief
Executive Officer during the financial year
was NPR 13,157,800. The Management
Executives received NPR 40,484,953.00 in
the year under the same heading.
Further, all staff members received
facilities as per the Human Resource
Policy of the Bank.
The Bank is aware of the appropriateness
of salary and benefits to the Chief
Executive and other management
executives. The Directors are confident
that the prevailing salary and benefits
to the executives is commensurate with
the existing financial position and future
growth plans and prospect of the Bank.

21. Unclaimed Dividends
As of the report date, NPR 102,860.00
worth of cash dividends declared in
financial year B.S. 2055/56 by HISEF
Finance Limited prior to merger with the
Bank remains unclaimed. Further, NPR
7,623,000.45 out of 13% cash dividend
declared in the fiscal year 2009/10 remains
unclaimed. Reports of unclaimed dividend
have been sent to Nepal Rastra Bank.

22. Details of fixed assets
purchase / sales as per the
requirement of Section 141
Detailed on schedule 4.14

23. Details of transactions
with related parties as per the
requirement of Section 175
Detailed on schedule 4.33 point number 13

24. Disclosure as per Rule 22
(1) of Securities Registration
and Issuance Regulation
1. Details relating to legal action
a. Case filed by or against the organized
institution during the fourth quarter
– There is no other major case except
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those arising in normal course of
banking business related to lending
and income tax.
b. Case relating to disobedience of
prevailing law or commission of
criminal offence filed by or against
the Promoter or Director of organized
intuition – No such information has
been received.
c. Case relating to financial crime filed
against any Promoter or Director – No
such information has been received.

2. Analysis of share transaction and progress of organized institution
a. Management view on share transaction of the organized institution at
securities market – Some effect of the
overall decrease in the stock index
has been observed in the institution’s
share as well in the past. However
since price and transaction of the
Bank’s shares are being determined at
Nepal Stock Exchange through open
share market operations, management view on this is neutral.
b. Maximum, minimum and last share
price of the organized institution
including total transaction number of
shares and days of transaction during
each quarter of the fiscal year.

Particulars

Maximum Price
Minimum Price
Last Price
Transaction volume
(number of shares)
Days of transaction

External
• Competition both on maintaining
lending yield and mobilizing deposits
at lower cost
• Rapidly deteriorating business environment
• Volatility in the Foreign Exchange
rates caused by changes in the global
economic conditions
• Unstable local socio-political situation
and increased power (electricity)
shortages
• Volatile liquidity conditions in the
banking industry

• Re-pricing of assets / liabilities and
increase in spread as per the market
conditions
• New products and services being introduced / capitalize on existing array
of services
• Strong risk management approaches /
portfolio management
• Identify new areas for investment
• Reinforcement of prudent banking
fundamentals.

4. Corporate Governance
Laxmi Bank is committed to high
standards of corporate governance,
business integrity and professionalism
For the Quarter
ending
14 January 2011

For the Quarter
ending
13 April 2011

For the Quarter
ending
16 July 2011

590
569
590

474
460
474

464
460
464

455
242
340

19,205
12

25,130
29

10,546
21

1,079,333
36

• Recruitment and retention of quality
manpower
• Increasing cost of operation

25. Other disclosures as required by the Company Act of
2063 B.S.
a) Amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of Association
• The Bank has put forward special
agenda for change in Issued and Paid
Up capital. We request for approval
of the proposed changes in Clause 5
section ‘b’ and ‘c’ of the Memorandum
of Association of the Bank.

b) Communication with Shareholders

Strategy

For the Quarter
ending
17 October 2010

3. Problems and Challenges
Internal

parameters, and is also adding value to
and protecting their investment.

in all our activities that assures all
stakeholders that the bank is being
managed ethically in compliance
with best practices and applicable
legislation and within predetermined risk

Laxmi Bank clearly recognizes the
importance of transparency and
accountability to all its stakeholders,
particularly its shareholders and
investors. In this respect, the Bank
releases annual reports, quarterly reports
and other such appropriate and relevant
information about the Bank's operations
using different channels on a timely
basis as well as through bank's website
www.laxmibank.com. Recognizing
the importance of the Annual General
Meetings as the appropriate forum
to discuss the various queries and
issues that are raised by individual
shareholders, the Bank encourages
all shareholders to participate in such
Annual General Meetings to review the
progress made by the Bank.
Lastly, we express our gratitude to
our valued customers, shareholders,
regulators and all other stakeholders for
their support, guidance and cooperation
for the progress of the Bank. Similarly
we thank the management team and
the members of staff for their efforts and
commitment that has resulted in the
success of the Bank.
Thank you.
Board of Directors
Date:
(Original version of this report is in Nepali and is
available on request in Corporate Office)
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CEO’s Perspective
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2010/11 was a mixed bag for the banking
industry. The liquidity crunch spilled over
to much of the year, compounded by a
number of financial institutions getting
into deeper trouble on account of poor
governance. Laxmi Bank however
remained a net lender to the inter-bank
market and always met or exceeded
regulatory liquidity levels.
The year closed on a positive note with
depositors coming bank into mainstream
banking and timely passage of the
national budget, which helped ease
liquidity related challenges. However,
asset bubble created in the real estate
market emerged as a major concern.
Investors were greedy, banks aggressive.
I truly hope that the industry has learnt
its lesson. Weak supervision and less than
pro-active regulation are no excuses for
banks letting their guard down. Laxmi
Bank’s exposure to risk on the real estate
sector is well within our balance sheet
strength. We are confident that any

possible setback will only be temporary
and the shareholder value will not
diminish.
Going into the second half of this fiscal
year, we now have a happy problem of
excess liquidity. But the lendable fund is
still not in abundance. More importantly,
business climate has not improved and
demand for credit from productive sectors
remains sluggish. Calls for reduction in
lending rates are both pre-mature and
misplaced. Market forces work very well
when it comes to loan pricing in Nepal.
We don’t believe that cost of borrowing
is keeping businesses from expanding.
There are numerous other exigencies like
crippling power shortage, difficult labour
market, equity blocked in real estate and
stock markets besides others. I believe it
will be far-fetched to expect banks and
the business community alone to repair
and salvage the economy.
There are encouraging signals on the
political front although the progress is
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far from adequate to restore confidence
among the economically active
population. Political transition is costing
the economy dearly. One can only hope
that the damage is arrested soon.
Amidst the learning from the past
and continued uncertainty about the
future, banking continues to be the
most transparent, best performing and
well-regulated sector of the economy.
Fundamentally strong banks will
be capable of withstanding cyclical
downturns.
Laxmi Bank will continue to leverage on
its time-tested governance structure.

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer
December 2011
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Highlights

• Net Profit up 14.57% to NPR 375 Mio
• Operating Profit up 11.27% to NPR 602 Mio
• Net Interest Income up 11.87% to NPR 729 Mio
• Fee & Other Income up 29.77% to NPR 200 Mio
• Deposits up 1.2% to NPR 18.29 Bio
• Loans and Advances up 4.3% to NPR 15.19 Bio
• Investments down 4.57% to NPR 3.04 Bio
• Network of branches increased to 30
• Total number of ATMs went up to 33
• NPA ratio as a percentage of Risk Assets of 0.9%
• Earnings per share of NPR 23.25
• Proposed Dividend of 15.79% (10.79% Cash Dividend and 5% Bonus Shares)
• Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 11.63% as against the minimum regulatory norm of 10%
Interest Income
Interest Expenditure

FY 2010/11
2,233,333
1,503,851

FY 2009/10
1,787,692
1,135,610

FY 2008/09
1,098,985
712,348

FY 2007/08
711,006
421,872

FY 2006/07
470,495
280,278

Net Interest Income

729,482

652,082

386,637

289,135

190,217

Non Interest Income
Fee Income
Exchange Earning
Other Income

67,796
63,128
69,515

46,867
47,563
60,032

29,635
51,005
70,917

20,943
46,637
25,482

15,157
20,905
15,710

Operating Income

929,920

806,544

538,194

382,197

241,989

Other Expenses
Employee Expenses
Overhead Expenses
Bad Debts Written off

157,662
169,294
-

122,406
142,169
7,698

86,407
112,973
3,367

63,995
83,849
8,222

48,785
63,547
4,309

Operating Profit

602,964

541,969

338,814

234,354

129,656

Non Operating Expenses
/ (Income)
Loan Loss Provision

(3,222)
12,838

3,041
25,122

12,008
34,255

15,632
21,700

12,674
14,046

Profit Before Tax
Profit After Tax

539,409
375,145

467,097
327,037

265,955
188,999

176,476
120,031

95,631
65,579
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FY 2005/06
319,253
190,590

FY 2004/05
214,132
118,439
		
128,664
95,694
		
		
15,039
14,136
9,426
5,770
9,789
7,597
		
162,917
123,197
		
		
37,640
29,934
50,123
37,122
1,124
1,092
		
75,154
55,049
		
9,695
9,559

9,089
5,503
		
50,636
36,779
35,385
26,465

FY 2003/04
124,046
63,177

FY 2002/03
49,787
20,096

60,869

29,692

11,299
6,076
1,026

4,262
4,534
896

79,271

39,383

19,198
35,730
-

14,394
17,322
-

24,343

7,667

55
9,750

6,518

13,084
10,450

1,034
1,034

ANNUAL REPORT

2010 | 11

Traditional
weds
Modern

338,814

The principal growth area in the
operating income has been non interest
income which has grown by 29.77%. Net
interest income grew by 11.87% during
the fiscal year. The yield on risk assets
and investments during the year stood
at 12.11% p.a. compared to 9.97% in
the previous year. The Bank was able to
maintain a healthy return despite the
competitive market pressures and at
the same time was able to maintain Non
Performing Assets level at .90% which
is one of the lowest in the industry. Cost
of fund stood at 8.09% in FY 2010/11
as compared to 6.42% in FY 2009/10.
The cost of fund can be considered
satisfactory amidst the liquidity concerns
in the banking sector during the fiscal
year which resulted in the interest rate
moving up rapidly. In spite of increasing
cost on Deposits and Borrowings, the
overall weighted average interest spread
increased to 4.02% from 3.55% in the
previous year.

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

234,354
2007/08

129,656
2006/07

75,154
2005/06

55,049

24,343
2003/04

2004/05

7,667
2002/03

541,969

602,964

Profit for the Year
In a difficult year for the financial
sector, the Bank has delivered a strong
performance. Profit for the year was in
line with the management’s expectations
which represents the bank’s continuing
steady growth. During the year,
operating profit grew by 14.57% as
compared to the previous financial year.

OPERATING PROFIT

15 %
fees & commission

78 %
net interest income

7%
exchange earning

539,409
375,145

In general there has been satisfactory
growth in all revenue streams. NII
continues to occupy a major share of
the income portfolio of the bank at 78%.
There has been a growth of 11.87%
in NII. CD ratio calculated as per NRB’s
definition as on the year-end was 80.21%,
reduced from 82.66% in the previous
year. This is against the regulatory
maximum limit of 85%.

2010/11

327,037
2009/10

265,955
188,999
2008/09

176,476
120,031

50,636
35,385
2005/06

2007/08

36,779
26,465
2004/05

95,631
65,579

13,084
10,450
2003/04

2006/07

1,034
1,034
2002/03

467,097

INCOME BREAKUP

Total exchange earning grew by 32.7%
amidst intense competition in remittance
and trade business which continuously

NET PROFIT BEFORE/AFTER TAX
profit before tax

profit after tax
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narrowed the forex spread. Liquidity
squeeze in the banking sector during the
fiscal year also resulted in lower volumes
of trade related activities.

48%
overhead expenses

Fee income (Commission & Discount)
contributed about 15% to the total
income. Loan Processing Fee has been
an important source of fee income as
was the case in previous year. Moreover,
trade related fees have also contributed
significantly to the growth in fee based
income during the financial year. This
year, the non-interest income totaled
22% of the total income. The bank
shall continue to make every effort to
increase this ratio in the coming years
by continuing to grow the remittance
business, improving trade finance
business and earnings made through
technology based services.

52 %
employee expenses

The Bank has made large investments
in infrastructure and systems geared
to handle significantly larger business
volumes. During the year there was an
increase in employee cost in absolute
terms mainly on account of regular
increment of salaries and allowances and
recruitment of 46 additional employees
to support network expansion and
business growth. The Bank had opened
five new branches during the year
under review and a few more are in the
pipeline. With increased footprint and
access to more markets, the bank expects
to achieve further economies of scale
therefore lower cost of operation and
improved profitability.

38.7%

37.05%

32.80%

35.16%

24.3%

28.16%

19.15%

21.60%

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

46.4%
21.4%
2006/07

53.9%
21.0%
2005/06

55.3%
22.3%
2004/05

69.3%
23.2%

2002/03

24.6%

Operating Expenses include Employee
Expenses and Overhead Cost. Operating
Expense to Operating Income is at
35.16%, increase by 2.36% compared to
the previous financial year.

2003/04

80.5%

EXPENSES BREAKUP

COST INCOME RATIO

interest income

Bank’s capital adequacy ratio in the fiscal
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interest expenditure

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

total non interest income to total income

2007/08

2006/07

2005/06

2004/05

Shareholder Ratios / Capital
Market

2003/04

2002/03

operating expenses to operating income

1,694

2009/10

2010/11

1,613

1,098
2008/09

2007/08

2006/07

730

913

2,244
2005/06

610

1,738
610
2004/05

858

2003/04

2002/03

550

330

5,035

5,486

9,194

10,162

11,661
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SHAREHOLDER EARNING

market capitalization (in 100 million)

570
340
2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

2006/07

MARKET PRICE PER SHARE (IN NPR)

25 %
call deposits

Profit after Tax in the review period has
been NPR 374 million as compared to
NPR 327 million in the previous year.
Earning per share of the bank in the year
under review was 23.25.

The bank has declared dividend of
15.79% (10.79% Cash Dividend and 5%
Bonus Shares) on the paid up capital
standing as on the FYE subject to
approval from the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
Out of the net profit generated in the
fiscal year, NPR 50 Mio has been set
aside as Debenture Redemption Fund.
The fund now totals to NPR 150 Mio.
Laxmi Bank Debenture 2072 of NPR 350
Mio with tenure of 7 years matures on
November 2015.

18 %
saving deposits
4%
current account

52%
fixed deposits

Paid-up capital of the bank stood at NPR
1.694 Bio including proposed bonus
shares of NPR 80.6 Mio.

Shareholders’ wealth decreased during
the year as the market capitalization fell
down from 9.19 billion to 5.48 billion due
to reduction in the share price. Overall
stock index showed a bearish trend
during the fiscal year. However, public
faith, low non-performing asset level
and continued profitability growth has
curtailed the reduction in share price.
Against the benchmark stock index
NEPSE, falling by 24% YOY, Laxmi Bank’s
share price YOY declined by 40.35%.
Market Price at the close of the fiscal year
stood at NPR 340 per share.

1,062

368
2005/06

285
2004/05

2003/04

2002/03

156

690

1,113

paid up capital ( in million)

year 2010/11 was 11.63%, as against
the mandatory requirement of 10%
indicating that the bank has adequate
capital fund with the potential to grow
further.

1%
margin deposits

Deposits
There has not been significant growth in
the deposit volumes during the financial
year. Deposit volume increased by
1.2% only as compared to the previous
year. Deposits comprise of non-interest

DEPOSITS MIX
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ASSET COMPOSITION

net fixed assets

cash & bank balance

14 %
equipment

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

2006/07

2005/06

2004/05

2003/04

2002/03

2010 | 11

other assets

earning assets

12 %
computers
10 %
leasehold premises

20 %
vehicles

6%
furniture

43 %
freehold premises

bearing current and margin deposits,
and interest bearing deposits in the
form of savings (various types), fixed
and call deposits. The bank is putting
efforts in the direction of soliciting
low cost deposits. There has been
a change in the composition of the
deposits since the last fiscal year.
Contribution of Fixed Deposit has
increased with liquidity crisis and
customers choosing long term deposit
products over savings products
due to considerable interest rate
difference. A number of initiatives at
introducing innovative schemes and
new products like Dhanalaxmi Bachat,
market linked investment products
and Retail Fixed Deposit Schemes have
helped in balancing the deposit mix.
Moreover, the bank has also been able
to diversify its deposit portfolio with
reduction in concentration on the large
depositors. Overall cost of fund of the
bank increased by 1.67% compared
to previous year due to upward
movement of the market interest rate.
Deposit concentration has also
improved with decreasing reliance on
few large institutional depositors.
Super Woman Savings, Green Savings
and Shakti Bachat have been very
popular and provide a strong base to
the bank’s deposit portfolio.

FIXED ASSETS (GROSS VALUE)

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

2006/07

2005/06

2004/05

2003/04

2002/03

Assets

INVESTMENT

bank placements shares, debentures & bonds treasury bills/government bonds
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The total asset of the bank has
increased by 2.9%. Major increase is
in cash and bank balances by 50.74%.
There has also been a net increase
in Fixed Assets by 24.79% with new
branches opened during the fiscal
year and ongoing expansion of the
corporate office building at Hattisar.
Other Assets primarily consists of
Deferred Expenses related to Software
Cost and other IT related costs and
Accrued Interest on Loans.
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Interest Bearing Assets

12 %
home loan/housing loan

26%
short term demand/
working capital loan

During the year, the gross earning assets
base of the bank has decreased by
2.9%. Loans & Advances grew by 3.1%
while Investments stood at NPR 3.04
Bio at the fiscal year end. Investments
includes portfolio in Treasury Bills /
Government Bonds, inter-bank lending
and investment in shares and bond of
institutions. Money at call reduced by
94.5% with outstanding of NPR 50 Mio.

6%
home equity loan
3%
auto loan

4%
import/trust
receipt loan
28 %
tern loan
term

21 %
overdraft

LOAN AND ADVANCES

Loans & Advances

18,300

15,389

Laxmi Bank follows a strategy of building
a diversified and low risk asset portfolio
and limiting or correcting concentrations
in particular sectors. Maximum exposure
concentrated on a single unit or group is
3.02% of total loan portfolio. Retail and
SME loans comprise about 23% of our
risk asset portfolio with the rest flowing
into corporate entities.
All credit exposures are classified as
per Nepal Rastra Bank’s guidelines
into performing and non-performing
assets. Non-performing assets are
further classified into sub standard,
doubtful and bad loans. Restructured
/ Rescheduled loan have also been
classified as Non-performing assets
this from the FY 2010/11. The bank has
made additional provisions (i.e., more
than required per Nepal Rastra Bank)
where it was considered necessary by
the management. Non-performing
loans aggregated 0.9% of the loan
portfolio as at the year-end (break
up: 0.73% restructured/ rescheduled
0.06% substandard, 0.02% doubtful
and 0.09% bad loans). The current level
of Non-performing asset is considered
to be one of the lowest in the industry
and replicates the credit standard of
the Bank. Total provision held as of the
date is 136.58% of the NPL indicating a
comfortable cushion. No loans have been
written off during the year; NPR 807K was
recovered from loan written off in earlier
years.

2010/11

18,183
14,736
2009/10

16,501
13,463

2007/08

2008/09

11,367
9,794

7,612
6,529
2006/07

4,474
4,280
2005/06

3,070
2,726
2004/05

2,001
1,751
2003/04

GROWTH OF RISK ASSETS & DEPOSITS & BORROWING

Debenture

deposits

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

risk assets

2007/08

2006/07

2005/06

2004/05

2003/04

total deposits & borrowings

2002/03

776

2002/03

762

personal loan 0% other 0% export packing credit loan 0%

LIABILITIES COMPOSITION %
capital & reserves

payables & other liabilities

borrowings
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
other

bills under collection

letter of credit

guruantees/bonds
acceptance and endorsement guarantees/bonds

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

2006/07

2005/06

2004/05

2003/04

2002/03

Contingent Liabilities
There has been an increase in the
total Contingent Liabilities by 63.33%
compared to previous year primarily due
to increase in the level of outstanding
guarantees. The total contingent
liabilities stood at NPR 4.97 billion. The
major contributors to the contingent
liabilities were Guarantees and Letter
of Credit which also contributed to
increased fee based income.
There has been increase in other
contingent liabilities relating to tax
assessment of previous years.

Key Financial Indicators
The following key ratios compared with the previous year(s) are indicatives of the financial status of the Bank
S.N	Particulars
1
Earning Per Share
		
		
Interest Income/Loans
& Advances and Investment
		

FY 2010-11
23.25

Comments
This indicates that Bank is earning Rs. 23.25 for each share
of Rs 100 invested by the shareholders. This ratio has
decreased compared to previous year (24.12) as a result
of increase in number of shares.

2

12.11%

Interest Expenses on Total
8.09%
Deposits & Borrowings		
		
			
		
4
Adequacy of Capital Fund
on Risk Weighted Assets
		
		
Core Capital
9.79%
Supplementary Capital
1.84%
Total Capital Fund
11.63%

The rate of return of 12.11% is considered to be good in the
current market scenario. The return was 9.97% in the previous year.

3

5
6

Liquidity (CRR)
Non-performing Credit/
Total Credit
		
7
Price to Earning Ratio

Interest Expenses to Total Deposit and Borrowings has
increased by 1.67% since the previous year. However, current interest spread of 		
4.02% is considered to be satisfactory in the current scenario.
Interest spread was 3.55% in the previous year.
This ratio judges the adequacy of capital fund with the risk
exposure of the bank, and are in compliance with NRB requirements.
Regulatory capital adequacy requirement is 10%.
Decreased by 1.3% since the previous year
Increase by 0.7% since the previous year
Decrease by 2.08% since the previous year

9.22%

This is in line with the norms of NRB requiring minimum 5.5% CRR.

0.90%

Increase from 0.12% in the previous year.
Reclassification of restructured / rescheduled loans as Non Performing Assets.
Decreased from 23.63 in the previous year due to
decrease in the market price of share.

14.62
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De-Risking Business
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The past few years saw the Nepali banking
and financial industry marred by a series
of compliance and governance issues.
The economic downturn and uncertain
market condition created by overall
socio-political environment added to the
woes of the industry. Amidst such adverse
business conditions, the strong drive for
profit alone prompted many banks and
FIs to overlook their own risk appetite.
Whilst there were several cases of bad
governance and/or poor compliance
which came to light, one which had most
effect on the banking industry was the
aggressive lending particularly in realty
sector.
The events of the past years have
affected majority of the banks though
severity may vary. The impact was more
severe on some FIs and development
banks. The immediate revenue
impact from such weaknesses may
be quantifiable but the subsequent
business impact from the reputational
loss can far exceed the actual financial
loss. This is a lesson that the banks have
learnt. As Nepal Rastra Bank intensified
regulatory checks and introduced more
stringent measures to enhance risk
governance, banks and FIs, in response,
have embarked upon upgrading and
empowering risk management in light
of the ongoing and emerging operating
challenges. The responsibility now is not
limited to bank management. The recent
regulations emphasize more proactive
and greater role of board of directors
in overseeing and controlling risks.

These developments can definitely be
considered positive.
Whilst these are good signs, the question
is, are we doing enough?
Since banking and financial service
activities are conducted within a
framework of rules imposed by
regulators and national/international
law, complying with such requirements
is not optional for banks. Nepal Rastra
Bank’s drive to enhance the compliance
requirement is imposing greater
restriction on banks’ competitiveness.
In addition, the dearth of qualified and
experienced resources in risk area in
the industry is limiting banks ability
to effectively assess new risk-return
opportunities. However, as a bank,
risk is our business and we profit from
managing it. The unpredictability
and inherent risks associated with the
banking industry make it vital for banks
to understand the risks we face and
have in place, sound and robust risk
management controls. We need capable
Risk Managers who not only understand
business and the risk being taken on
but can keep pace with rapidly evolving
complex products and systems.
Laxmi Bank is not isolated from the
uncertainties and challenges that the
overall industry is facing today. We have
also experienced stress, in good and
bad times, just as most banks have. We
however take pride in having managed
optimal balance of risk and return amidst

36

rapidly changing business and operating
environment. Careful alignment of our
risk management framework with Bank’s
business strategy worked well during
the period, helped by infrastructure and
processes which are adequately scalable
to accommodate unexpected market
volatility and growth. We consider the
skills and experience of our people as a
major contributor to the effectiveness
of our risk management processes and
of our ability to respond effectively to
adverse events. The Risk Management
approach as discussed in the subsequent
pages manifests that Laxmi Bank is truly
committed to upholding the highest risk
governance.
The journey ahead however is not easy
and presents us with challenges, as
much as the opportunities it offers. The
continued political instability, security,
power scarcity as well as realty sector
debt crisis will remain as key risk factors
affecting the economy in the short to
medium term. Good risk management
will therefore be crucial in maintaining
business growth amid a changing and
difficult environment. Striking a right
balance between risk and return will be
the biggest challenge for local banks and
financial institutions in 2012.

Sudesh Khaling
Chief Risk Officer
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Laxmi Bank is committed to high
standards of corporate governance,
business integrity and professionalism
in all our activities that assure all
stakeholders that the Bank is managed
ethically, in compliance with best
practices and applicable legislation and
within predetermined risk parameters.

Corporate Governance
Framework
All Directors and the staff members
including the Chief Executive Officer
have observed in spirit and in word
the Nepal Rastra Bank directives on
corporate governance. All Directors are
registered tax payers and none of them
have defaulted in payment of loans to
any financial institution.
Each staff member has signed a
comprehensive Code of Conduct and
an Oath of Secrecy.

• The Board
The Board has collective responsibility
for providing leadership and control of
the Bank by directing and supervising
the Bank’s affairs. As the apex decisionmaking forum for the Bank it is
accountable to the shareholders for
financial and operational performance.
The Board is in complete control of
the Bank’s affairs and is fully cognizant
with the Bank’s obligations towards
the shareholders, depositors and other
stakeholders. Whilst the day-to-day
management of the bank is delegated
to the management team, the Board
typically involves itself in making
decisions relating to:

- Long term strategies and plans
- Annual plans and performance targets
- Acquisitions and disposals of assets
above predetermined thresholds
- Large value loans above the Chief
Executive Officer’s discretion
- Substantial changes in balance sheet
management policy; and
- Other Policy matters.
The Board places high priority on internal
controls. It constantly reviews and
updates the Bank’s corporate governance
structures and culture to ensure that
it meets the high standards that have
been set since our inception in 2002. It
is the Board’s aim to exceed mandatory
requirements in terms of the extent and
timeliness of corporate disclosures and
financial reporting.

• Roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
The roles of the Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated, with a clear division of
responsibilities.
The Chairman is an independent nonexecutive Director who is responsible
for the leadership and management of
the Board with active engagement and
contribution from all Directors to discharge
its regulatory and fiduciary responsibilities
fully and in an effective manner. The
incumbent Chairman brings in tremendous
value to the Bank by virtue of his leadership
position in the business community. He is a
very well-known public figure.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for all businesses and operation of the Bank
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and acts in accordance with the authorities
and discretions delegated by the Board.

• Board Composition
All members of the Board are in capacity
of non-executive directors and advisors.
The current Board comprises members
who come from a variety of backgrounds,
with a diverse range of business, banking
and professional experience. The Bank
benefits from having such Directors who
are able to bring to the table their skills,
knowledge and independent judgment.
The current Board comprises of the
Chairman, 7 Directors and an Advisor.
The promoter group is represented by
4 Directors. The public is represented
by 2 Directors who were elected by the
Annual General Meeting that was held
on 3 December 2008. The tenure of these
Directors is 4 years from the date of
appointment.
The Citizens Investment Trust nominates
1 Director to the Board.
A Professional Director has been
appointed to the Board with effect from
17 July 2006 as per the provisions made
in the Bank & Financial Institutions Act.
Brief introduction of the Directors have
been presented in this report on Page 7.

Functioning of the Board
• The Process
Board meetings are held once a month
on an average, where reports on
the progress of the Bank’s business
operations and deliberations of Board
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Committees are tabled for review by
members of the Board. At these Board
meetings, the members of the Board
also evaluate business propositions
and corporate proposals that are to
be approved by the Board owing to
statutory requirements, or possible
significant financial impact on the Bank.
The Company Secretary provides written
notice and a comprehensive package of
relevant information to all Directors prior to
each board meeting in order to ensure that
they are informed in advance of the issues
to be considered. The agenda for every
Board meeting, together with management
reports, proposal documents are furnished
to all Directors for their perusal in advance
of the Board meeting date, so that the
Directors have ample time to review matters
to be deliberated at the Board meeting and
to facilitate informed decision making.
The Chief Executive Officer and the
Company Secretary make themselves
available for the Board Meetings where
they offer their expertise, professional
opinion and advice.
Senior executives are invited to attend Board
meetings as and when required to offer the
Board their professional opinion and advice,
and clarify issues that may be raised.
All Directors have access to the Company
Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
that the Board procedures and applicable
rules and regulations are complied with.
The Directors are regularly updated and
advised by the Company Secretary on new
statutory as well as regulatory requirements
relating to the duties and responsibilities of
Directors, including policy guidelines issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank.
Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors.

• Responsibilities of Directors
The Board is collectively responsible
for ensuring that the Bank’s activities,
performance and overall strategic
direction in order to deliver long-term
value for the stakeholders.
The Bank arranges induction programs
for newly appointed Directors. All

Directors have full and timely access to
all relevant information about the Bank
so that they can discharge their duties
and responsibilities as Directors. All
Directors have access to independent
professional advice on Bank-related
matters where appropriate.

• Risk Management Committee
• Human Resources Management
Committee

All Directors keep abreast of the conduct,
business activities and development of
the Bank and satisfy themselves on the
integrity of financial and non-financial
information, controls and systems within
the Bank. The Directors review the
performance of management in meeting
agreed goals and objectives and monitor
the reporting of performance.

• Audit Committee

All key policy guidelines have been
approved by the Board and put into
practice for day-to-day functioning of the
Bank. These policy guidelines are subjected
to regular reviews on an on-going basis to
account for changing environment.
All the Directors have signed and
submitted self declaration on corporate
governance as per Nepal Rastra Bank
Directive No.6 and Company Act / Bank
and Financial Institution Act.

• Board Members Attendance
The Board met 12 times during the
financial year 2010/11.
Name

Number of Number of
meetings eligible meetings
to attend during attended
financial year
2010/11
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Khetan
12
10
Mr. Bhola Babu Adhikari
12
9
Mr. Chandra Prakash Khetan
12
7
Mr. Gopi Krishna Sikaria
12
9
Mr. Jiban Raj Kandel
12
10
Mr. Ratan Lal Sanghai
12
12
Mr. Rishi Ram Gautam
12
11
Mr. Sambhu Prasad Acharya
12
10

• Management Functions &
Board Committees
In line with Directive number 6 of the
Nepal Rastra Bank Unified Directive
2068 that was issued on July 14, 2011
the oversight functions of the Board are
required to be performed through the
following 3 committees:
• Audit Committee
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Each Committee has specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly
with their authority and duties.

The directives of Nepal Rastra Bank and
the relevant Company Act govern the
formation and functioning of a board
level Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee meets regularly
with senior members of the Internal
Audit department, Chief Risk Officer and
external Auditors to consider the Bank’s
financial reporting, the nature and scope
of audit reviews and the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control and
compliance. It is also responsible for the
appointment, reappointment, removal
and remuneration of external Auditors.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board,
drawing the Board’s attention to salient
points that the Board should be aware of,
identifying any matters in respect of which
it considers that action or improvement
is needed and making relevant
recommendations. The Committee has
unrestricted access to members of the
management, staff and any records /
information etc. that it reasonably may
require to carry out its responsibilities.

• Composition of Audit Committee
The Committee currently comprises of 3
non-executive directors:
• Mr. Ratan Lal Sanghai, Chairman
• Mr. Rishi Ram Gautam, Member
• Mr. Sambhu Acharya, Member
Senior executive members including
the Chief Executive Officer attend Audit
Committee meetings on need basis.
The Audit Committee met 12 times
during the year.
Name

Number of meetings

Number of

eligible to attend

meetings

during financial year

attended

2010/11
Mr. Ratan Lal Sanghai

12

12

Mr. Rishi Ram Gautam

12

11

Mr. Sambhu Acharya

12

11
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• Risk Management Committee

• Remuneration Committee

The Risk Management Committee has
recently been formed as per the new
regulatory requirement and currently
consists of the following representatives
from the Board:
• Mr. Chandra Prakash Khetan
• Mr. Gopi Sikaria
• Mr. Jiban Raj Kandel

This Committee was responsible for
recommending appointments and
remunerations of the Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary and other
senior executives with direct or indirect
reporting line to the Board. Furthermore the
Remuneration Committee also conducted
annual performance reviews of such
executives and made recommendations
to the Board on specific adjustments in
remuneration and/or reward that reflect
their respective contributions for the year.
Additionally the Committee was also
responsible for reviewing meeting fees and
reimbursements related to the Board and
Board level committees.

The committee also includes the Chief
Risk Officer and other senior executives
who are in risk management roles.
This Committee has been given the
responsibility to take collective risk
management decisions to safeguard the
interests of the Bank and all stakeholders.
The Committee will also ensure that
relevant stakeholders, primarily the
Board are properly informed about the
risks in functioning of the Bank and
provide stakeholders the opportunity
to request and challenge information
relating to such risks. This Committee
will broadly cover risks associated with:
Credit, Market, Liquidity, Operational and
Reputational working under the terms of
reference determined by the Board.

This Committee comprised of 2 nonexecutive directors and met 2 times
during the year:
Mr. Ratan Lal Sanghai
Member
Mr. Chandra Prakash Khetan Member
The responsibilities of this committee
have been partially transferred to
the newly formed Human Resources
Committee.

• New Business Initiative
Committee
The New Business Initiative Committee
was formed to identify new investment
opportunities for the Bank and was
involved in providing guidance and
support in establishing the Bank’s
merchant banking and microfinance
subsidiaries. The committee comprised
of 2 non executive directors and met 4
times during the year:
Mr. Bhola Babu Adhikari
Mr. Jiban Raj Kandel		

Member
Member

Remuneration of Directors
Remunerations of the Board and Board
committee members are approved by
the Annual General Meetings taking
into consideration industry practices
as well as time commitment of the. The
Directors’ remuneration is currently
restricted to meeting allowances and
fixed monthly reimbursement for
telephone expenses. Additionally, the
Bank also reimburses travel expenses
(domestic airfare) for Directors who
are required to travel from outside
Kathmandu valley to attend Board
meetings.

• Human Resources Committee

• Credit Committee

The Board has recently approved
the terms of reference of the Human
Resources Management Committee
that will be formed as per the new
regulatory requirement. This Committee
will have the responsibility to review
recommendations made by the
management in respect to revisions to
the Human Resources Policy Guide of the
Bank including compensation structure
and benefit schemes. The Committee will
also ensure that relevant stakeholders,
primarily the Board are properly
informed about the overall human
resource strategy of the Bank.

The Credit Committee played a proactive
role in providing guidance to the
management team in creating a high
quality credit portfolio. The Committee
was involved in reviewing and deliberating
strategic and policy related aspects of the
Bank’s credit management process. The
responsibilities of this committee have
now been partially transferred to the newly
formed Risk Management Committee.

The present scale of Director’s meeting
fee is outlined below:

The Credit Committee comprised of
2 non-executive Directors, the Chief
Executive Officer and Head Credit. Other
executives were invited on need basis to
share their expertise and provide advice
to the Committee. The Committee met 9
times during the year:

Details of remuneration and
reimbursement paid by the Bank to the
Board and Board Committee members
during 2010/11 is as follows:

• Other Committees Active
During the Review Period
During the financial year 2010/11, there
were 3 other Board level committees
which are now defunct in line with
Directive number 6 of the Nepal Rastra
Bank Unified Directive 2068. Details
of their activity during the year under
review are provided in this section.

Member

Number of
meetings eligible
to attend during
financial year
2010/11

Number of
meetings
attended

Mr. Chandra Prakash Khetan

9

8

Mr. Gopi Krishna Sikaria

9

6
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• Chairman
NPR 8,000.00 per meeting
• Directors
NPR 6,000.00 per meeting
Meeting fees are not paid to the
Company Secretary and Executives.

Board Meeting

NPR 488,000.00

Audit Committee Meeting

NPR 204,000.00

Credit Committee Meeting

NPR 84,000.00

Remuneration Committee Meeting

NPR 24,000.00

Mobile Telephone Reimbursement

NPR 168,000.00

Travel Reimbursement
Other Miscellaneous*
Total

NPR 38,165.00
NPR 19,343.30		
NPR 1,025,508.3

* expenses related to refreshments for
Board meetings etc.
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Accountability & Audit
• Financial Reporting
The Board aims at making a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of
the Bank’s performance, position and
prospects. An annual operating plan is
reviewed and approved by the Board on
yearly basis. Reports of monthly financial
results, business performance and
variances against the approved annual
operating plan are submitted to the
Board at each Board meeting for regular
monitoring. Strategic planning covering
three to five years is also discussed,
deliberated and updated by the Board.
The annual and quarterly results of the
Bank are announced in a timely manner
within the limits prescribed by the law.

• Going Concern
The Directors satisfied that there are
no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cause
significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern and
confirms that the Bank has adequate
resources to continue in business.
Accordingly, the Directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Bank on
the basis of a going-concern concern. A
full Directors’ Report is presented in this
report.

• Statement on Internal Control
The Bank’s internal control system
comprises a well established
organizational structure and
comprehensive policies and standards.
The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for maintaining a
sound system of internal control to
safeguard the shareholders interest
and the Bank’s assets. The Board is
committed to maintaining an adequate
control structure and environment for
proper conduct of its business. The
Board understands and appreciate
that following are the principal
responsibilities of the Board on risk and
internal control:
i. timely identification of the principal
risks,
ii. ensure the implementation of appropriate control system to manage those
risks, and

iii. periodic review of the adequacy and
integrity of internal control system of
the Bank
The system of internal control covers,
inter alia, adherence to bank’s policies,
safeguarding of the bank’s assets,
prevention and detection of fraud and
errors, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and timely preparation
of reliable financial statements. The system
provides reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud and it is acknowledged that systems
and procedures are designed to mitigate
and manage rather than completely
eliminate risks.
The Board is committed in improving
the effectiveness of internal control, risk
management and governance process.

• Systems and Procedures
The Bank has an internal control system
with well defined responsibilities at each
level which sets the tone of an emerging
successful bank. The control environment
has provided discipline and structure to
different facets of the bank’s activities.
Recognizing the significance of control
environment the Bank has instituted the
following:
• Areas of responsibilities for all business
and operational units are clearly defined
to ensure effective checks and balances.
• General Authority Schedule (GAS)
sets the limit for operating and
capital expenditure for each level of
management and is regularly reviewed
and revised to ensure its effectiveness.
• Business and functional units are
responsible for the assessment of
individual types of risk arising under their
areas of responsibility, the management
of the risks in accordance with risk
management procedures and reporting
on risk management.
• Job descriptions defining each task and
competency required at all critical levels
have been formalized. Skill, knowledge
and abilities of the staff are continuously
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enhanced through training and
development activities, which enable
them to operate and monitor the system
of internal control effectively.
• Budgetary System is used to measure
and monitor the Bank’s performance
against the strategic plans approved by
the Board, covering all key financial and
operating indicators. A detailed budgeting
process is established encompassing all
key operating activities to prepare budgets,
which are discussed and approved by
the Board. Effective monitoring system is
in place to compare actual performance
against approved budget and to
investigate significant variances.
• Fully computerized system allows
management to focus timely on the
areas of concerns through the system
itself. Checks have been in-built in the
system itself for the integrity of the data
and consequently the MIS. Relevant risk
management reports are reviewed on
periodic basis by concerned executives
or committees for review and action as
appropriate.
• Review of internal control is carried out
on regular basis by the Internal Audit
department which is independent of the
management. Results of such reviews are
directly reported to the Audit Committee.
• Risk units such as Credit Risk Control and
Compliance & Assurance operate separately
and independent from the Internal Audit for
effective assessment and management of
risks and ensuring appropriate levels of due
diligence at all times.
• Internal control weaknesses identified
by audits, review and inspections are
accorded top priority and addressed
within prescribed rectification time lines.
• Disaster Recovery Plan and Business
Continuity Plans are in place to ensure
minimum disruption in business and
services in the event of a major disaster
or incident that would impact our ability
to operate under normal circumstances.
• Employees are encouraged to speak
up against unethical or illegal issues to
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the concerned authorities. The Bank’s
“whistle blowing” provides individuals
to raise such issues through structured
reporting procedure that assures
anonymity.
All systems and procedures have also
been designed to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules and
regulations.
More detailed discussions on the policies
and procedures for management of each
of the major types of risk the Bank faces,
including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks, are included in the Risk
Management section of this report.

• Internal Audit
The Board has approved a charter (Audit
Policy) on the Bank’s Internal Audit.
The charter isolates and insulates the
Internal Audit Department from the
control or influence of the Executive
Management and also frees staff within
the internal audit unit from operational
and management responsibility that
could impair their ability to make
independent reviews of aspects of the
bank’s operations. Under the charter, the
Internal Auditor reports directly to the
Audit Committee which is chaired by a
non-executive Director.
Internal audit plays an important role in
the Bank’s internal control framework.
It monitors the effectiveness of internal
control procedures and compliance
with policies and standards across all
business and operational units. The work
of the internal audit function is focused
on areas of greatest risk to the Bank as
determined by risk assessment.
The Internal Audit Department is an
independent, objective assurance and
consulting unit designed to add value
and improve an organization’s operations
under the direct supervision of the Audit
Committee. It has been designed to help
the Bank and accomplish its objectives
by bringing a systematic, disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management,
control, and governance processes.

Internal Audit Department carries out the
following key functions:
•
• review of accounting & internal control systems
• examination of financial and operating information (including detailed
testing of transactions & balances)
• review of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness of operations
• review of compliance with external
and internal requirements (e.g. laws
and management policies)
• special investigations
• provide independent advice to the
Audit Committee
• advise management on operational
efficiency and other risk management
issues

•

•

•

• Statutory Auditors
The Bank has appointed Shashi Satyal
& Co., Chartered Accountants as the
Statutory Auditors for the year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment, removal
and remuneration of the external auditor.
The external auditor’s independence
and objectivities are also reviewed and
monitored by the Audit Committee.

•

•

Total fees charged by the Bank’s statutory
auditor for audit services in 2010/11 is
NPR 444,000.00 plus applicable taxes.

•

• Audit Committee

•

The Audit Committee assists the
Board in meeting its responsibilities
for ensuring an effective system of
internal control and compliance, and in
meeting its external financial reporting
obligations. The Committee ensures that
effective control and risk management
mechanisms are in place across the
bank’s operations and that the bank’s
regulatory compliance obligations are
met at all times.
The Audit Committee performs the
following functions:
• provide assistance to the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities relating to
accounting policies, internal control,
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•

financial reporting and business ethics
policies,
oversee the Bank’s financial reporting
process and ensure correct, adequate
and credible disclosure of financial
information,
review with the Management
quarterly financial statements with
special emphasis on the accounting
policies and practices, compliance of
accounting standards and other legal
requirements concerning financial
statements,
review Internal Audit’s basis for assessment and risk rating of the proposed
areas of audit and make periodic
review of the Bank’s audit policy,
review and approve annual audit
plan with consideration of scope and
coverage over the activities of the
respective business areas of the Bank,
review the findings of the internal
audit department into matters of
fraud & irregularities (if any) or failure
of internal control system and suggest
strengthening of control mechanism
and monitor the agreed follow up actions,
interact with statutory auditors before
the finalization of the annual accounts
and audit report, focusing on the
changes in accounting policies and
practices,
review the draft Management Letter
(for any qualifications therein) and
the management response to such
qualifications,
review with the management the
performance of statutory and internal
auditors and adequacy of the internal
control system,
recommend to the Board and to the
Shareholders a suitable accounting
firm to Act as the Bank’s Statutory
Auditors.

The Committee uses bank’s audit
policy, Nepal Rastra Bank directives,
Basel Committee stipulations and
other international best practices as
the parameters for its own functioning
and is fully committed to inculcating a
compliance-oriented culture.

• Chief Risk Officer
In line with the Bank’s continuous efforts
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to enhance risk management standards
and practices a Chief Risk Officer was
appointed in August 2011. The Chief
Risk Officer is a senior executive with
responsibility for all risk functions,
strategies, processes and systems across
the Bank and subsidiaries.
The Chief Risk Officer also co-ordinates
the activities of the Risk Management
Committee.

Communication with Shareholders
With over 10,000 institutional and
individual shareholders Laxmi
Bank attaches great importance to
communications with shareholders
and uses different means to keep our
shareholders fully informed through
extensive disclosure of appropriate and
relevant information.

Laxmi Bank’s website: www.laxmibank.
com contains an investor relations
section which offers our shareholders
timely access to relevant business
information.

Human Resources
The human resources policy and
practices of the Bank is designed to
attract and retain people of the highest
caliber and to motivate them to excel in
their careers, as well as uphold the Bank’s
brand image. A critical element of the
Bank’s human resource management is a
transparent performance management
and appraisal system that ensures that
our employees across all levels have
the necessary skills and experience to
perform their functions effectively in the
best interest of the Bank and that there
are sufficient parameters to monitor and
evaluate their performance.

The Annual Report is one of the main
channels of communication with
shareholders and investors. The contents
and disclosures made in these reports
are well beyond the minimum legal and
regulatory requirements. The Bank’s
financial statements are in full compliance
with Nepal Rastra Bank’s guidelines and
Nepal Accounting Standard.

• Remuneration

The Annual General Meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. It is the Bank’s desire to
make constructive use of such meetings.
The Chairman, Directors, Chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Chief Executive
Officer are available at the Annual General
Meeting along with the external auditors to
address queries and provide clarifications
to issues raised by the shareholders. All
resolutions are put to the house for vote to
ensure that shareholders views are reflected.

The Chief Executive Officer received total
annual remuneration of NPR 13 million
in the form of salary and allowances.
Apart from this, he is entitled to receive
allowances as per the Bank’s Human
Resources Policy and statutory bonuses
as per the law.

Laxmi Bank also conducts media
briefings on a regular basis to keep the
market informed about its activities,
products and services.
Quarterly financial results of Laxmi Bank
are published in national newspapers for
review by all stakeholders.

The Bank’s compensation packages for
employees take into account job levels,
responsibilities and composition of salary
and allowances across the industry.
Salaries are reviewed in the context of
individual and business performance,
market practice, internal relativities and
competitive market pressures.

The total remuneration to other
executives and managers during the year
was NPR 40 million.
Allowances include Dashain bonus,
medical allowance, mobile phone
reimbursement, house rent, vehicle
repair & maintenance, and leave fare
payments. All members of the staff are
covered under Group Personal Accident
insurance. Gratuity is paid to employees
having completed 3 years’ regular full
time employment, upon severance.
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• Employee Development
Development of all employees is a
critical component of the bank’s broader
approach to corporate governance. The
bank has an affirmative action program
to achieve and create employment
equity in the workplace through training,
mentoring and development of all staff.
A total of 58 employees received various
banking and management related trainings
conducted by external agencies in Nepal
and abroad during the financial year.
New staff attend induction programs
that provide them with a better
understanding of the brand vision,
culture and values of the Bank.
Regular in-house training programs
are conducted throughout the year to
enhance knowledge and / or efficiency to
staff at various levels.
Relationship Managers in credit functions
undergo an accreditation program from
Omega Performance, a global training
institute, which reflects our commitment
towards developing world class
workforce capable of maintaining high
risk management standards.
The Bank offers a learning resource center
called e-Learning @ Laxmi Bank through
the office intranet system which provides
employees with access to various learning
materials related to their job.

• Human Resources Committee
A management level Human Resources
Committee comprising of executives
is involved in all key decisions on
employee management. This committee
meets every fortnight. The committee
is also responsible for initiating and
recommending policy level decisions
based on changes in applicable
regulations and / or industry dynamics.
The Human Resources Committee also
reviews all individual annual performance
reviews for check and balance purpose
as well as to ensure performance
assessments are uniform across the
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Bank. The Committee is also responsible
for recommending promotions, job
evaluations, increments, performance
awards and appointments to key positions
to the Chief Executive Officer.

• Employee Engagement
The Bank attaches great importance to
communication with staff. Information
pertaining to employment matters, business
direction, strategies and factors affecting
the Bank’s performance are conveyed to the
staff through different channels.
We believe that a happy and motivated
workforce is the most important factor in
achieving our financial and strategic goals.

• Code Of Conduct
To ensure that the Bank operates according
to the highest standards of ethical conduct
and professional competence, all staffs are
required to strictly subscribe to the Code
of Conduct contained in the handbook
named “Code Orange” drawn along
international best practices.
Code Orange sets out ethical standards
and values to which staff are required
to adhere to and covers a wide range of
legal, regulatory and ethical issues such
as relationships with authorities, clients,
competitors, employees, shareholders,
suppliers and the community. It also covers
workplace standards, and adherence to
practices that avoids conflict of interest
of employees at Laxmi Bank towards the
bank. The bank has appropriate procedures
and mechanisms in place to ensure all
elements of the Code are complied with.
The Bank uses various communication
channels to periodically remind staff of
the requirement to adhere to the rules
and ethical standards set out in the Code.
Failure to maintain ethical standards may
result in disciplinary action.
Individuals engaged with the Bank in
outsourced functions are also required to
comply with the principles of the Code.

• Health And Safety
The Bank recognizes the need for

effective management of health and
safety in order to provide a safe working
environment. The Bank takes measures to
remove, reduce or control material risks
of fires and other accidents or injuries
to employees and visitors. Fire wardens
are appointed for each unit / branch and
periodic fire drill is conducted by external
specialist who also impart trainings on
use of fire fighting equipments.
Apart from safety in the workplace, the Bank
also encourages all employees to be familiar
with best practices in personal safety
standards that can be adopted at home.
Employees have access to personal safety
handbooks that cover different events such
as fire, earthquake, robbery etc.
In recognition of the need for worklife balance the Bank has a policy of a
mandatory 14 days annual leave during
which the bank pays “annual leave fare
allowance” equivalent to one month’s salary.
The Bank’s intranet, Makuri has a special
dedicated section which carries relevant
news, information and best practices related
to personal health and safety.
A full time Security Officer is responsible
for overseeing and managing all issues
related to the physical security of our
premises, assets and employees.

Corporate Responsibility
Laxmi Bank uses the phrase “Corporate
Responsibility” to describe our approach
to meeting a wide range of financial
and non-financial responsibilities which,
although not generally enshrined
as legal or regulatory requirements,
constitute behavior expected of us by
our stakeholders, including shareholders,
customers and employees.
“Laxmi Cares” is a registered not-for-profit
organization that is managed by the Laxmi
Bank family and is involved in various social
activities aiming with active involvement of
our employees and customers.
Some of our Corporate Responsibility
initiatives are detailed separately in this
report.
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The Context
Laxmi Bank operates in a dynamic
business environment and engages with
customers across different geographic
regions providing a wide range of
services: from basic deposit accounts
to complex credit products. We deliver
our services via a number of channels
such as branches, ATMs, internet, mobile
phones. Changes in business conditions,
customers and counterparties’ financial
position, values of collateral, law and
order situation and the economy in
general can have adverse impact of the
Bank’s balance sheet.
Apart from domestic conditions, the
fact that businesses and individuals are
now increasingly dependent on the
global economy and are vulnerable
to numerous factors beyond our
immediate control, such as exchange
rates, commodity prices, demand for
Nepali workforce in the Middle East and
the health of international financial
institutions also add to our operating
challenges.
In the context of the continuing
uncertainty at the political level,
deteriorating business environment
and the growth in size and scope of our
balance sheet, we recognize that Laxmi
Bank must continue to upgrade our risk
management systems and practices.

Our Approach
Laxmi Bank’s approach to risk
management has always been beyond

mitigation and control. We believe our
risk management standard and risk
aware culture is a strategic differentiator
that has helped us achieve sustained and
quality growth in a difficult operating
environment.
Our approach to risk managements is
based on the philosophy that all risks
must be properly understood, measured,
mitigated and monitored. Every product,
process or counterparty transaction is
understood in the context of possible
changes in the business conditions and
general economy as well as assessment
of our own ability to manage their
impact on our business. Our risk
management foundation is built around:
- formal governance processes that are
constantly reviewed and updated
- organization wide commitment to
constantly exceed our own high standards that are benchmarked against
international best practices
- development of risk frameworks that
take into consideration our objectives
vis-à-vis our capabilities
- continuous research and development
of new and improved risk management
processes and tools supported by effective Management Information Systems
- adopting more stringent internal
standards than those prescribed by
the prevailing regulating bodies
- all business segments are responsible
and accountable for risks in their
respective areas and are assisted
where appropriate, by independent
Risk Managers
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We believe that our approach gives us
the advantage of pursuing growth in
a risk controlled manner and through
calculated and informed decision
making processes that helps increase risk
adjusted returns across our operations.

Risk Exposures
As a Commercial Bank, we are in the
business that is essentially a customer
driven activity where substantial risk is
the credit risk from our counterparties
such as corporate, personal and
institutional borrowers. Our activities
also expose us to market risk arising from
re-pricing and mismatches in our assets
and liabilities. These mismatches give rise
to various risks in terms of interest rate,
liquidity and foreign exchange positions.
In the course of conducting our
businesses, the Bank also handles a large
volume of financial transactions which
inherently exposes us to operational risks
arising from possible failure of internal
processes and systems, deficiencies in
people and management or operational
failure arising from external events.
The following sections of this chapter
cover the key management practices,
policies and framework of Laxmi Bank.

Risk Organization
We believe that risk management is
most effective when the responsibility is
shared between business units and risk
controllers with the Board setting out
the risk appetite and providing general
oversight ensuring that standards are
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maintained as per agreed parameters,
directly or through various Board and
Board Committees.
While the Board is the principal
committee for oversight of credit, market,
operational and other category of risks,
it is supported by various committees
and units within our risk management
framework.
A Risk Management Committee
comprising of non executive directors,
the Chief Risk Officer and other senior
executives is responsible to take
collective risk management decisions
to safeguard the interests of the Bank
and all stakeholders. This Committee
broadly covers risks associated with:
Credit, Market, Liquidity, Operational and
Reputational working under the terms
of reference determined by the Board
and provides inputs and guidance at a
strategic level to the management.
The responsibility of risk controllers for
credit and operational risk are assumed
by teams led by senior executives who
work independent of any sales targets
and report directly to the Chief Risk
Officer, a position introduced earlier this
year. These teams are responsible for
managing risks at day to day operating
and portfolio levels. The heads of these
risk units provide active support to the
Chief Risk Officer to ensure all businesses
and processes are conducted within the
approved risk framework/parameter of
the Bank. They are also responsible for
designing and implementing effective
risk management guidelines and
periodically review procedures, products
and portfolios in line with the changing
business and regulatory environment.

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of unexpected
losses resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people,
systems, natural or other disasters and

unanticipated changes in external
factors. Operational risk is inherent in all
business activities. Whilst such risks can
never be eliminated, at Laxmi Bank we
aim to minimize unexpected losses and
manage expected losses to preserve and
create value of our business.
We manage our operational risks through
standardization of internal processes and
monitoring mechanisms. Data security,
dual control, periodic departmental
reviews are some of the tools that are
used to manage such risks.
Recognizing the importance of
operational risk both in terms of
managing day to day business as
well as the impact of Basel II Capital
Accord, an independent Operational
Risk under a unit named Compliance
and Assurance is in place to provide
independent oversight at both policy
and transactional level in terms of
risk monitoring and control. The unit
establishes relevant policies and
guidelines and also acts as partners to
business units in conducting periodic
trainings and adding value to business
process re-engineering/re-structuring.
The unit is involved in any new products
/ services that the Bank launches early on
at the development/conceptualization
stage providing insight and expertise.
The Compliance and Assurance unit
carries out periodic on-site and off-site
reviews of businesses to provide positive
assurance to the management of the
effectiveness of the control system
complimenting the work of Internal Audit.

• The Framework
Laxmi Bank’s Risk Framework is
reinforced by an internal control system
that strengthens the “risk aware” culture
in the Bank by establishing clear roles
and responsibilities of staff and their
“rights and obligations” in the control
function. In addition, operational
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risk awareness training sessions and
e-learning programs are conducted on
an ongoing basis to cultivate a proactive
risk management culture in the Bank.

• Speaking Up
The Bank actively encourages employees
to speak up against misconducts
and unethical behavior within the
organization. A whistle blowing program
has been designed whereby employees
can report any issue or incident online
anonymously to the Chief Executive
Officer or any other individual or
group of executives. All issues that are
reported are immediately investigated
independently and where required
necessary action taken. This program has
helped identify and resolve a number of
problems and issues at early stages.

• Business Continuity Process
Laxmi Bank recognizes and is prepared
for a situation where it may not be
possible to run the business as usual.
Events such as strikes, riots and natural
disasters etc. which are beyond the
bank’s control may compel the bank to
suspend or temporarily close down the
operation in order to avoid untoward
incidents and to protect Bank’s interests
and safety of employees. Failure to
recover business operations in a timely
manner from such incidents could result
in our inability to process transactions
for a period of time leading to potentially
serious adverse impact on the business,
through compensation claims, inability
to manage fund position, loss of
customer/business and overall damage
to the Bank’s reputation.
In order to mitigate risks and manage
the impact of such unforeseen events,
detailed Business Continuity Plans
are in place for all major units and
branches that documents processes
and procedures to ensure uninterrupted
or immediate resumption of critical
functions.
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Credit Risk Management
Credit Risk is the risk of losses from the
default of an obligor or counterparty. The
main objective of the Bank’s Credit Risk
Management is to enable the Bank to
write businesses that meet its approved
underwriting standard and to ensure that
credit losses are minimized to the extent
possible.
Laxmi Bank’s Credit Policy Guide is the
highest level policy document and it
reflects long-term expectations and
represents a key element of uniform,
constructive and risk-aware culture
throughout the Bank. This credit policy
defines acceptable risk parameters and
is periodically reviewed and updated
to account for changing operating
environment and industry behaviour.
Laxmi Bank identifies, assesses and
manages the probability of default by
borrowing clients through a number of
proactive risk management techniques
and tools under a broad risk framework
outlined below:
- all credit applications are subjected
to comprehensive evaluation to
ensure that sound understanding of
the customer has been established to
take informed lending decisions and
that primary importance is placed on
identifying, understanding and assessing future cash flows and repayment
sources
- all borrowers are risk graded appropriately to reflect the risk of default in the
ensuing 12 month period
- all loans are priced appropriately
through a pricing model based on Risk
Adjusted Return on Capital
- all credit exposures to a single client
group are aggregated to determine
the appropriate level of approval
required and to ensure that the Bank
takes informed views on its exposure
to related entities
- constant monitoring of account / portfolio and periodic review is done to help

determine changes in risk levels and detect early warning signals from borrowers
in financial difficulties for implementation of remedial management action to
minimize risk and loss to the Bank
- various credit portfolio reports that
captures exposure to single client
group, product and segment wise
exposures etc. are reviewed on regular
frequency and these are used to form
strategies at all levels
A management level credit subcommittee meets periodically to
review and discuss issues at portfolio
and account levels. Officers involved
in originating lending proposals are
required to receive accreditation through
an international training agency - Omega
Performance.

• Credit Approval Process
The Bank has standard procedures for
credit approvals that ensure appropriate
guidelines and tools are employed for
the type of credit and counterparty being
assessed. The foundation of the credit
approval structure is a designation process
that delegates specific credit approval
discretions to individuals according to
their individual credit skills, knowledge,
experience, training and integrity.
Credit extensions to customers are
generally required to meet pre-defined
target market criteria, which set the risk
acceptance standards in terms of various
factors such as industry, business, value
etc. Given the element of subjective
judgements, loans require dual approval
with an independent credit risk executive
to ensure objectively in underwriting
decisions with the exception of a few
consumer finance programs that are
underwritten as per pre-approved credit
programs using objective parameters.
Different risk grading systems are used
for Corporate, Small Business and
Consumer Finance.
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All products are jointly approved by a
product approval chain comprising of
representatives from business, risk and
support functions ensuring objectivity,
independence and functional expertise
into the approval process.

• Credit Risk Control
Credit Risk Control is independent from
the business units that originates loan
proposals. This unit manages post approval
processes including preparation of legal
and security documentation, contracts etc.
as per the approval terms. This ensures that
all contracts and covenants are prepared in
accordance to the approved terms outside
the influence of the Loan Officers. Finally,
loans are disbursed to borrowers only
after Credit Risk Control unit checks and
confirms that all security documentation
have been perfected.

• Post Disbursal Monitoring &
Portfolio Management
All relationships are constantly
monitored both at account and portfolio
levels to detect signs of credit quality
deterioration. Standard procedures for
carrying out periodic credit reviews,
frequency and monitoring processes are
documented in related risk management
guidelines. All such reviews and
customer contacts are documented.
Credit reviews are conducted at least once
a year with updated information on the
borrower’s financial condition, business and
industry outlook, and account conduct.
Credit risk grade reviews are made to
reflect changes in risk levels of borrowers
on an ongoing basis.
Irregularity reports with respect to the
management of excesses, overdue
payments of principal or interest and
past due bills and deficiencies identified
therein are documented and reported to
credit chain along with concrete action
plans for correction.
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Since consumer loans are granular in
nature, a portfolio approach in managing
these high volume loans is adopted with
periodic review of portfolio status and
key indicators.

75 %
corporate banking

industry, customer and product does not
exceed a predefined peak exposure limits
in order to mitigate / minimize losses from
events that could impact an industry.
Industry exposures are also monitored
in relation to the Bank’s
capital in line with
22 %
regulatory requirements.

Retail Financial Services

trade finance – 5%
other working
capital finance – 39%
term loans – 30%

trade finance – 5%
other working
capital finance – 39%
term loans – 30%

SEGMENT-WISE FUNDED EXPOSURE
AS AT 16 JULY 2011
• Risk Grading
Laxmi Bank follows an internal risk
grading system that is more detailed and
comprehensive than what is prescribed
by the regulators and reflects the various
business and industry factors affecting the
customer’s business and repayment ability.
These ratings represent the probability of
default over the period of 12 months and
are reviewed on a periodic basis to reflect
any changes in the risk levels.

During the financial year
2010/11 we continued
to take steps to manage
3%
and reduce our exposure
microfinance
in the real estate
sector that has been
adversely affected due
to continued political
uncertainty, regulations,
price correction and low
demand. Our exposure
in this sector is within prudent norms and
regulatory requirement. Our real estate
borrowers are primarily developers with
established track records and in many
cases units of a larger corporate group
with diversified businesses and we are
confident of their ability to perform in
the long term despite current downturn.
Notwithstanding this comfort, we are
closely monitoring this segment and
are prepared to take necessary steps to
minimize losses in a worst case scenario of
industry wide defaults.

67%

• Non Performing Asset
(NPA) Management

29%
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DISTRIBUTION OF RISK ASSETS BY QUALITY
Rating of 1 represents the highest quality
of assets and 10 the lowest

• Credit Concentration
It is Laxmi Bank’s policy to set limits and
manage concentration risk to ensure
that exposure on any particular sector/

Laxmi Bank’s NPA Management
Policy provides guidance on
all aspects of management
of impaired assets. The policy
stipulates guidelines in terms of
recognition, provisioning, security
enforcement, asset disposal, write
offs and accounting for such NPAs.

Market & Liquidity Risks

Market risk is the possibility of
loss arising from changes in the
value of a financial instrument as a
result of changes in market variables
such as interest rates, exchange rates,
credit spreads and other asset prices.
Laxmi Bank’s exposure to market risk is a
function of our trading and asset-liability
management activities and our role as
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a financial intermediary in customerrelated transactions. The objective of our
market risk management is to minimize
the impact of losses on earnings and
equity capital due to market risk.
The key elements in management of
market and liquidity risks are policies, risk
limits and risk measurement tools. Our
market risk policies include the Treasury
Manual, Investment Policy and the AssetLiability Management (ALM) Policy. The
policies are approved by the Board of
Directors. The Asset-Liability Management
Committee (ALCO) stipulates liquidity
and interest rate risk limits, monitors
adherence to limits, articulates the
organization’s interest rate view and
determines the strategy in light of the
current and expected environment. These
policies and processes are articulated in
the ALM Policy.

• Assets and Liabilities Management Framework
The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)
is a management level committee
that is responsible for overseeing the
Bank’s balance sheet risks. The ALCO is
chaired by the Chief Executive Officer
and comprises of senior executives
and is responsible for reviewing the
Bank’s balance sheet structure to
ensure availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet all of the bank's financial
commitments and to facilitate expansion
of business. The ALCO also reviews
the current and prospective funding
requirements for our operations through
monitoring of cash flows, liquidity ratios
and maturity profile reviews and takes
strategic decisions on portfolio and
pricing of liability products.

• Market Risks
The operating environment number
of financial institutions has resulted in
escalation of market risks. During the
year under review a number of financial
institutions was hit with liquidity crises
and required regulatory support to
manage their operations. We have
restricted our exposure to select financial
institutions within individual market
limits assigned to them based on a
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comprehensive credit scoring model.
These limits are reviewed periodically
based on changes in the market
condition and the performance results of
the institutions.

• Interest Rate Risk
One of the major functions of Laxmi
Bank’s Treasury is measuring, monitoring,
and controlling of interest rate risk (IRR),
a part of market risk. IRR is the risk that
changes in prevailing interest rates will
adversely impact the value of the bank's
assets and liabilities. Treasury closely
monitors and forecasts net interest
income (NII) and measures the sensitivity
of NII to changes in interest rates by
employing a variety of standard and
proprietary models to measure this risk.
The output of this analysis is tabled at the
ALCO, which is responsible for overseeing
a variety of asset and liability (ALM)
activities including the establishment of
guidelines for the bank's risk tolerance
levels. The treasury department is further
tasked with ensuring IRR stays within
guidelines set by ALCO by entering
into a variety of financial transactions,
such as interest rate swaps and forward
contracts. Interest rate risk is measured
through the use of re-pricing gap
analysis and duration analysis.

• Liquidity
Our policy on liquidity maintenance
is generally more conservative than
prevailing regulatory requirements.
Treasury prepares a detailed liquidity
position of the Bank on daily basis that
are reviewed by the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Risk Officer. We
ensure adequate liquidity at all times
through systematic funds planning
and maintenance of liquid investments
of appropriate quality to ensure that
short-term funding requirements
are covered. The Bank’s strategy is
to diversify the funding sources and
minimize concentration across the
various deposit sources. The ALCO sets
and reviews concentration limits from a
single deposit source as a prudent risk
management policy.

Customer deposits continue to remain
core source of the Bank’s funding. The
Bank was a net lender in the inter-bank
market during 2010/11.
Laxmi Bank's Assets and Liability
Management (ALM) guide covers policies
and procedures to manage liquidity risks
and pricing risks.

• Foreign Exchange Risk
The bank’s foreign exchange risk stems
from foreign exchange position taking
and commercial dealing. Fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates can have a
significant impact on a Bank's financial
position. Laxmi Bank has adopted
measures to appropriately hedge
the risks that arise while carrying out
international trade transactions.
All Treasury Dealers are required to abide
by a separate Code of Ethics to ensure
that professionalism and confidentiality
are maintained and ethical dealing
practices observed.

Information System
Management
Laxmi Bank places high priority in
managing and protecting its information
resources and computer systems. A
comprehensive IT Policy is in place, which
covers data centre operation, hardware,
network security and computer system
related issues. Our main banking platform
– ‘flexcube’ is amongst the best platform
available in the world today. Our computer
and information systems are supported by
high-end world-class database.
Given our strong reliance on technology
we became the first Bank in Nepal to have
our information systems audited by an
independent auditor. The independent
audit has rated both our overall
management of information system and
on-line banking system as Highly Secured.

• Disaster Recovery Plan
The Bank’s ‘Disaster Recovery Plan’ is
designed specifically for the recovery
and/or replacement of hardware, critical
systems applications with data restoration,
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on any computer platform together
with connectivity between the various
system components. Back up of all data is
maintained off-site. A full - fledged DRP
site has been set up at a secure off-site
location and we are reasonably confident
of our ability to resume our operations
within reasonable time in case our main
data centre suffers physical damage.
Periodic DRP tests are conducted jointly
by Information Technology unit and
Operational Risk in the form of mock drills to
test the readiness of our back-up systems.

Reputation Risk
Reputational risks can arise from social,
ethical or environmental issues, or as a
consequence of operational risk events
which could result in litigation, financial loss
or adverse impact on earnings arising from
negative public opinion. We understand
that protecting the Bank’s reputation is
paramount to sustainability. We have always
aspired to the highest standards of conduct
and regularly review and update our
practices and procedures for safeguarding
against reputational risks. For us, this is an
evolutionary process and in the absence of
formal guidance on the subject we draw
from international best practices having
compiled a set of behavioral guidelines and
conducts for our employees.
As a matter of culture, reputation
downside to the Bank is fully appraised
and discussed before any strategic
decision is taken or new products
and transactions are developed and
released. We also apply the same level of
appraisals for external communications,
vendor selections and at the time of
establishing new client relationships
including established guidelines on KYC
and anti - money laundering.

The Caring Gen-Next Bankers
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The Laxmi Bank workforce is young, spirited
and innovative – fully committed to deliver
hi-tech and user friendly moderns banking
services to our customers.
We are proud of the “Laxmi Bank” culture
and style that has been built carefully
over the past 9 years and our people are
recognized as knowledgeable professionals
who can excel in honest, ethical and
transparent working environment.
We have a common aspiration to be
known as the “Caring Gen-Next Bankers”
which continues to gain strength as a
strong brand differentiator for the Bank.
The Bank recognizes the importance of
a diverse and motivated workforce that
is passionate about empowering and
delivering great customer experience to
customers in a competitive market. We
are an equal opportunity employer and
female members make up 40% of our
workforce. Our recruitment and career
management system is designed to

attract and benefit people who fit our
stakeholder culture and brand values.
It is our practice to recruit entry level
employees for branches from the local
communities to the extent available. This
helps us stay closer and more grounded
to our customer base apart from
contributing to local employment.
We provide a free and fair career
opportunity supported by a transparent
and robust performance management
system. Wherever possible, vacant
positions are filled through internal
job announcements that provide
opportunities for qualified people with
the right attitude and aptitude for the job.

mentoring etc. Performance Objectives
for Line Managers include goals for team
development and effective succession
planning.

Communication & Engagement
Communication is a vital part of
our HR culture. Makuri - our internal
communications portal (intranet) - is a
robust and interactive forum that helps
keep all employees informed, updated
and engaged at both formal and semiformal levels.
The CEO’s Blog is a medium through
which the Chief Executive shares his
views and seeks opinion/feedback on
matters that are relevant to the company
and the industry in general.

ETHNIC DRESS DAY

We place strong emphasis on skill
enhancement and personal development
of our people. Equal importance is given
for both technical and behavioral aspect
of their development and these are
achieved through various tools - facilitator
led training sessions, e-learning portal,
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Annual Staff Surveys help the
management feel the pulse of the
organization and identify strength and
weaknesses in our people management
practice allowing us to take corrective
measures where appropriate.
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Ethnic dress day at Laxmi Bank

Employee Survey 2010 highlights:
Ethical Culture	Positive Response Rate
Positive Response %
I am confident that unethical behavior will not be tolerated
in Laxmi Bank.

95

My supervisor sets a good example of ethical behavior

95

If I observed unethical practices in the Bank, I know how to report it.

89

I am confident that I will be supported by the management if I raise
any ethical issues or concerns I may have.

94

Laxmi Bank has a reputation (amongst customers) as being a very
ethical company.

Engagement is a vital and important
component of Laxmi Bank HR culture.
We believe that a cohesive and
productive workplace can be achieved
by creating an environment where
common values are shared and a sense
of personal purpose and importance is
recognized.
A number of internal events – sports,
general knowledge, parties, picnics etc
- throughout the year that allow our
employees to bond and network with

95

each other in informal settings. Laxmi
Bank’s internal calendar of events is
released at the start of the financial
year covering all such activities.
Laxmi Bank team today is engaged
and passionate which is best reflected
in the manner “Laxmi Cares” has
grown over the years. “Laxmi Cares”
is a registered not-for-profit / NGO
through which Laxmi Bank employees
engage with our communities by
supporting a number of relevant social
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causes. Please refer to “Corporate
Responsibility” section of this report
to read about Laxmi Cares activities
in detail.

Welfare
“Laxmi Bank Retirement Fund”, is an
independent, legally incorporated
fund manager that manages the
retirement and severance funds of all
employees on behalf of the Bank.
The Staff Welfare Committee is
represented by employees of all
levels. The Committee’s primary
responsibility is to manage the funds
allocated to the Staff Welfare Fund
from the Bank’s profit as per the
prevailing laws and grant financial
assistance to eligible employees as per
it’s by-laws.
Laxmi Bank’s proposal of introducing
Employee Stock Options has been put
on hold pending regulatory clarity and
approval.
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Balance Sheet
as at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
Schedule
This Year
1. Share Capital
4.1
1,694,196,525
2. Reserves and Surplus
4.2
419,180,198
3. Debentures & Bonds
4.3
350,000,000
4. Borrowings
4.4
5. Deposit Liabilities
4.5
18,299,627,620
6. Bills Payable
4.6
302,100,039
7. Proposed Cash Dividend		
174,098,862
8. Income Tax Liabilities (net)		
4,678,074
9. Other Liabilities
4.7
316,010,075
			
Total Capital and Liabilities		
21,559,891,393

Previous Year
1,613,520,500
298,809,990
350,000,000
100,000,000
18,082,957,988
5,262,902
209,757,665
2,801,578
289,138,935

ASSETS
1. Cash Balance
2. Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank
3. Balance with Banks/Financial Institution
4. Money at Call and Short Notice
5. Investment
6. Loans, Advances and Bills Purchase
7. Fixed Assets
8. Non Banking Assets (net)
9. Other Assets

20,952,249,558

Schedule	
4.8
4.9
4.10
4.11
4.12
4.13
4.14
4.15
4.16

This Year
356,669,236
1,866,490,707
551,432,373
50,000,000
3,041,421,767
15,199,847,906
352,338,243
141,691,161

Previous Year
244,205,091
1,219,716,716
376,782,432
904,377,086
3,186,905,894
14,560,109,588
282,349,126
177,803,625

Total Assets		

21,559,891,393

20,952,249,558

Contingent Liabilities		
Directors’ Declaration		
Statement of Capital Fund		
Statement of Risk weighted Assets and CRM		
Principal Indicators		
Principal Accounting Policies		
Notes to Accounts		
Statement of Loans and Advances of Promoters/ Promoter
Group by pledging the shares in their ownership		
Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statement		
Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)		

Schedule 4.17
Schedule 4.29
Schedule 4.30 (A1)
Schedule 4.30(B, C, D, E)
Schedule 4.31
Schedule 4.32
Schedule 4.33
Schedule 4.34
Schedule 4.35
Schedule 4.A

Schedules 4.1 to 4.17 are integral part of the Balance Sheet.

Piyush Raj Aryal
Head - Finance & Treasury

Date: 16 Nov 2011
Place: Kathmandu

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer

Rajendra K. Khetan
Chairman
Bhola Babu Adhikary
C. P. Khetan
G. K. Sikaria
Jiwan Raj Kandel
Ratan Lal Sanghai
Rishi Ram Gautam
Sambhu P Acharya
Directors
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As per our Report
of even date
Shashi Satyal
Proprietor
for Shashi Satyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Profit and Loss Account
For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068 (July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
Schedule
1. Interest Income
4.18
2. Interest Expenses
4.19
Net Interest Income		
3. Commission and Discount
4.20
4. Other Operating Income
4.21
5. Exchange Income
4.22
Total Operating Income		
6. Staff Expenses
4.23
7. Other Operating Expenses
4.24
8. Exchange Loss
4.22
Operating Profit before provision for Possible Loss		
9. Provision for Possible Losses
4.25
Operating Profit 		
10. Non Operating Income /(Loss)
4.26
11. Loan Loss Provision Written Back
4.27
Profit from Regular Operations		
12. Profit/(Loss) from Extra-Ordinary Activities
4.28
Net Profit after including all Activities		
13. Provision for Staff Bonus		
14. Provision for Income Tax		
* Provision for Current Year’s Tax		
* Provision for Previous Years’ Tax		
* Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income)		

This Year
2,233,332,791
1,503,851,025
729,481,766
67,795,886
69,514,877
63,127,874
929,920,403
157,662,248
169,294,370
602,963,785
13,634,832
589,328,953
873,687
798,406
591,001,046
2,348,347
593,349,393
53,940,854
161,482,469
2,780,975

Previous Year
1,787,692,540
1,135,609,890
652,082,650
46,866,912
60,031,631
47,563,308
806,544,501
122,405,630
142,169,232
541,969,639
28,766,525
513,203,114
1,325,486
3,644,550
518,173,150
(4,366,416)
513,806,734
46,709,703
141,441,317
(1,381,327)

Net Profit/Loss 		

375,145,095

327,037,041

Schedules 4.18 to 4.28 are integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

Piyush Raj Aryal
Head - Finance & Treasury

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer

Rajendra K. Khetan
Chairman
Bhola Babu Adhikary
C. P. Khetan
G. K. Sikaria
Jiwan Raj Kandel
Ratan Lal Sanghai
Rishi Ram Gautam
Sambhu P Acharya

Date: 16 Nov 2011
Place: Kathmandu

Directors
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As per our Report
of even date
Shashi Satyal
Proprietor
for Shashi Satyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Profit and Loss Appropriation Account

		

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068 (July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
Schedule	
This Year
INCOME			
1. Accumulated Profit up to Previous Year		
17,042,134
2. Current Year’s Profit		
375,145,095
3. Exchange Fluctuation Fund		
4. Capital Adjustment Fund transferred		
5. Adjustments in Retained Earnings			
		Total		
392,187,229
EXPENSES		
1. Accumulated Loss up to Previous Year		
2. This Year’s Loss		
3. General Reserve		
75,029,019
4. Contingent Reserve		
5. Institutional Development Fund		
6. Dividend Equalization Fund		
7. Staff Related Reserves		
8. Proposed Dividend		
174,098,862
9. Proposed Bonus Shares		
80,676,025
10. Special Reserve Fund		
11. Exchange Fluctuation Fund		
1,716,210
12. Capital Redemption Reserve Fund		
50,000,000
13. Capital Adjustment Fund		
14. Investment Adjustment Reserve		
1,899,530
14. Adjustments:		
Deferred Tax Liability		
Deferred Tax Reserve		
(2,506,495)
Total		
380,913,151
15.Accumulated Profit/(Loss)		
11,274,078

Piyush Raj Aryal
Head - Finance & Treasury

Date: 16 Nov 2011
Place: Kathmandu

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer

Rajendra K. Khetan
Chairman
Bhola Babu Adhikary
C. P. Khetan
G. K. Sikaria
Jiwan Raj Kandel
Ratan Lal Sanghai
Rishi Ram Gautam
Sambhu P Acharya
Directors
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Previous Year
21,270,508
327,037,041
192,089
348,499,638
65,407,408
209,757,665
3,370,437
50,000,000
1,540,667
1,381,327
331,457,504
17,042,134

As per our Report
of even date
Shashi Satyal
Proprietor
for Shashi Satyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Cash Flow Statement
For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
(a). Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1. Cash Received
1.1 Interest Income
1.2 Commission and Discount Income
1.3 Income from Foreign Exchange transaction
1.4 Recovery of Loan Written off
1.5 Other Income
2. Cash Payment
2.1 Interest Expenses
2.2 Staff Expenses
2.3 Office Operating Expenses
2.4 Income Tax Paid
2.5 Other Expenses
Cash Flow before changes in Working Capital
(Increase) / Decrease in Current Assets
1.(Increase)/Decrease in Money at Call and Short Notice
2. (Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Investment
3. (Increase)/Decrease in Loans, Advances and Bills Purchase
4. (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
Increase /( Decrease) in Current Liabilities
1. Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits
2. Increase/(Decrease) in Certificates of Deposits
3. Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings
4. Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
(b) Cash Flow from Investment Activities
1. (Increase)/Decrease in Long-term Investment
2. (Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Assets
3. Interest income from Long term Investment
4. Dividend Income
5. Others
(c) Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1. Increase/(Decrease) in Long term Borrowings (Bonds,Debentures etc)
2. Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital & Share Premium
3. Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
4. Increase/(Decrease) in Refinance/facilities received from NRB
(d) Income/Loss from change in exchange rate in Cash & Bank Balance
(e) Current Year’s Cash Flow from All Activities
(f) Opening Balance of Cash and Bank
(g) Closing Balance of Cash and Bank
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This Year
1,149,022,542
2,501,669,219
2,288,142,953
79,635,246
63,127,874
807,000
69,956,145
1,997,870,773
1,513,832,927
204,371,951
120,059,922
159,605,973
503,798,445
423,966,941
854,377,086
246,984,127
(653,066,943)
(24,327,329)
221,257,156
216,669,632
(100,000,000)
104,587,524
(215,134,463)
(101,500,000)
(113,634,463)
80,676,025
80,676,025
1,014,564,104
1,840,704,239
2,855,268,343

Previous Year
(374,970,993)
1,888,043,224
1,728,815,089
48,310,617
47,563,308
3,258,695
60,095,515
1,456,112,191
1,059,788,935
149,001,140
103,681,098
143,641,018
431,931,033
(2,498,882,455)
(498,677,086)
(703,754,733)
(1,280,754,083)
(15,696,553)
1,691,980,430
2,031,654,892
(350,000,000)
10,325,538
(68,742,446)
(68,974,244)
231,799
451,639,954
451,639,954
7,926,516
1,832,777,723
1,840,704,239
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Capital

Share

		
General

Profit/Loss 	Reserve	

Accumulated

Investment

Share	
Fund

-

Proposed Dividend

Exchange Fluctuation Fund
-

(50,000,000)

-

(1,716,210)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

75,029,019

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,540,667

2,506,495

-

-

Closing Balance at 32 Ashad 2068

1,694,196,525

11,274,078

230,025,003

3,440,197

13,071,581

11,369,339

150,000,000

(0)

2,113,376,723

-

-

-

80,676,025

-

(174,098,862)

(80,676,025)

-

-

375,145,095

-

2,506,495 						

1,899,530 					

- 				

50,000,000 		

- 			

1,716,210 			

- 			

- 			

- 			

- 			

-

1,912,330,491

(2,506,495)

Deferred Tax Reserve 		

(1,899,530)		

100,000,000

- 			

9,653,130

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,071,581

1,912,330,491

Fracional Bonus shares carried over 									

Investment Adjustment Reserve 		

Share Premium 					

Debenture Redemption Fund

80,676,025

(174,098,862)

-

Proposed Bonus Shares

Bonus share and Right share collection

(80,676,025)

-

Capital Adjustment Fund

375,145,095
(75,029,019)

-

Net profit for the period

154,995,984

- 							

17,042,134

1,613,520,500

Transfer to General Reserve

Restated Balance

Adjustments in Retained Earnings 		

Total

(in NPR)
Reserve		

Fund		

Redemption

Exchange	Debenture	Deferred Tax	

Premium	Fluctuation

RESERVE		

Adjustment

Opening Balance at 1 Shrawan 2067
1,613,520,500
17,042,134
154,995,984
1,540,667
13,071,581
9,653,130 100,000,000
2,506,495
Adjustments 									

				

Particulars

Fiscal Year 2067/68

Statement of Changes in Equity
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Schedule 4.1

Share Capital and Ownership
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)
Particulars	
This Year
Previous Year
1. Share Capital 			
1.1 Authorized Capital
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
a) 20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100.00 each
2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000
b) ….Non-redeemable Preference Shares of NPR….each 			
c) ….Redeemable Preference Shares of NPR….each 			
1.2 Issued Capital
1,613,520,500
1,613,520,500
a) 16,135,205 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100.00 each
1,613,520,500
1,613,520,500
b) ….Non-redeemable Preference Shares of NPR….each		
c) ….Redeemable Preference Shares of NPR….each 		
1.3 Paid Up Capital
1,613,520,500
1,613,520,500
a) 16,135,205 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100.00 each
1,613,520,500
1,613,520,500
b) ….Non-redeemable Preference Shares of NPR….each
c) ….Redeemable Preference Shares of NPR….each 		
1.4 Proposed Bonus Share
80,676,025
1.5 Calls in Advance
Total (1.3 + 1.4 + 1.5)
1,694,196,525
1,613,520,500

Share Ownership		
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	
%
This Year
Previous Year
(A) Local Ownership
100.00
1,613,520,500
1,613,520,500
1.1 Government of Nepal				
1.2 “Ka” Class Licensed Institution				
1.3 Other Licensed Institution				
1.4 Other Organisations (Promoters)
35.28
569,199,900
569,199,900
1.5 Individuals
35.53
573,378,100
573,378,100
1.6 Others (Promoters)
29.19
470,942,500
470,942,500
(B) Foreign Ownership				
Total
100.00
1,613,520,500
1,613,520,500
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%
100.00

35.28
35.53
29.19
100.00
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Share Capital & Ownership
LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 0.5% OF SHARE CAPITAL
(in NPR)
S. No.
NAME		
THIS YEAR	
		
AMOUNT 		
1
Himalayan Exim P.Ltd.
194,507,400
2
Sarika Khetan
165,821,900 		
3
Citizen Investment Trust
145,530,000
4
Ratan Lal Sanghai
138,915,000 		
5
MTC Investment Pvt. Ltd.
129,654,000
6
Gopi Krishna Shikaria
99,225,000 		
7
Shiva Bhagwan Ind. P. Ltd.
83,632,500 		
8
Poonam Khetan
46,840,400 		
9
Nepal Mentha Products Pvt. Ltd.
43,140,600 		
10
Prime Holding Pvt. Ltd.
40,434,400 		
11
Amit Gupta Agrawal
33,453,000 		
12
Nepal Remittance Pvt. Ltd.
31,586,800
13
Dreams Capital Limited.
30,212,700 		
14
Ruchi Jajodiya
29,342,200 		
15
Krishi Premura Properties Pvt Ltd
17,135,400 		
16
Harati Investment Pvt Ltd
16,044,600 		
17
Mutual Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd.
15,876,000 		
18
Rajendra K Khetan
15,876,000
19
Sabita Devi Rungta
13,230,000 		
20
Deepak Kumar Malhotra
11,080,900 		

Reserves Funds			

%
12.05
10.28
9.02
8.61
8.04
6.15
5.18
2.90
2.67
2.51
2.07
1.96
1.87
1.82
1.06
0.99
0.98
0.98
0.82
0.69

Schedule 4.2

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars		
This Year
1. General Reserve Fund 		
230,025,003
2. Capital Reserve Fund 		
13,071,581
		 a. Share Premium
13,071,581		
3. Capital Redemption Reserve 		
150,000,000
		 a. Laxmi Bank Debenture 2072
150,000,000 		
4. Capital Adjustment Fund 		
5. Other Reserves & Funds 		
3,440,197
		 a. Contingent Reserve
- 		
		 b. Institutional Development Fund
- 		
		 c. Dividend Equalization Fund
- 		
		 d. Special Reserve Fund
- 		
		 e. Assets Revaluation Reserve
- 		
		 f. Other Free Reserves
- 		
		 g. Investent Adjustment Reserve
3,440,197 		
		 h. Deferred Tax Reserve
- 		
6. Accumulated Profit/Loss 		
11,274,078
7. Exchange Fluctuation Fund 		
11,369,339
Total 		
419,180,198
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Previous Year
154,995,984
13,071,581
13,071,581
100,000,000
100,000,000
4,047,162
1,540,667
2,506,495
17,042,133
9,653,130
298,809,990
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Debentures and Bonds		

Schedule 4.3

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)
Particulars	
This Year
1.1. 8.5% Debentures 2072 of NPR 1000 each
350,000,000
Issued on 25th November 2008 and maturity on 24 November 2015 A.D.		
(Outstanding balance of Redemption Reserve NPR 150,000,000)		
2. ……….% Bond/Debentures of NPR……..…each
Issued on …………… and matured on ………. 		
(Outstanding balance of Redemption Reserve NPR…)
3. ……….% Bond/Debentures of NPR……..…each
Issued on …………… and matured on ………. 		
(Outstanding balance of Redemption Reserve NPR…)		
Total (1+2+3)
350,000,000

Borrowings		

Previous Year
350,000,000

-

350,000,000

Schedule 4.4

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)
Particulars	
A. Local
1. Government of Nepal
2. Nepal Rastra Bank
3. Repo Obligations
4. Inter Bank and Financial Institutions
5. Other Organized Institutions
6. Others
Total
B. Foreign
1. Banks
2. Others
Total
Total (A+B)

This Year
-
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Previous Year
100,000,000
100,000,000
100,000,000
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Schedule 4.5

Deposit Liability		
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)
Particulars	
This Year
1. Non-Interest bearing accounts 		
A. Current Deposits
749,549,431
1. Local Currency
665,521,260
1.1 Government of Nepal
1,657,676
1.2 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions
5,178,777
1.3 Other Licensed Institutions
9,138,897
1.4 Other Organized Institutions
621,078,789
1.5 Individuals
28,467,121
1.6 Others 		
2. Foreign Currency
84,028,171
2.1 Government of Nepal 		
2.2 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions 		
2.3 Other Licensed Financial Institutions 		
2.4 Other Organized Institutions
84,028,171
2.5 Individuals 		
2.6 Others 		
B. Margin Deposits
192,182,173
1. Employees Guarantee
2. Guarantee Margin
85,072,721
3. Margin on Letter of Credit
107,109,452
C. Others
14,781,379
1. Local Currency
14,781,379
1.1 Financial Institutions
1.2 Other Organized Institutions
14,781,379
1.3 Individual
2. Foreign Currency
2.1 Financial Institutions
2.2 Other Organized Institutions
2.3 Individual
Total of Non-Interest Bearing Accounts
956,512,983
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Previous Year
819,960,806
769,326,522
3,898,799
40,918,893
698,928,816
25,580,014
50,634,284

50,576,853
57,431
148,006,565
52,942,974
95,063,591
153,181,042
153,181,042
153,181,042
1,121,148,413
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Schedule 4.5

Deposit Liability		
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	
This Year
2. Interest Bearing Accounts 		
A. Saving Deposits
3,215,722,333
1. Local Currency
3,070,628,735
1.1 Organizations/ Institutions
4,438,579
1.2 Individual
3,066,190,156
1.3 Others 		
2. Foreign Currency
145,093,598
2.1 Organizations/ Institutions 		
2.2 Individual
145,093,598
2.3 Others 		
B. Fixed Deposits
9,453,568,370
1. Local Currency
8,600,527,120
1.1 Organizations/ Institutions
5,117,464,929
1.2 Individual
3,483,062,191
1.3 Others 		
2. Foreign Currency
853,041,250
2.1 Organizations/ Institutions
849,481,250
2.2 Individual
3,560,000
2.3 Others
C. Call Deposits
4,673,823,934
1. Local Currency
4,403,834,721
1.1 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions
1.2 Other Licensed Financial Institutions
705,087,604
1.3 Other Organized Institutions
2,211,562,312
1.4 Individual
1,487,184,805
1.5 Others 		
2. Foreign Currency
269,989,213
2.1 “Ka” Class Licensed Institutions
2.2 Other Licensed Institutions
2.3 Other Organized Institutions
195,346,227
2.4 Individual
74,642,986
2.5 Others 		
D. Certificate of Deposit
1. Organized Institution
2. Individual
3. Others
Total of Interest Bearing Accounts
17,343,114,637
Total Deposit (1+2)
18,299,627,620
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Previous Year
3,684,915,748
3,464,176,405
744,799
3,463,431,606
220,739,343
220,739,343
7,821,458,105
6,472,376,105
4,307,155,655
2,165,220,450
1,349,082,000
1,349,082,000
5,455,435,721
4,947,301,645
162,095,113
997,132,532
2,704,919,918
1,083,154,082
508,134,076
486,528,820
21,605,256
16,961,809,575
18,082,957,988
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Bills Payable			

Schedule 4.6

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
1. Local Currency
2. Foreign Currency
Total

This Year
302,100,039
302,100,039

Previous Year
5,262,902
5,262,902

Schedule 4.7

Other Liabilities
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	
1. Pension/Gratuity Fund
2. Employees Provident Fund
3. Employees Welfare Fund
4. Provision for Staff Bonus
5. Interest Payable on Deposits
6. Interest Payable on Borrowings
7. Interest Payable on Debentures
8. Unearned Discount and Commission
9. Sundry Creditors
10. Branch Account
11. Deferred Tax Liability
12. Unpaid Dividend
13. Others
(a) Audit Fee Payable
(b) Remittance Payable
(c) Others
Total

This Year
53,940,854
170,673,440
0
3,512,421
14,466,136
56,608,455
274,480
7,751,048
8,783,241
497,200
2,817,499
5,468,542
316,010,075

Previous Year
46,709,703
163,335,764
8,901,370
11,930,630
2,626,776
43,382,037
150,822
12,101,833
452,000
7,501,291
4,148,542
289,138,935

Schedule 4.8

Cash Balance
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	
1. Local Currency (Including Coins)
2. Foreign Currency
Total

This Year
351,640,994
5,028,242
356,669,236
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Previous Year
239,853,850
4,351,241
244,205,091
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Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank			

Schedule 4.9

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	Local	Foreign 	Currency (in Equivalent NPR)		
		Currency	INR	Convertible	
Total
1. Nepal Rastra Bank
1,795,502,198
70,988,509
70,988,509
a. Current Account
1,795,502,198
70,988,509
70,988,509
b. Other Account
-

This Year

Previous Year

1,866,490,707
1,866,490,707
-

1,219,716,716
1,219,716,716
-

Balance With Banks/Financial Institutions		

Schedule 4.10

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	Local	Foreign 	Currency (in Equivalent NPR)		
		Currency	INR	Convertible	
Total
1. Local Licensed
Institutions
88,445,008
47,334,780
47,334,780
a. Current Account
88,445,008
47,334,780
47,334,780
b. Other Account
2. Foreign Banks
- 1,195,021
414,457,564
415,652,585
a. Current Account
1,195,021
414,457,564
415,652,585
b. Other Account
Total
88,445,008 1,195,021
461,792,344
462,987,365

This Year

Previous Year

135,779,788
135,779,788
415,652,585
415,652,585
551,432,373

38,886,718
38,886,718
337,895,714
337,895,714
376,782,432

Note: Total balance for which the confirmations are received from respective licensed institutions NPR 1,780,645,096 and the difference amount have
been identified and are reconciled.

Schedule 4.11

Money at Call and Short Notice		
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	
1. Local Currency
2. Foreign Currency
TOTAL	

This Year
50,000,000
50,000,000
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Previous Year
150,000,000
754,377,086
904,377,086
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Investments

Schedule 4.12

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)
Particulars	
		
Purpose
		
Trading	
Other
1. Government of Nepal Treasury Bills 		
1,952,615,489
2. Government of Nepal Saving Bonds 		
3. Government of Nepal Other Securities 		
17,050,000
4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds 		
5. Foreign Securities 		
6. Local Licensed Institutions 		
7. Foreign Bank
854,409,969
8. Shares of Organized Institutions 		
177,533,340
9. Bonds and Debentures of Organized Institutions 		
50,000,000
10. Other Investments 		
Total Investment
3,051,608,798
Provision
10,187,031
Net Investment
3,041,421,767
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This Year

Previous Year

1,952,615,489
17,050,000
854,409,969
177,533,340
50,000,000
3,051,608,798
10,187,031
3,041,421,767

1,452,304,585
1,000,000
17,050,000
469,000,000
1,131,705,000
76,033,340
50,000,000
3,197,092,925
10,187,031
3,186,905,894
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Investment In Shares, Debentures and Bonds
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Schedule 4.12 (A)
(in NPR)

Particulars	
				
This Year
			
Cost Price
Market Price
Provision
1 Investment in Shares
177,533,340 			
1.1 Nepal Bank Limited 				
29,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each paid
9,740,031
N/L
9,740,031
(Refer Note 11 on Schedule No. 4.33) 				
1.2 Everest Insurance Company Limited 				
11,711 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each paid
2,082,000
3,630,410
(including 8,241 Bonus Shares) 				
1.3 Soaltee Hotel Limited 				
14,485 Ordinary Shares of NPR 10 each paid
740,809
2,925,970
(including 8,154 Bonus Shares) 				
1.4 Himalayan Distillery Limited 				
8,940 Ordinary Shares of NPR 50 each paid
447,000
447,000
(Refer Note 11 on Schedule No. 4.33) 				
1.5 Credit Information Center (CIC) Ltd. 				
36,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each paid
1,823,500
N/L
(including 17,765 Bonus Shares) 				
1.6 Prime Life Insurance Company Limited
54,000,000
92,340,000
540,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each paid
1.7 Nepal Clearing House Limited
2,500,000
N/L
25,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each paid 				
1.8 National Banking Training Institution
1,200,000
N/L
12,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each paid 				
1.9 Laxmi Microfinance Development Bank Ltd
35,000,000
N/L
(advance payment) 				
1.10 Laxmi Capital Market Ltd
70,000,000
N/L
(700,000 Promoter Shares of NPR 100 each paid) 				
2. Investment in Debentures and Bonds
50,000,000
2.1 Nepal Electricity Authority				
(7.75% NEA Power Bond of NPR. 1,000 each)
50,000,000
2.2 ……….			
		
Total Investment
227,533,340
- 		
3. Provision for Loss			
10,187,031
3.1 Up to previous year
10,187,031 		
10,187,031
3.2 Increase/(Decrease) this year
- 		
		
Total Provision
10,187,031 		
10,187,031
		
Net Investment
217,346,309 			
Note: 				
1 N/L stands for Not Listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (NEPSE).
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Previous Year
76,033,340
9,740,031

2,082,000

740,809
447,000

1,823,500
54,000,000
2,500,000
1,200,000
3,500,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
126,033,340
10,187,031
10,187,031
115,846,309
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INVESTMENTS (HELD FOR TRADING)

Schedule 4.12.1

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	Cost	
		
		

Previous 	Current	Current Year

Price	

Market

Market	 Profit/(Loss)

(Rs) 	Value	Value	

			

(Rs) (A)

(B-A)

Previous Year	Remarks	
Profit/(Loss) 		
(Rs.)

(Rs) (B)

1. Government of Nepal - Treasury bills
- 		
2. Government of Nepal - Savings Bonds
- 		
3. Government of Nepal - Development Bonds
- 		
4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds
- 		
5. Foreign Securities
- 		
6. Shares of Local Licensed Institutions
- 		
7. Bonds & Debentures of Local Licensed Institutions
- 		
8. Shares,Bonds & Debenture of Organized
Institutions
- 		
9. Placement
- 		
10. Interbank Lending
- 		
11. Other Investment 		
- 		
Total Investment
- 					

Investments (Held to Maturity)

Schedule 4.12.2

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	Cost	 Accumu- 	Current 	Current Year Previous Year	Remarks	
		
		

Price	

lated

(Rs) 	Loss (B)

Year

Profit/(Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 		

Market		

				Loss (C)

1. Government of Nepal - Treasury bills
1,952,615,489
2. Government of Nepal - Savings Bonds
3. Government of Nepal - Development Bonds
17,050,000
4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds
5. Foreign Securities
6. Shares of Local Licensed Institutions
7. Bonds & Debentures of Local Licensed
Institutions
8. Shares,Bonds & Debenture of Organized
Institutions
50,000,000
9. Placement
854,409,969
10. Other Investment
Total Investment
2,874,075,458

- 			
- 			
- 			
- 				
- 			
- 				
-

- 			

- 				
- 			
- 			
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Investments (Available for Sale)

Schedule 4.12.3

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	Cost	 Accumu- 	Current 	Current Year Previous Year	Remarks	
		

Price	

		

lated

(Rs) 	Loss (B)

Year

Profit/(Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 		

Market		

				Loss (C)

1. Government of Nepal - Treasury bills 						
2. Government of Nepal - Savings Bonds
N/A
N/A
N/A 		
3. Government of Nepal - Development Bonds 						
4. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds 						
5. Foreign Securities 						
6. Shares of Local Licensed Institutions
177,533,340 					
7. Bonds & Debentures of Local Licensed
Institutions 						
8. Shares,Bonds & Debenture of Organized
Institutions 						
9. Placement 						
10. Other Investment 						
Total Investment
177,533,340 					

71
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Total

Foreign

Total

Bills Purchased/Discounted 		
Domestic

	Other 						

	Foreign

This Year

Previous Year

(in NPR)

Schedule 4.13

1 1. Performing Loan
467,939,185
14,628,941,867
27,005,448
15,123,886,500 126,697,151
49,091 126,746,242 15,250,632,742 14,617,467,248
1.1 Pass
467,939,185
14,628,941,867
27,005,448
15,123,886,500 126,697,151
49,091
126,746,242
15,250,632,742 14,617,467,248
		
- 		
2. Non-Performing Loan
1,159,255
137,680,439
138,839,694
138,839,694
118,938,245
2.1 Restructured / Rescheduled 			
112,538,152 		
112,538,152 				
112,538,152
101,121,892
2.2 Sub-Standard
153,860
9,771,874
9,925,734
9,925,734
2,124,638
2.3 Doubtful
136,041
3,057,567
3,193,607
3,193,607
2,344,567
2.4 Loss
869,355
12,312,846
13,182,201
13,182,201
13,347,148
A. Total Loan
469,098,440
14,766,622,306
27,005,448
15,262,726,194 126,697,151
49,091 126,746,242 15,389,472,436 14,736,405,493
3. Loan Loss Provision 										
3.1 Pass
4,865,228
151,705,287
270,054
156,840,570
1,266,972
491
1,267,462
158,108,032
148,605,077
3.2 Restructured/ Rescheduled
14,256,060
14,256,060
14,256,060
12,640,236
3.3 Sub-Standard
38,465
2,442,968
2,481,433
2,481,433
531,159
3.4 Doubtful
68,020
1,528,783
1,596,804
1,596,804
1,172,283
3.5 Loss
869,355
12,312,846
13,182,201
13,182,201
13,347,148
B. Total Provisioning
5,841,068
182,245,945
270,054
188,357,068
1,266,972
491
1,267,462
189,624,530
176,295,905
4. Provisioning up to Previous Year 										
4.1 Pass
4,825,425
143,733,602
148,559,027
13,021
33,029
46,050
148,605,076
138,201,652
4.2 Restructured/ Rescheduled
12,640,236 		
12,640,236
12,640,236
4.3 Sub-Standard
4,791
526,368
531,159
531,160
4.4 Doubtful
1,172,283
1,172,283
1,172,284
1,247,729
4.5 Loss
760,634
12,586,514
13,347,148
13,347,148
8,295,333
C. Total Provisions up to Previous Year
5,590,851
176,249,855
176,249,855
13,021
33,029
46,050
176,295,904
147,744,714
D.Written Back this year
(273,668)
(273,668)		
(32,538)
(32,538)
(306,206)
(215,334)
E.Addition this year
250,218
11,860,609
270,054
12,380,881
1,253,950
1,253,950
13,634,832
28,766,525
Changes this year
250,218
11,586,941
40,557
12,107,213
1,253,950
(32,538)
1,221,413
13,328,626
28,551,191
Net Loan (A-B)
463,257,372
14,584,376,360
40,740
15,074,369,126 125,430,179
48,600 125,478,779 15,199,847,906 14,560,109,588

Uninsured 							

Deprived Sector

		Insured

		

Domestic

					
Loans & Advances

			

Particulars

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

CLASSIFICATION OF LOANS, ADVANCES AND BILLS PURCHASED & PROVISIONING
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LOANS, ADVANCES AND BILLS PURCHASED
SECURITY WISE

Schedule 4.13 (A)

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

PParticulars	
A. Secured
1. Movable/Immovable Assets
2. Guarantee of Local Licensed Institutions
3. Government Guarantee
4. Internationally Rated Bank Guarantee
5. Export Documents
6. Fixed Deposit Receipts
a. Own Fixed Deposit Receipts
b. Fixed Deposit Receipts of Other Licensed Institutions
7. Government Bonds
8. Counter Guarantee
9. Personal Guarantee
10. Other Securities
B. Unsecured
Total

Fixed Assets		

This Year
15,389,472,436
15,096,759,303
134,633,490
131,187,277
131,187,277
2,272,014
24,620,352
15,389,472,436

Previous Year
14,736,405,493
14,107,522,752
12,000,000
134,633,490
464,310,073
463,018,739
1,291,334

17,939,178
14,736,405,493

Schedule 4.14

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars						
This Year
ASSETS
		
Building	Vehicles	 Machinery	Office Equipment	Others		
1. Cost Price 							
a. Previous Year balance
49,873,724 76,018,312
135,747,670
- 261,639,706
b. Addition during the year
- 33,660,000
31,255,826
64,915,826
c. Revaluation/Written Back this year
d. Sold during the year
- (5,898,655)
(1,226,173)
(7,124,828)
e. Written off during the year
Total Cost (a+b+c+d+e)
49,873,724 103,779,657
165,777,323
- 319,430,704
2. Depreciation 							
a. Up to previous year
7,485,893 20,458,548
75,405,906
- 103,350,347
b. For this year
1,255,268 10,586,818
21,822,648
33,664,734
c. Depreciation on revaluation/
Written Back
- 		
d Adjustment/Write back of
Depreciation amount
- (2,750,166)
(1,054,711)
(3,804,877)
Total Depreciation
8,741,161 28,295,200
96,173,843
- 133,210,204
3. Book Value (WDV*) (1-2)
41,132,563 75,484,457
69,603,480
- 186,220,500
4. Land
65,620,187
5. Capital Construction (pending
Capitalization)
61,958,509
6. Leasehold Assets
38,539,047
Total (3+4+5+6)
41,132,563 75,484,457
69,603,480
- 352,338,243
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Previous	
Year
215,470,650
50,759,500
(4,590,445)
261,639,705
78,924,175
26,757,776
(2,331,605)
103,350,346
158,289,359
65,620,187
29,620,918
28,818,662
282,349,126
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Non Banking Assets					

Schedule 4.15

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
Name & Address of 	Date of assuming
Borrower or Party	
Non Banking Assets	
Ram Krishna Manandhar,
Hetauda
2063/01/27
Grand Total		

(in NPR)
Total Non 			
Loss Provision
Banking Assets	
%
in NPR	
25,500
100%
25,500 		

Net Non Previous
Banking Assets	

Previous	
Year

-

-

25,500
25,500

Other Assets			

Schedule 4.16

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars		
This Year
1. Stationery Stock 		
2. Income Receivable on Investment 		
31,654,864
3. Accrued Interest on Loan
40,113,632
Less:Interest Suspense Account
40,113,632 		
4. Commission Receivable 		
5. Sundry Debtors 		
6. Staff Loan & Advances 		
89,099,193
7. Pre Payments 		
7,028,865
8. Cash in Transit 		
9. Other Transit items (including Cheques) 		
10. Drafts Paid Without Notice 		
11. Expenses not Written Off 		
12. Branch Account Reconciliation 		
13. Deferred Tax Assets 			
14. Others 		
13,908,239
a. Deferred Software Expenses (to the extent not written off )
5,807,358 		
b. Advance tax (net) 			
c. Remittance Receivable 			
d. Others
8,100,881 		
Total 		
141,691,161

Other Assets (Additional Statement)			

4,272,734
3,431,142
177,803,625

Schedule 4.16 (A)

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
Particulars		
		Up to 1 Year
1. Accrued Interest on Loan
38,117,828
2. Drafts Paid without notice
3. Branch Account
4. Agency Account
-

Previous Year
1,698,375
86,465,026
29,251,780
29,251,780
64,499,436
6,955,755
2,506,495
15,678,538
7,974,662

(in NPR)
This Year		
1 to 3 Year
Above 3 Years	
1,995,804
-
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Total
40,113,632
-

Previous Year
29,251,780
-
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Contingent Liabilities

Schedule 4.17

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars	
This Year
1. Claims on institution not accepted by the Institution
2. Letter of Credit (Full Amount)
812,280,238
a. Less than 6 months maturity
796,082,038
b. More than 6 months maturity
16,198,200
3. Rediscounted Bills
4. Unmatured Guarantees/Bonds
1,706,178,756
a. Bid Bonds
672,721,920
b. Performance Bonds
1,033,456,836
c. Other Guarantee/Bonds
5. Unpaid Shares in Investment (Refer Note 11 on Schedule No. 4.33)
447,000
6. Outstanding Liabilities on Forward Exchange Contract
183,923,760
7. Bills under Collection
85,712,857
8. Acceptance & Endorsement
311,466,383
9. Underwriting Commitment
10. Irrevocable Loan Commitment
551,341,969
11. Guarantees issued against Counter Guarantee of Internationally Rated Banks 		
12. Advance Payment Guarantee
1,269,710,904
13. Financial Guarantee
4,080,000
14. Capital Commitments
15. Contingent Liabilities on Income Tax
54,727,926
16. Others 		
Total
4,979,869,793

Interest Income		

3,075,999,887

(in NPR)
This Year
2,055,055,678
1,452,073,182
602,982,496
114,603,002
103,809,228
102,737,978
1,071,250
3,875,000
3,875,000
6,918,774
6,918,774
36,162,631
36,049,440
113,191
27,511,480
27,511,480
2,233,332,791

75

260,740,619
3,680,000
27,045,808
43,158,244

Schedule 4.18

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068 (July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
A. On Loans, Advances and Overdraft
1. Loans & Advances
2. Overdraft
B. On Investment
1. Government of Nepal Securities
a. Treasury Bills
b. Development Bonds
c. National Saving Certificates
2. Foreign Securities
a. ………
b. ………
3. Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds
4. Debentures & Bonds
a. Financial Institutions
b. Other Institutions
5. Interest on Inter Bank Investment
a. Bank/ Financial Institutions
b. Other Institutions
C. On Agency Balances
1. Local Banks / Financial Institutions
2. Foreign Banks
D. On Money at Call and Short Notice
1. Local Banks/Financial Institutions
2. Foreign Banks
E. On Others
1. Certificate of Deposits
2. Inter-Bank / Financial Institutional Loan
3. Others
a. FCY placements
b. Others
Total

Previous Year
876,558,043
876,558,043
900,810,568
467,925,106
432,885,462
447,000
87,669,600
59,680,323
386,779,000
429,430,682

Previous Year
1,633,076,679
1,106,428,614
526,648,065
110,763,211
67,695,704
66,621,478
1,074,226
3,875,000
3,875,000
39,192,507
39,192,507
11,134,531
10,816,683
317,848
32,718,119
32,718,119
1,787,692,540
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Interest Expenses		

Schedule 4.19

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
A. On Deposit Liabilities
1. Fixed Deposits
1.1 Local Currency
1.2 Foreign Currency
2. Saving Deposits
2.1 Local Currency
2.2 Foreign Currency
3. Call Deposits
3.1 Local Currency
3.2 Foreign Currency
4. Certificate of Deposits
B. On Borrowings
1. Debentures & Bonds
2. Loan from Nepal Rastra Bank
3. Inter Bank /Financial Institutions Borrowing
4. Other Organized Institutions
5. Other Loans
C. On Others
1.
2.
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
1,464,477,160
907,372,130
870,202,024
37,170,106
181,600,602
178,107,736
3,492,866
375,504,428
370,396,017
5,108,411
39,373,865
29,750,000
1,282,763
8,341,102
1,503,851,025

Commission and Discount Income		

Previous Year
1,045,198,157
561,686,949
528,960,662
32,726,287
180,368,498
176,241,533
4,126,965
303,142,710
298,485,274
4,657,436
90,411,733
29,831,507
19,443,702
41,136,524
1,135,609,890

Schedule 4.20

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
A. Bills Purchased & Discount
1. Local
2. Foreign
B. Commission
1. Letters of Credit
2. Guarantees
3. Collection Fees
4. Remittance Fees
5. Credit Card
6. Share Underwriting/Issue
7. Government Transactions
8. E.Pra. Commission
9. Exchange Fee
C. Others
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
2,530,905
2,530,905
47,129,484
11,393,827
19,156,996
198,842
15,393,164
986,655
18,135,497
67,795,886

76

Previous Year
2,829,571
2,829,571
37,376,768
12,776,052
11,663,267
196,858
11,999,892
740,699
6,660,573
46,866,912
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Other Operating Income		

Schedule 4.21

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. Safe Deposit Lockers Rental
2. Issue & Renewals of Credit Cards
3. Issue & Renewals of ATM Cards
4. Telex / T. T.
5. Service Charges (Loan Processing Fees)
6. Renewal Fees
7. Others
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
2,746,250
331,275
7,015,916
5,761,757
42,914,453
10,745,226
69,514,877

Exchange Gain/Loss		

Previous Year
2,025,750
433,781
3,661,714
3,643,500
40,264,219
10,002,667
60,031,631

Schedule 4.22

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
a. Revaluation Gain (Loss)
b. Trading Gain (except Exchange Fees)
Total Income (Loss)

(in NPR)
This Year
6,864,839
56,263,035
63,127,874

Employees Expenses

Previous Year
13,481,747
34,081,561
47,563,308

Schedule 4.23

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. Salary
2. Allowances
3. Contribution to Provident Fund
4. Training Expenses
5. Uniform
6. Medical
7. Insurance
8. Pension and Gratuity
9. Others
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
71,810,044
58,674,630
6,623,526
3,620,237
5,642,010
113,827
3,935,325
7,242,649
157,662,248

77

Previous Year
54,967,442
44,527,389
4,977,645
1,980,031
4,557,911
97,848
7,040,028
4,257,336
122,405,630
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Other Operating Expenses

Schedule 4.24

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. House Rent
2. Light, Electricity & Water
3. Repair & Maintenance
a. Building
b. Vehicles
c. Others
4. Insurance
5. Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax
6. Office Equipment, Furniture and Repair
7. Travelling Allowances & Expenses
8. Printing & Stationery
9. Books & Periodicals
10. Advertisements and Business Promotion
11. Legal Expenses
12. Donations
13. Expenses relating to Board of Directors
a. Meeting Fees
b. Other Expenses
14. Annual General Meeting Expenses
15. Expenses relating to Audit
a. Audit Fees
b. Other Expenses
16. Commission on Remittances
17. Depreciation on Fixed Assets
18. Amortization of Pre-operating Expenses
19. Share Issue Expenses
20. Technical Services Fee Reimbursement
21. Entertainment Expenses
22. Written Off Expenses
23. Security Expenses
24. Credit Guarantee Premium
25. Commission & Discount
26. Others
(a) Subscription & Membership
(b) Computer Software Maintenance/ Amortisation
(c) Lease Hold Assets Amortisation
(d) Others
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
28,209,549
9,966,897
5,953,177
4,143,317
444,503
1,365,357
3,268,169
3,963,512
1,745,830
3,951,497
5,882,442
24,900
11,269,081
547,916
1,071,508
830,000
241,508
374,945
701,016
497,200
203,816
2,654,001
33,664,734
29,003
103,624
14,586,192
41,326,377
13,265,899
5,127,681
10,413,031
12,519,766
169,294,370

78

Previous Year
24,005,854
8,712,743
4,743,301
3,251,477
292,329
1,199,495
2,328,027
3,832,673
1,649,198
2,866,336
5,310,628
9,717
12,178,884
332,967
1,144,447
972,000
172,447
516,955
605,739
452,000
153,739
2,835,850
26,757,776
3,351,299
208,957
11,555,016
29,222,865
10,021,325
4,234,230
8,630,355
6,336,955
142,169,232
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Provision for Possible Losses

Schedule 4.25

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. Increase in Loan Loss Provision
2. Increase in Provision for Loss on Investment
3. Provision Against Non-Banking Assets
4. Provision Against Other Assets
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
13,634,832
13,634,832

Non-operating Income/(Loss)

Previous Year
28,766,525
28,766,525

Schedule 4.26

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. Profit (Loss) on Sale of Investments
2. Profit (Loss) on Sale of Assets
3. Dividend
4. Subsidies received from Nepal Rastra Bank
a. Reimbursement of losses of specified branches
b. Interest Compensation
c. Exchange Counter
5. Others
a. Amortisation of Goodwill
b. Other non operating income/(Expenses)
Total Non-Operating Income (Loss)

(in NPR)
This Year
432,419
441,268
441,268
873,687

Loan Loss Provision Written Back			

Schedule 4.27

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. Loan Loss Provision Written Back
2. Provision against Non Banking Assets Written Back
3. Investment Provision Written Back
4. Provision against other Assets Written Back
		
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
306,206
492,200
-

Previous Year
215,334
3,429,217
-

798,406

3,644,550

Profit/Loss From Extra - Ordinary Activities		

Schedule 4.28

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
Particulars	
1. Recovery of Written off Loans
2. Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses
3. Loan Write -Offs {4.28 (a)}
4. Other Expenses/Income
5. Profit on sale of NBA
Total

(in NPR)
This Year
807,000
383,547
1,157,800
2,348,347

79

Previous Year
1,029,803
231,799
63,884
63,884
1,325,486

Previous Year
3,258,695
(7,697,609)
72,498
(4,366,416)

80

Schedule 4.28 (a)
(in NPR)

Schedule 4.29
(in NPR)

Note: As per Clause 6 of the Nepal Rastra Bank (The Central Bank of Nepal) Directive No.6, loans given to employees are as per the Human Resource Policy of the Bank. and disclosed under Schedule 4.16 - Other Assets

Outstanding as of Ashad end 2066
Name of Promoter/Director/
Outstanding up to Last Year
Additional Lending
	Recovered in Current Year
Chief Executive	
Principal 	Interest	
Principal 	Interest	
in this year
Principal 	Interest
A. Directors
1. ……………………………………
2. ……………………………………
3. ……………………………………
B. Chief Executive
- 					
1. ……………………………………
2. ……………………………………
C. Promoters
1. ……………………………………
2. ……………………………………
3. ……………………………………
D. Employees		
- 					
1. ……………………………………
2. ……………………………………
3. ……………………………………
E. Shareholders
1. ……………………………………
2. ……………………………………
3. ……………………………………
Total
-

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Statement Of Loans and Advances to Directors/Chief Executive /Promoters/Employees And Shareholders

S.No Types of Loan	
Written off amount	 Types of Security	
Basis of valuation	
Name/Designation	Initiations made for	Remarks
				
of collateral
of Loan Approver
recovery of loan
1
Working Capital Loan						
2
Project Loan						
3
Fixed Capital Loan						
4
Personal Loan						
5
Other Loan						
Total Loan
- 					

For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)

Statement Of Loan Written-Off					
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Capital Adequacy Table		

Schedule 4.30 (A1)

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

1. 1 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES 	Current Year As at	
		
Ashad end 2068
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
18,747,444,885
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
868,462,971
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
26,101,695
Adjustment under Pillar II		
d 2% of Total RWE under Supervisory review
392,840,191
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (a+b+c)
20,034,849,742

Previous Year As at
Ashad end 2067
15,774,906,694
588,086,230
69,330,592

1.2 CAPITAL	Current Year As at	
		
Ashad end 2068
Core Capital (Tier 1)
1,962,298,157
a Paid up Equity Share Capital
1,613,520,500
b Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares		
c Share Premium
13,071,581
d Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
80,676,025
e Statutory General Reserves
230,025,003
f Retained Earnings
11,274,078
g Unaudited current year cumulative profit
h Debenture Redemption Reserve
150,000,000
I Capital Adjustment Reserve
j Deferred Tax Reserve
k Other Free Reserve
l Less: Goodwill
m Less: Miscellaneous Expenses not written off
n Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions
(9,740,031)
o Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
(126,082,000)
p Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits
q Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
(447,000)
r Less: Reciprocal crossholdings
s Less: Other Deductions
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)
367,747,294
a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share		
b Subordinated Term Debt
200,000,000
c Hybrid Capital Instruments 		
d General loan loss provision
152,937,758
e Investment Adjustment Reserve
3,440,197
f Assets Revaluation Reserve
g Exchange Equalization Reserve
11,369,339
h Other Reserves		
Total Capital Fund (Tier I and Tier II)
2,330,045,451

Previous Year As at
Ashad end 2067
1,834,867,663
1,613,520,500

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS	Current Year As at	
		
Ashad end 2068
Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures
9.79%
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures
11.63%

Previous Year As at
Ashad end 2067
11.17%
13.65%

81

16,432,323,516

13,071,581
154,995,984
17,042,133
100,000,000
2,506,495
(9,740,031)
(56,082,000)
(447,000)

408,007,586
250,000,000
146,813,790
1,540,667
9,653,130
2,242,875,249

82

(in NPR)

Schedule 4.30 (B)

				 Current Year			
Previous Year
A. Balance Sheet Exposures	
Book Value	
Specific
Eligible CRM
Net Value	Risk Weight	Risk Weighted
Net Value	Risk Weighted
	a	
Provision b	
c
d=a-b-c	e	
Exposures f=d*e	
d=a-b-c
Exposures
								
f=d*e
Cash Balance
356,735,989
356,735,989
0%
244,271,844
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank
1,866,490,707
1,866,490,707
0%
- 1,219,716,716
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities
1,969,665,489
1,969,665,489
0%
- 1,470,354,585
All other Claims on Government of Nepal
155,927,141 			
155,927,141
0%
166,145,539
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities
All other claims on Nepal Rastra Bank
- 			
0%
1,000,000
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA Rating 0-1)		
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA -2) 			
20%
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA -3) 			
50%
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA-4-6) 			
100%
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA -7) 			
150%
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC 				
0%
Claims on Multilateral Development Banks (MDB’s)				
0%
recognized by the framework								
Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks 			
100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 			
20%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 			
50%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 			
100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7)
50,000,000 		
50,000,000
150%
75,000,000
50,000,000
75,000,000
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy
427,118,576 		
427,118,576
20%
85,423,715
871,285,463
174,257,093
requirements
- 							
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital
741,212 		
741,212
100%
741,212
10,701,255
10,701,255
adequacy requirements
- 							
Claims on foreign banks established within SAARC region having
9,301,215 		
9,301,215
20%
1,860,243
509,596,931
101,919,386
capital adequacy ratio in excess of 1% than regulatory requirement								
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1)
315,257,648 		
315,257,648
20%
63,051,530 1,476,874,319
295,374,864
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2)
- 		
50%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6)
711,529,884 		
711,529,884
100%
711,529,884
12,305,202
12,305,202
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7)
- 		
150%
Claims on Domestic Corporates
8,894,077,542 		
3,959,500
8,890,118,042
100%
8,890,118,042 8,055,855,302
8,055,855,302
Claims on Foreign Corporates
- 			
20%
Claims on Foreign Corporates
- 			
50%
Claims on Foreign Corporates
- 			
100%
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7)
- 			
150%
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not overdue)
281,945,172 		
18,079,952
263,865,220
75%
197,898,915
40,529,333
30,396,999
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Overdue) -Except Granularity
236,526,585 		
236,526,585
100%
236,526,585
183,341,564
183,341,564
Claims secured by residential properties
1,923,516,986 		
559,000
1,922,957,986
60%
1,153,774,792 2,302,618,891
1,381,571,334
Unsecured portion of claims secured by residential
- 			
150%
properties
- 							
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue)
308,132,432 		
308,132,432
100%
308,132,432
187,383
187,383
Claims secured by Commercial real estate
2,825,327,020 		
298,999
2,825,028,021
100%
2,825,028,021 3,163,380,775
3,163,380,775
Past due claims (except for claim secured by residential
263,831,482
35,549,282 		
228,282,200
150%
342,423,300
-

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk					
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22,325,927,697

735,064,637

132,623,391

21,462,917,744 		

16,042,887,711 20,552,531,385 14,430,290,321

Previous Year
334,242,259
501,363,388
9,023,500
13,535,250
740,809
740,809
430,359,716
430,359,716

TOTAL
Total RWE for credit Risk (A) +(B)

4,982,908,825
27,308,836,522

735,064,637

180,907,995
313,531,386

4,802,000,830 		
26,264,918,574 		

2,704,557,174 2,910,277,817
18,747,444,885 23,462,809,201

1,344,616,373
15,774,906,694

				Current Year			
Previous Year
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures	
Gross Book	
Specific
Eligible CRM
Net Value	Risk Weight	Risk Weighted
Net Value	Risk Weighted
	Value	
Provision	
c
d=a-b-c	e	
Exposures	
d=a-b-c
Exposures
	a	b				
f=d*e		
f=d*e
Revocable Commitments				
0%
Bills Under Collection
85,712,856 			
85,712,856
0%
59,680,323
Forward Foreign Exchange Contract
187,409,793 			
187,409,793
10%
18,740,979
87,637,493
8,763,749
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Up to 6 months
796,082,039
67,552,012
728,530,027
20%
145,706,005
817,776,287
163,555,257
(domestic)					
ECA Rating 0-1 				
20%
ECA Rating 2 				
50%
ECA Rating 3-6 				
100%
ECA Rating 7 			
150%
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6 months
16,198,200 		
16,198,200
50%
(domestic)								
ECA Rating 0-1 			
20%
ECA Rating 2 			
50%
ECA Rating 3-6 			
100%
ECA Rating 7 			
150%
Bid Bond and Performance Bond (domestic)
1,706,178,756
67,849,978
1,638,328,778
50%
819,164,389
858,683,602
429,341,801
ECA Rating 0-1 			
20%
ECA Rating 2 			
50%
ECA Rating 3-6 				
100%
ECA Rating 7 			
150%
Underwriting commitments 			
50%
Lending of Bank’s Securities or Posting of Securities as			
100%
collateral								
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with recourse			
100%
(including repo/ reverse repo)								
Advance Payment Guarantee
1,269,710,904
14,370,932
1,255,339,972
100%
1,255,339,972
253,027,481
253,027,481
Financial Guarantee
4,080,000
408,000
3,672,000
100%
3,672,000
3,312,000
3,312,000
Acceptances and Endorsements
311,466,383
14,528,874
296,937,509
100%
296,937,509
369,741,516
369,741,516
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and Securities
100%
Irrevocable Credit commitments
551,341,969
551,341,969
20%
110,268,394
429,430,682
85,886,136
Other Contingent Liabilities
54,727,926 		
54,727,926
100%
54,727,926
30,988,432
30,988,432

TOTAL	

				Current Year			
High Risk claims (Venture capital, private equity
521,481,727
109,725,941
411,755,787
150%
617,633,680
investments, personal loans and credit card receivables)
- 			
Investments in equity of institutions not listed in the stock
40,523,500
40,523,500
150%
60,785,250
exchange
- 			
Investments in equity of institutions listed in the stock
740,809
740,809
100%
740,809
exchange
- 			
Other Loans and Advances
150%
Other Assets (as per attachment)
1,167,056,582
699,515,355
472,219,301
100%
472,219,301
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84

Total

Credit exposures	Deposits	Deposits	
Gold
Govt.& G'tee of Sec/G’tee of
G'tee of G'tee of Sec/G'tee of
	with Bank	with other		
NRB Govt. of	Other domestic
MDBs	Foreign	
		banks/FI		 Securities	
Nepal
Sovereigns 	banks		
Banks	
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(I)
Balance Sheet Exposures				
						
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA-2)									
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA-3)										
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA-4-6)										
Investment in Foreign Government Securities (ECA-7)										
Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks										
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1)										
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2)										
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6)										
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7)										
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital										
adequacy requirements										
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital										
adequacy requirements										
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1)										
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2)										
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6)										
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7)						
Claims on Domestic Corporates
3,959,500
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1)									
-

3,959,500

-

-

-

(in NPR)

Schedule 4.30 (c)

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants		
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Schedule 4.30 (C) CONt’d....

Credit exposures	Deposits	Deposits	
Gold
Govt.& G'tee of Sec/G'tee of
G'tee of G'tee of Sec/G'tee of
Total
	with Bank	with other		
NRB Govt. of	Other domestic
MDBs	Foreign	
		banks/FI		 Securities	
Nepal
Sovereigns	banks		
Banks	
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(I)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2)										
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6)										
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7)										
Regulatory Retail Portfolio
18,079,952 			
- 						 18,079,952
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Overdue) -Except Granularity
- 									
Claims secured by residential properties (with condition)
Claims secured by residential properties (without condition)
559,000 			
- 						
559,000
Unsecured portion of claims secured by residential properties										
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue)									
Claims secured by Commercial real estate
298,999 									
298,999
Past due claims (except for claim secured by										
residential properties)										
High Risk claims (Venture capital, private equity
107,453,927
- 		
2,272,014 						 109,725,941
investments, personal loans and credit card receivables)									
Investments in equity of institutions not listed in the										
stock exchange										
Investments in equity of institutions listed in the										
stock exchange										
Other Loans and Advances										
Cash and cash items in transit										
Fictitious Assets										
Other Assets (as per attachment)										
Off Balance Sheet Exposures										
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Up to 6
67,552,012 									 67,552,012
months (domestic)

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
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Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants		
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14,370,932
408,000
14,528,874
-

-

-

67,849,978
-

16,198,200

Total

Schedule 4.30 (C) CONt’d....

Credit exposures	Deposits	Deposits	
Gold
Govt.& G'tee of Sec/G'tee of
G'tee of G'tee of Sec/G'tee of
	with Bank	with other		
NRB Govt. of	Other domestic
MDBs	Foreign	
		banks/FI		 Securities	
Nepal
Sovereigns	banks		
Banks	
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(I)
ECA Rating 0-1										
ECA Rating 2										
ECA Rating 3-6										
ECA Rating 7										
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6
16,198,200 									
months (domestic)										
ECA Rating 0-1										
ECA Rating 2										
ECA Rating 3-6										
ECA Rating 7										
Bid Bond and Performance Bond (domestic)
67,849,978 									
ECA Rating 0-1										
ECA Rating 2										
ECA Rating 3-6										
ECA Rating 7										
Underwriting commitments										
Lending of Bank’s Securities or Posting of										
Securities as collateral										
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with										
recourse (including repo/ reverse repo)										
Advance Payment Guarantee
14,370,932 									
Financial Guarantee
408,000 									
Acceptances and Endorsements
14,528,874 									
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and Securities										
Irrevocable Credit commitments										
Other Contingent Liabilities										

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Eligible Credit Risk Mitigants		
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk		

Schedule 4.30 (D)

As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

(in NPR)

Particulars		Current Year		
2009/10
2008/09
2007/08
Net Interest Income
652,082,650
386,637,141
289,134,528
Commission and Discount Income
46,866,912
29,634,632
20,943,463
Other Operating Income
60,031,631
70,917,293
25,482,082
Exchange Fluctuation Income
47,563,308
51,004,554
46,637,081
Additional Interest Suspense during the period
7,333,071
2,657,596
Gross income (a)
813,877,572 540,851,215 382,197,154
Alfa (b)
15%
15%
15%
Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(a×b)]
122,081,636
81,127,682
57,329,573
Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c)		
86,846,297
Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e)		
10
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(d×e)]		
868,462,971

Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk		
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)					

Previous Year

58,808,623
10
588,086,230

Schedule 4.30 (E)
(in NPR)

			Current Year		
Previous Year
S. No.	CURRENCY
Open Position (FCY)
Open Position	
Relevant Open	Relevant Open
				
Position	
Position
1
AED
(1,800)
(34,011)
34,011
12,691
2
AUD
(640)
(48,435)
48,435
66,683
3
CAD
4
CHF
5
CNY
6
DKK
(243,128)
(3,283,444)
3,283,444
7
EUR
(19,941)
(2,012,154)
2,012,154
577,215
8
GBP
23,937
2,748,325
2,748,325
460,177
9
HKD
(1,000)
(9,085)
9,085
10
INR
(18,918,435)
(30,283,684)
30,283,684
121,977,540
11
JPY
(254,434)
(229,372)
229,372
360,216
12
KRW				
13
MYR
(600)
(14,112)
14,112
17,467
14
NLG
15
NPR				
16
QAR
(150)
(2,915)
2,915
104,050
17
SAR
(4,000)
(75,520)
75,520
18
SEK
19
SGD
46,370
20
THB
21
USD
(189,133)
(13,462,332)
13,462,332
15,038,775
Total Open Position (a)			
52,203,389
138,661,184
	Fixed Percentage (b)			
5%
5%
	Capital Charge for Market Risk {c=(a*b)}			
2,610,169
6,933,059
	Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (d)		
10
10
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure {e=(c*d)}			
26,101,695
69,330,592
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Principal Indicators						

Schedule 4.31

(At Least for Previous 5 year)

(in NPR)

Particulars	Indicators	F. Y.	F. Y.	F. Y.	F. Y.	F. Y.	F. Y.
		

2062/2063

2063/2064

2064/2065

2065/2066

2066/2067

2067/2068

%

21.72%

27.10%

31.41%

35.12%

40.55%

40.34%

2. Earnings Per Share

NPR

5.80

10.75

16.45

20.70

24.12

23.25

3. Market Value per Share

NPR

368.00

690.00

1,113.00

1,062.00

570.00

340.00

Ratio

63.44

64.18

67.66

51.31

23.63

14.62

1. Percentage of Net Profit/Gross Income

4. Price Earning Ratio
5. Dividend on share capital (Bonus share
+ Cash dividend)

%

-

-

21.05%

5.26%

13.00%

15.79%

6. Cash Dividend on share capital

%

-

-

1.05%

0.26%

13.00%

10.79%

%

8.30%

7.84%

7.85%

8.76%

9.97%

12.11%

%

42.89%

43.43%

46.27%

43.34%

46.27%

48.22%

Borrowings

%

5.05%

4.64%

4.45%

5.05%

6.42%

8.09%

10. Exchange Fluctuation Gain/Total Income

%

5.79%

8.64%

12.20%

9.48%

5.90%

6.79%

7. Interest Income/Loans & Advances and
Investments
8. Employee Expenses/Total Operating
Expenses
9. Interest Expenses on Total Deposits and

11. Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses

%

11.86%

16.39%

21.62%

23.54%

27.62%

25.49%

12. Net Profit/Loans & Advances

%

1.01%

1.21%

1.47%

1.63%

2.32%

2.49%

13. Net Profit/ Total Assets

%

0.79%

0.95%

1.13%

1.22%

1.66%

1.76%

14. Total Credit/Deposit

%

96.30%

85.78%

89.72%

83.88%

81.49%

84.10%

15. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets

%

1.94%

1.63%

1.79%

1.28%

1.35%

1.54%

16. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weightage
Assets							
a. Core Capital

%

13.71%

11.33%

10.10%

8.47%

11.17%

b. Supplementary Capital

%

1.25%

1.10%

1.07%

3.01%

2.54%

1.84%

c. Total Capital Fund

%

14.96%

12.43%

11.17%

11.48%

13.71%

11.63%

17. Liquidity (CRR)

%

5.67%

5.65%

5.65%

8.61%

7.24%

9.22%

18. Non Performing Loans/Total Loans

%

0.78%

0.35%

0.13%

0.08%

0.12%

0.90%

19. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

%

3.24%

3.20%

3.40%

3.71%

3.55%

4.02%

NPR

649,048,621

843,946,939 1,145,533,225 1,342,295,325 1,912,330,490

2,113,376,723

21. Total Shares

Number

6,100,000

7,296,970

9,131,963

10,980,861

16,135,205

16,135,205

22. Total Employees

Number

145

186

252

299

347

393

20. Book Net worth

88

9.79%
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Schedule 4.32:
Significant Accounting Policies

i) General Information
Laxmi Bank Limited (“the Bank”) is a
limited liability company domiciled
in Nepal. The address of its registered
office is in Hattisar, Nepal. The Bank
has a primary listing on the Nepal
Stock Exchange Limited.

Nepal Rastra Bank Directives although
this practice is not in accordance with
NAS 7 (Revenue Accounting), which
prescribes that the revenue should
be recognized on accrual basis. The
practice followed by the Bank (as per
NRB Directives) is more conservative.

Appropriation Account as per Nepal
Rastra Bank Directives.

The Bank is running a commercial
banking business in Nepal. The
financial statements were authorized
for issue by the Board of Directors.

Interest income on investments is
accounted for on accrual basis.

x) Loans and Advances including Bills Purchased
Loans and advances, overdrafts and
bills purchased include direct finance
provided to customers. These include
working capital loans, overdrafts, term
loans, consumer loans, supply finance
and loans given to deprived sectors. All
credit exposures are classified as per
NRB Directives. Loans and advances,
overdrafts and bills purchased are
shown net of provisions.

ii) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies
applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.
iii) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Nepal
Accounting Standards (“NAS”) issued
by the Nepal Accounting Standard
Board except otherwise stated,
Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP”), Bank & Financial
Institutions Act (BAFIA), presentation
and other requirements of NRB
Directives and in conformity with the
Companies Act.
iv) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are presented
in Nepalese Rupees, rounded to the
nearest Rupee and are prepared on the
historical cost basis. The preparation
of financial statements in conformity
with NAS and GAAP requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise
judgment in process of applying the
Bank’s accounting policies.
v) Interest Income
Interest income on loans and advances
are recognized on cash basis as per the

vi) Commission Income
All the commission incomes are
accounted for on accrual basis.
However, it is the policy of the Bank
to recognize income during the
current financial year if the income
is generated out of a transaction
with tenor less than 12 months and
commission income is less than NPR
100,000.
vii) Dividend Income
Dividends on equity shares are
recognized when the right to receive
dividend is established. When bonus
shares are received, only numbers of
shares are increased without changing
the cost price of shares.
viii) Foreign Exchange Transactions
Foreign currency assets and liabilities
are translated into Nepalese Rupees
at the prevailing mid exchange rate
ruling on the Balance Sheet date.
Income realized from the difference
between buying and selling rates of
Foreign Exchange is accounted for on a
daily basis and shown as “Trading Gain”
under “Exchange Gain” in Schedule 4.22.
Gains/ losses arising due to fluctuation
in exchange rate of different foreign
currencies is accounted for on a daily
basis and shown as “Revaluation
Gain”. 25% of such revaluation gain is
transferred to Exchange Fluctuation
Reserve through Profit and Loss
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ix) Interest Expense
Interest on deposit liabilities and
borrowings are accounted for on
accrual basis.

The amount recovered from borrowers
is first applied to interest recoverable
and remaining amount is applied
against settlement of outstanding
principal.
xi) Staff Loans
Loans and advances granted to staff
are in accordance with the rules of
the Bank and are shown under Other
Assets as per the Nepal Rastra Bank
Directives.
xii) Loan Loss Provision
The provision for possible losses
for loans and advances and bills
purchased are provided at the rates
ranging from 1% to 100% according to
the classification of such risk assets as
per Nepal Rastra Bank Directives.
xiii) Write Off
Unrecoverable Loan accounts graded
‘Loss’ in compliance with Nepal Rastra
Bank Directives are written off in the
books as per criteria/ policy upon
approval by the Credit Committee/
Board, without prejudice to Bank’s
right to recovery.
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Amounts recovered against loans
written off in earlier years are
recognized as income in the year of
recovery.
xiv) Investments
Investments are classified as held for
trading, held to maturity and available
for sale.
a. Held for Trading:
Investments that are made for the
purpose of generating profit from
short term fluctuations in price are
classified under this category. These
investments are marked to market and
differences reflected in the profit and
loss account.
b. Held to Maturity:
The investments made with positive
intent and ability of the bank to hold
till maturity are classified as held to
maturity investments. The held to
maturity investments are valued at
amortized cost i.e. the cost price less
any impairments (if applicable). The
impairments are charged to the profit
and loss accounts.
c. Available for Sale:
All other investments that are neither
“held for trading” nor “held to maturity”
are classified under this category. These
investments are marked to market
on a regular basis and the difference
adjusted through reserves (equity).
All Investments are subject to regular
review as required by Nepal Rastra
Bank Directives.
xv)Fixed Assets and Depreciation
a. Fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation.
b. Assets with a value less than NPR
5,000 are charged off as a revenue
expense in the year of purchase
irrespective of its useful life.

c. Depreciation is charged to Profit &
Loss Account on a Straight Line Basis
over the estimated useful life of items
of fixed assets. Land is not depreciated.
The useful life of the assets are as
follows:
Nature of Assets 	Useful Life
(years)

Furniture
Equipments
Vehicles
Computers
Free hold premises

5
5
5-7
5
20 - 40

d. Fixed assets under construction,
advances paid towards acquisition
of fixed assets and costs of assets
not ready for use before year end
are shown as capital construction
(pending capitalization).
xvi) Non Banking Assets
Non Banking Assets (NBA) are valued
at lower of receivable amount
(Principal & Interest) or fair market
value of the assets acquired. Provisions
for NBA are made in accordance with
the Nepal Rastra Bank Directives.
xvii) Software Expenses
Acquired computer software licenses
are capitalized on the basis of cost
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. The costs are
amortized over its estimated useful life.
xviii) Amortization
Amortization is charged to Profit and
Loss Account on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful life of the
intangible assets. Intangible assets
are recognized from the date they are
available for use. The estimated useful
life is as follows:
Computer Software

5 years

Expenses incurred on leasehold property
are amortized over the period of 5 years

90

or initial lease period whichever is earlier
on straight line basis.
xix) Employee Benefits
a. Provident fund
Provident fund is recognized at the
time of contribution to the fund which
is independent to the Bank.
b. Gratuity
As per HR Policy Guide of the Bank
gratuity is calculated on accrual basis
and funded in an approved retirement
fund independent to the Bank.
xx) Stationery Stock
Stationery purchased are charged to
revenue at the time of purchase as
most stationeries are specific to Laxmi
Bank Ltd.
xxi) Provision for Taxation
Income tax expense represents the
sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.
Provision for taxation is made on the basis
of the taxable profits computed for the
current accounting period in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 2058.
Deferred taxes are accounted using the
asset and liability method. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities, and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled
based on the laws that have been
enacted or subsequently enacted by
the reporting date.
xxii) Lease
Assets held under finance leases
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are initially recognized as assets of
the bank at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the
financial statement as a finance lease
obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned
between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognized immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets.
Contingent rentals are recognized as
expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.
Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term,

except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.
xxiii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The Bank creates a provision when
there is a present obligation as a result
of past events that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will
not, require an outflow of resources.
When there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are not recognized
in the financial statements. However,
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contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain
that an economic benefit will arise,
the asset and related income are
recognized in the period in which the
change occurs.
Liabilities on account of forward
contracts are reported under
Contingent liabilities under
subheading Outstanding Liabilities
for Forward Exchange Contract.
These include notional principal on
outstanding forward rate agreements.
xxiv) Previous Year’s Figures
Previous year’s figures are grouped
or regrouped wherever necessary in
order to facilitate comparison.
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Schedule 4.33: Notes to Accounts

1. Interest Income and Interest Suspense
Entire interest receivable on loans
& advances as of year end has been
transferred to interest suspense
account as per the Directives of NRB.
Interest due as of 32 Ashad 2068 and
collected during Shrawan 2068 is
not recognized as income although
permitted by NRB through its circular
dated 2068/04/03.

7. Investment Adjustment
Reserve
Investment adjustment reserve as at
32 Ashad 2068 (16 July 2011) stands at
NPR 3,440,197 (2% of the Investment
in shares available for sale in line with
NRB guidelines) and NPR 1,899,830
is transferred from Profit and Loss
Appropriation Account as per the
requirement of Capital Adequacy
framework.

2. Provision for Staff Bonus
Provision for staff bonus amounting to
NPR 53,940,854 has been computed
and provided for at 10% of net profit
after bonus.

8. Fixed Assets
Land and building located at Hattisar
is in joint ownership with Everest
Insurance Company Limited, Gorkha
Brewery Limited and Himalayan Snax
Pvt. Limited. Laxmi Bank owns 40.34%
of the total value of the property.
Depreciation on Building is charged on
our portion of ownership only.

3. Staff Housing Fund
As the term of service of the staff has
a provision for extending housing
loans to the eligible staff, a separate
housing fund has not been created as
prescribed by the Labor Act, 2048.
4. Gratuity Fund
Gratuity fund maintained with Laxmi
Bank Retirement Fund, an approved
retirement fund, has sufficient balance
to cover the gratuity liability (Gratuity
liability is NPR 19,755,976 outstanding
as of 16 July 2011) calculated as per
accrual liability basis in accordance
with the HR Policy Guide of the Bank.
5. General Reserve
As per the requirement of Nepal Rastra
Bank, 20% of the current years profit has
been transferred to General Reserve.
6. Exchange Fluctuation Fund
25% of the Revaluation gain of NPR
6,864,839, amounting to NPR 1,716,210
has been transferred to Exchange
Fluctuation Fund by debiting Profit
and Loss Appropriation Account as per
Nepal Rastra Bank Directives.

9. Income Tax Issues
The tax authorities have raised
an additional demand of NPR
1,661,042.71 on tax returns filed
under self assessment by HISEF for the
financial year 2057/58. The Company
had disputed the demand of tax
authorities and filed an appeal with the
Revenue Tribunal. Pending decision,
the Bank has shown such disputed tax
demand under contingent liability.
The Bank has filed tax returns to the
Large Taxpayers’ Office up to the
financial years 2066/67 under self
assessment procedures.
On the assessment of the Income Tax
Returns of the bank for the fiscal years
2060/61, 2061/62 (Laxmi Bank), and
2062/63 Large Taxpayers’ Office (LTO)
has raised an additional demand of
NPR 5,153,916.55 for 2060/61, NPR
9,618,611 for 2061/62 (Laxmi Bank)
and NPR 10,645,185 for 2062/63
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respectively. The bank disputed the
demand as not tenable and has filed
appeals with the Revenue Tribunal. The
amount of demand has been disclosed
as contingent liability on Income Tax
under schedule 4.17. The bank has
paid NPR 9,121,811 as deposits against
above claim.
The Bank has received as additional
demand of NPR 10,663,574 from
LTO relating to tax returns for the
year 2063/64 on which the Bank
has contested as not tenable and
contemplating filing an appeal with
the Director General for administrative
review. The amount of claim is shown
as contingent liability on Income Tax
under schedule 4.17.
Pending decision no provisions have
been made against these additional
demands.
For fiscal year 2061/62 (Hisef related) LTO
has raised an additional demand of NPR
16,079,489 which the bank has disputed
and filed an appeal for administrative
review. The amount of demand has
been disclosed as contingent liability
on Income Tax under schedule 4.17.
The bank has deposited NPR 3,048,000
against above demand. However, the
Inland Revenue Department (IRD) has
returned the file to LTO for revision citing
possibility of double counting of taxable
income by Large Taxpayers Office.
10. None of the bank’s borrowings are against the collateral of its own assets.

11. Investment in Share Capital
of other Corporate
a. Nepal Bank Limited
Investment in shares of Nepal Bank
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Limited was made by then HISEF
Finance Limited. The bank has not
been able to dispose off these shares
as these have been delisted by Nepal
Stock Exchange Limited, The bank has
created a 100% loss provision against
the investment.
b. Himalayan Distillery Limited
The Bank (then Hisef Finance Limited)
had underwritten the shares of
Himalayan Distillery Limited. As the
shares were not fully subscribed, the
bank had accepted those shares by
paying NPR 50 per share (call amount
at that point of time). Since the Bank
had not paid the second call amount of
NPR 50 per share, Himalayan Distillery
Limited had forfeited those shares,
against which the Bank has filed an
appeal with the court. Himalayan
distillery has also filed case against our
appeal. The Supreme Court, in its order,
has cancelled the appeal of Himalayan
distillery but the distillery has not
acted as per the decision.
c. Laxmi Capital Market Ltd
In line with the guidelines of Nepal Rastra
Bank, Laxmi bank has opened a merchant
banking subsidiary – “Laxmi Capital
Market Ltd” by investing NPR 70,000,000
as promoter share (70% of the total issued
capital) during the year. The subsidiary
has obtained license for commercial
operation from SEBON on 2067/9/13
under Securities Businessperson
(Merchant Banker) Rules 2007.
d. Laxmi Microfinance Development
Bank Ltd
Laxmi Bank Ltd has opened a class
“D” financial institution - Laxmi
Microfinance Development Bank Ltd
to carry out the microfinance business.
The subsidiary is in process of obtaining
operating license from NRB. As per the

requirement of NRB, Laxmi Bank Ltd has
deposited NPR 35,000,000 as advance
against share as of 16 July 2011.
12. Lien over Investments
The Bank has made placements with
Standard Chartered Bank Plc (London
and Singapore), amounting to USD
2,600,140.01 as of 16 July 2011, which
was under lien as per the lien letter signed
with Standard Chartered Bank Plc.
13. Related Party Transaction
Transactions with related companies:
Total insurance premium paid to
Everest Insurance Company Limited (a
related party under common holding)
during the FY 2010/11 amounts
to NPR 3,658,194.16. Commission
received from Prime Life insurance
Co Ltd (a related party with our 15%
shareholding) during the FY 2010/11
amounts to NPR 927,054.13.
In addition, the Bank also accepts
deposits from directors and related

companies in the normal course of
business.
Details of Compensation paid to key
management personnel during the year:
Short term employee benefit paid to
Key Management Personnel (which
includes CEO, Company Secretary
and all other managerial level staff)
during the fiscal year amounts to NPR
53,642,753. In addition, they are entitled
to other benefits and facility as per the
Human Resource Policy of the bank and
employment terms and conditions.
There is no post employment, other long
term or share based payments to the
employees. Employees are entitled to
gratuity (as termination benefits) as per
the Human Resource Policy of the bank.
Transaction with the members of Board
of Directors during the year: (in NPR)
Meeting fees		

830,000

Other meeting expenses

241,508

14. Reconciliation Status
Reconciliation	
Status	

Amount in NPR’000

Total	Up to 3
Amount

3 to 9

9 Months	 1 Year to

Months	 Months	to 1 Year

3 Years	

More than
3 Years

Branch
Reconciliation
Agency Accounts

-

-

-

-

-

-

879,167

844,661

25,209

1,973

7,297

26

The debit and credit differences have been cumulated irrespective of their
signs. Differences stated in the above table are identified and have been/ will be
adjusted in due course of business.
15. Lease
Finance Lease
The bank has not entered into any
finance lease and does not have any
obligation in respect of finance lease.
Operating Lease
The bank has entered into a lease
arrangement for office premises

93

and ATM space outside of the branch
for different periods, which can be
terminated by either party giving prior
notice as stipulated in the contract
/ agreement. The future minimum
lease payment under non-cancelable
operating leases, where the bank is
lessee is NIL. There is no rental expense
under non-cancelable operating leases.
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16. Summary of Loans and Advances Disbursed, Recovered and
Principal & Interest Written off
		
Amount in NPR’000
Particulars	

Amount

Loans Disbursed
Loans Recovered
Loans Written off
Interest written off

42,492,563
41,839,496
0
0

17. Summary of Changes in Deposit Liabilities
Particulars	

Previous year
32/3/2067

Call Deposits
Current Deposits
Fixed Deposits
Saving Deposits
Margin & Other Deposits

Amount in NPR’000

Net Changes 	Current year
during the year

32/3/2068

(16/07/2010)		

(16/07/2011)

5,455,436
819,961
7,821,458
3,684,916
301,187

(781,612)
(70,411)
1,632,110
(469,193)
(94,224)

4,673,823
749,549
9,453,568
3,215,722
206,963

18. Weighted Average Interest Spread
Rate %

Average Rate of return from loans and advances and investments
Average Rate on deposits & borrowings
Net Spread

12.11%
8.09%
4.02%

19. Summary of Concentration of Exposure

Amount in NPR’000

Particulars	Loans, Advances and 	Deposits and	Contingents		

Total amount as on 16/07/2011
Highest exposure to a single unit
Percentage of exposure to/from single unit (in %)

Bills purchased

Borrowings

15,389,472
464,532
3.02%

18,649,627
1,258,212
6.75%

94
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20. Classification of Assets and Liabilities based on Maturity
Amount in NPR Lacs
Assets	

1- 7

8 - 30

31-90

91-180

181 - 270

270-365

	Days	Days	Days	Days	Days	Days	

Above One	

Total

Years	 Amount

1. Cash Balance

3,554

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,554

2. Bank Balance

20,012

-

-

-

-

-

-

20,012
4,157

4,157

-

-

-

-

-

-

4. Money at Call and Short Notice

3. Investment in Foreign Banks

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5. Government Securities

-

1,990

10,189

4,400

737

2,210

-

19,526

6. NRB Bonds

-

-

-

-

-

-

171

171

7. Inter Bank Loans and Advances

-		

7,120			

-

1,424

8,544

8.Loans and Advances
9. Interest Income expected
10. Reverse Repo

11,105

13,432

25,821

17,677

13,951

13,542

58,366

153,895

389

1,278

3,334

5,002

5,002

5,002

-

20,006

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11. Funds Receivable from others under
Contracts/Commitments		

-						

12. Payment of Facilities under Serial
no:20,21 and 22								
13. Others								

Total Assets	

39,218

16,700

46,465

27,078

19,689

20,754

59,961

229,865

Liabilities						
14. Current Deposits

2,998

375

375

375

375

375

2,623

7,495

15. Savings Deposits

32

64

64

322

482

643

30,549

32,157

16. Fixed Deposits

-

6,898

18,906

22,496

14,167

21,634

10,438

94,540

17. Bonds

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,500

3,500

18. Borrowings

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Demand/Short Notice

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Inter Banks/ Finance Companies

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Refinance

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Others
19. Call Account

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,695

2,337

2,337

2,337

2,337

2,337

16,358

46,738

19. Other Liabilities 								
Sundry Creditors

413

-

-

-

Interest Payable expected

168

552

1,440

2,161

-			
2,161

2,161

-

413
8,642

20. Payment to Other Institutions
under commitment								
Total Liabilities	

22,306

10,227

23,122

27,690

19,522

27,150

63,469

193,486

Net Financial Assets	

16,911

6,474

23,343

(612)

167

(6,396)

(3,508)

36,380

Cumulative Net Financial Assets	

16,911

23,385

46,728

46,117

46,284

39,888

36,380

72,759
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21. Credit Concentration

Amount in NPR Lacs

Sectors	

Number

Principal	Interest

1 Agricultural
584
597
2 Fishery			
3 Mining
0
0
4 Manufacturing
523
33,578
5 Construction
883
33,183
6 Electricity, Gas and Water
28
1,145
7 Metal Prod, Machinery & Electronic Equip & assemblage
13
336
8 Transport, Communication and Public Utilities
90
8,242
9 Wholesaler & Retailer
949
25,264
10 Finance, Insurance and Real Estate
514
34,444
11 Hotel or Restaurant
6
398
12 Other Services
112
6,074
13 Consumption Loans
852
4,998
14 Local Government
1
1,346
15 Others
279
4,289
Total
4,834
153,895

2
0
24
208
0
0
14
16
58
2
23
16
0
7
372

22. Details of Gross Non Banking Assets (NPR)
Previous Year
Addition During	Disposal During	
	the year
the Year
517,700
492,200

Balance at the end of the Year
25,500

23. Details of Lease Hold Assets Amortization
Lease Hold Assets	

This year Addition /

Amount in NPR
Amortization	

Net Balance at the end

up to Last Year	Deletion (net)	During the year

of the year

28,818,662

20,133,415

10,413,031

38,539,047

24. Tax liability reconciliation
Reconciliation of Profit as per financial statement is reconciled with Taxable profit to compute tax liability as follows:
Amount in NPR’000
Particulars	
Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation as per Schedule 24 considered separately
Equipment & furniture charged to revenue considered in depreciation
Leasehold amortization considered in depreciation
Software amortization considered in depreciation
Repairs and Maintenance added to the Pool as per Income Tax Act
Less: Adjustments for
Depreciation as per Income Tax Act
Profit on sale of fixed assets considered separately
Dividend income
Taxable Profit as per Income Tax Act 2058
Corporate Income Tax @ 30%

Amount
539,408
33,665
1,745
10,413
2,281
1,379
(50,186)
(432)
538,273
161,482
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25. Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset)
Carrying amount of Assets & Liabilities where temporary differences arise as on 32 Ashad 2068 (16.07 2011) are as follows:
Amount in NPR
Particulars 	Carrying Amounts	

Tax Base	

Net Temporary Difference

Fixed Assets
224,759,548
223,844,615
Net Temporary Differences
224,759,548
223,844,615
Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) as at Ashad end 2068 @ 30% 			
Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) till Ashad end 2067			
Deferred Tax Income / (Expense) charged to Profit and Loss Account			

(914,933)
(914,933)
(274,480)
2,506,495
(2,780,975)

Deferred Tax Liability as of 32 Ashad
2068 (16 July 2011) is NPR 274,480.
NPR 2,780,975 has been recognized as
deferred tax expense in Profit and Loss
Account in the current year.
The Deferred Tax Reserve created
till previous year amounting to NPR
2,506,495 has been credited to the
Profit and Loss Appropriation Account
as no more Reserve is required.
26. 8.5% Laxmi Bank Debenture,
2072
The Bank issued 350,000 unsecured
debentures of NPR 1,000 each for NPR
350,000,000 on 25 November 2008
with a coupon rate of 8.5%, and tenure

of 7 years. Interest on debenture is
payable on semi annual basis.

Redemption Fund as of 16 July 2011
stands at NPR 150,000,000.

NRB circular allows appropriation of
fund for the purpose of Debenture
Redemption during the last five years
of maturity. However as a prudent
banking practice, Laxmi Bank has
decided to appropriate NPR 50,000,000
each year until the maturity of the
Debenture starting from the first
year. Laxmi Bank has established
a Debenture Redemption Fund by
appropriating NPR 50,000,000 during
this year also, in line with previous year
practice, from the Profit appropriation
account to repay the Debenture
in 7 years period. Total Debenture

27. Cash Dividend and Bonus
Shares
The board has decided to distribute
5 % Bonus share (net of tax) and
10.79% cash dividend (10% net
after TDS on both Bonus and Cash
dividend) to shareholders out of
profit of current year subject to
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank
and Annual General Meeting. Cash
dividend is shown as proposed
dividend (NPR 174,098,862) in the
Balance Sheet and Bonus share
(NPR 80,676,025) is disclosed under
schedule 4.1.

STATEMENT OF LOANS AND ADVANCES OF PROMOTERS/
PROMOTER GROUP BY PLEDGING THE SHARES IN THEIR
OWNERSHIP IN OTHER BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS		
As at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)

Schedule 4.34

Shareholding
Loan Details
S.No Name of Promoter/ 						
		 Shareholders under
Total No
% ofTotal
Name of the Lending		
No of	Remarks	
		 Promoter Group	
of shares	
Paid up	
Bank and Financial	Loan	
Shares		
				Capital	Institutions	
Amount	
Pledged
1

Satya Narayan Manadhar

34,185

0.21%

Siddhartha Bank

1,844,501

2

Narayan Bajaj

15,120

0.09%

Himalayan Bank

358,671

14,400

3

Amit Agrawal

334,530

2.07%

Himalayan Bank

13,234,523

150,000
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COMPARISON OF UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Schedule 4.35
(in NPR)

As of FY 2010/11
As per

As per

		Unaudited

S.N.

Particulars	

Audited

		Financial	Financial
		
1

Total Capital and Liabilities ( 1.1 to 1.7)

1.1

Paid Up Capital

1.2

Reserve & Surplus

Statement	
21,757,378,091

		
Variance
Amount

In %

21,559,891,394 (197,486,697)

-1%

Statement

1,613,520,500

1,694,196,525

676,879,494

419,180,198

80,676,025 		
(257,699,296)

-38%

						
1.3

Debenture & Bond

350,000,000

Reasons for Variance

350,000,000

Proposed Bonus shares
Effect of dividend declared and 		
deferred tax provisions

- 		

1.4

Borrowings

-

-

- 		

1.5

Deposits ( a+b )

18,299,627,620

18,299,627,620

- 		

a) Domestic Currency

16,945,031,578

16,947,475,388

- 		

b) Foreign Currency

1,354,596,042

1,352,152,232

- 		

Income Tax Liability

-

4,678,074

4,678,074 		

Tax liability shown under other

						

liability in Unaudited financials

1.6
1.7

Other Liabilities (including Bills payable,
dividend payable etc)

817,350,477

792,208,976

(25,141,501)

-3%

						
2

Total Assets (2.1 to 2.7 )

2.1

Cash & Bank Balance

2.2

Money at call and Short Notice

2.3

Investments

2.4

Loan & Advances

2.5

Fixed Assets

2.6

Non Banking Assets (net)

21,757,378,091
2,774,592,316

21,559,891,393 (197,486,699)
2,774,592,316

-1%

(0)		

50,000,000

50,000,000

3,051,608,798

3,041,421,767

(10,187,031)

- 		
-0.3%

Net of provision in Audited Financials

15,389,472,436

15,199,847,906

(189,624,530)

-1%

Net of provision in Audited Financials

352,338,244

352,338,243

(0)

0%

-

-

139,366,297

141,691,161

- 		

2.7

Other Assets

3

Profit & Loss Account					

2,324,863

2%

3.1

Interest Income

2,233,332,791

2,233,332,791

- 		

3.2

Interest Expenses

1,503,851,025

1,503,851,025

- 		

A. Net Interest Income ( 3.1-3.2 )

729,481,766

729,481,766

- 		

3.3

Fees, Commission & Discount

67,795,886

67,795,886

- 		

3.4

Other Operating Income

69,514,877

69,514,877

- 		

3.5

Foreign Exchange Gain & Loss
B. Total Operating Income ( A+3.3+3.4+3.5 )

63,127,874

63,127,874

929,920,403

929,920,403

- 		

3.6

Staff Expenses

157,662,248

157,662,248

- 		

Other Operating Expenses

169,294,370

169,294,370

- 		

602,963,785

602,963,785

-

13,622,293

13,634,832

12,538

0%

589,341,492

589,328,953

(12,538)

0%

	C. Operating Profit before Provisions ( B -3.6-3.7 )
Provision for Possible Losses

	D. Operating Profit ( C- 3.8 )
3.9

Non Operating Income/Expenses ( Net )

873,687

873,687

3.10

Loan Loss Provision Written Back

785,868

798,406

591,001,047

591,001,046

E. Profit from Regular Activities ( D+3.9+3.10 )
3.11

Extraordinary Income/Expenses (Net)

	F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E+3.11 )
3.12

Provision for Staff Bonus

3.13

Provision for Taxes

2,348,347

2,348,347

593,349,394

593,349,393

53,940,854

53,940,854

161,822,556

161,482,469

Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income)

2%

Grouped under Provisions above

(1)		
- 		
(1)
(0)		
(340,087)

0%

-

2,780,975

2,780,975 		

377,585,986

375,145,095

(2,440,891)		

98

Grouped under write back below

- 		
12,538

						
G. Net Profit/ Loss ( F-3.12-3.13 )

Regrouping of provisions

-

3.7
3.8

Regrouping of provisions and
proposed dividend

Tax calculation as per Income tax
act in Audited Financials
Deferred tax calculated
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Schedule 4.A

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS (QUARTERLY)				

(in NPR)

As at 4th Quarter (16/7/2011) of the Fiscal Year 2010/11
S.N.

Particulars	

This Quarter

		
		

Previous

Corresponding

Ending	Quarter Ending	

Previous Year

32 Ashad 2068

30 Chaitra 2067	Quarter Ending
32 Ashad 2067

		
		

1

Total Capital and Liabilities ( 1.1 to 1.7)

16-Jul-11

13-Apr-11

16-Jul-10

21,757,378

20,670,345

21,138,732
1,613,521

1.1

Paid Up Capital

1,613,521

1,613,521

1.2

Reserve & Surplus

676,879

579,650

509,042

1.3

Debenture & Bond

350,000

350,000

350,000

1.4

Borrowings

-

-

100,000

1.5

Deposits ( a+b )

18,299,628

17,569,702

18,082,958

a) Domestic Currency

16,945,032

15,932,227

15,951,633

b) Foreign Currency

1,354,596

1,637,475

2,131,325

1.6

Income Tax Liability

-

-

2,802

1.7

Other Liabilities

817,350

557,471

480,411

21,757,378

20,670,345

21,138,732

2,774,592

1,837,973

1,840,704

50,000

-

904,377

3,051,609

2,617,429

3,197,093

Loan & Advances

15,389,472

15,657,320

14,736,405

a. Real Estate Loan

3,466,141

3,559,915

3,664,733

484,859

495,295

318,477

1,405,028

1,403,944

1,751,985

2

Total Assets (2.1 to 2.7 )

2.1

Cash & Bank Balance

2.2

Money at call and Short Notice

2.3

Investments

2.4

(i) Residential Real Estate
(ii) Business Complex & Residential Apart.Construction Loan
(iii) Income generating Commercial Complexes Loan

754,089

632,952

743,935

(iv) Other Real Estate Loan

822,164

1,027,725

850,335

b. Personal Home Loan of Rs 80 lacs or less

577,184

607,516

539,734

c. Margin Type Loan

149,569

143,761

228,797

d. Term Loan

2,666,342

2,575,305

2,157,336

e. Overdraft Loan/ TR Loan/ WC Loan

6,787,122

7,082,488

6,634,039

f. Others

1,743,115

1,688,334

1,511,765

352,338

331,631

282,349

-

-

-

139,366

225,991

177,804

2.5

Fixed Assets

2.6

Non Banking Assets (net)

2.7

Other Assets
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3

Profit & Loss Account	

Up to This

Up to Last

Up to Corresponding

			Quarter 	Quarter
				
3.1

Interest Income

2,233,333

1,633,685

1,787,693

3.2 Interest Expenses

1,503,851

1,097,530

1,135,610

A. Net Interest Income ( 3.1-3.2 )

729,482

536,156

652,083

3.3

Fees, Commission & Discount

67,796

52,123

46,867

3.4

Other Operating Income

69,515

49,469

60,032

3.5

Foreign Exchange Gain & Loss

63,128

43,236

47,563

929,920

680,983

806,545
122,406

B. Total Operating Income ( A+3.3+3.4+3.5 )
3.6

Staff Expenses

157,662

114,271

3.7

Other Operating Expenses

169,294

112,777

142,169

602,964

453,936

541,970

C. Operating Profit before Provisions ( B -3.6-3.7 )
3.8

Provision for Possible Losses

D. Operating Profit ( C- 3.8 )

13,622

16,860

28,767

589,341

437,075

513,203
1,325

3.9

Non Operating Income/Expenses ( Net )

874

654

3.10

Loan Loss Provision Written Back

786

899

3,645

591,001

438,628

518,173

E. Profit from Regular Activities ( D+3.9+3.10 )
3.11

Extraordinary Income/Expenses (Net)

F. Profit before Bonus and Taxes (E+3.11 )
3.12

Provision for Staff Bonus

3.13

Provision for Taxes

G. Net Profit/ Loss ( F-3.12-3.13 )

2,348

1,933

(4,366)

593,349

440,561

513,807

53,941

40,051

46,710

161,823

120,153

141,441

377,586

280,357

325,656

4	Ratios	

At the End of

At the End of

		

This Quarter

Previous Quarter

Previous Year
14.99%

4.1

Capital Fund to RWA

13.21%

13.23%

4.2

Non Performing Loan (NPL) to Total Loan

0.90%*

0.96%*

0.12%

4.3

Total Loan Loss Provision to Total NPL

136.58%

128.48%

996.13%

4.4

Net Interest Spread (4.6 - 4.7)

4.5

CD ratio (Calculated as per NRB Directives)

100

2.71%

2.84%

2.69%

80.21%

87.09%

82.66%
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at Ashad 32, 2068 (July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
Schedule
This Year
1. Share Capital		
1,694,196,525
2. Reserves and Surplus		
420,591,053
3. Debentures & Bonds
350,000,000
4. Borrowings		
5. Deposit Liabilities		
18,239,490,975
6. Bills Payable		
302,100,039
7. Proposed Cash Dividend		
174,098,862
8. Income Tax Liabilities (net)		
4,168,831
9. Other Liabilities		
316,495,805
			
Total Capital and Liabilities		
21,501,142,090

Previous Year
1,613,520,500
298,662,234
350,000,000
100,000,000
18,082,957,988
5,262,902
209,757,665
2,801,578
289,138,935

ASSETS
Schedule	
1. Cash Balance		
2. Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank		
3. Balance with Banks/Financial Institution		
4. Money at Call and Short Notice		
5. Investment		
6. Loans, Advances and Bills Purchase		
7. Fixed Assets		
8. Non Banking Assets (net)		
9. Other Assets		

This Year
356,669,236
1,866,490,707
556,940,278
50,000,000
2,971,421,767
15,199,847,905
357,546,280
142,225,917

Previous Year
244,205,091
1,219,716,716
376,782,432
904,377,086
3,186,905,894
14,560,109,588
282,349,126
177,655,869

Total Assets		

21,501,142,090

20,952,101,802

Piyush Raj Aryal
Head - Finance & Treasury

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer

Rajendra K. Khetan
Chairman
Bhola Babu Adhikary
C. P. Khetan
G. K. Sikaria
Jiwan Raj Kandel
Ratan Lal Sanghai
Rishi Ram Gautam
Sambhu P Acharya

Date: 16 Nov 2011
Place: Kathmandu

Directors
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20,952,101,802

Shashi Satyal
Proprietor
for Shashi Satyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
Schedule
1. Interest Income		
2. Interest Expenses		
Net Interest Income		
3. Commission and Discount		
4. Other Operating Income		
5. Exchange Income		
Total Operating Income		
6. Staff Expenses		
7. Other Operating Expenses		
8. Exchange Loss		
Operating Profit before provision for Possible Loss		
9. Provision for Possible Losses		
Operating Profit 		
10. Non Operating Income /(Loss)		
11. Loan Loss Provision Written Back		
Profit from Regular Operations		
12. Profit/(Loss) from Extra-Ordinary Activities		
Net Profit after including all Activities		
13. Provision for Staff Bonus		
14. Provision for Income Tax		
* Provision for Current Year’s Tax		
* Provision for Previous Years’ Tax		
* Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income)		

This Year
2,236,877,702
1,502,639,225
734,238,477
67,852,136
69,514,877
63,127,874
934,733,364
158,385,935
171,084,847
605,262,582
13,634,832
591,627,750
873,687
798,406
593,299,843
2,348,347
595,648,190
54,149,835
161,929,162
2,865,487

Previous Year
1,787,692,540
1,135,609,890
652,082,650
46,866,912
60,031,631
47,563,308
806,544,501
122,405,630
142,244,338
541,894,533
28,766,525
513,128,008
1,325,486
3,644,550
518,098,044
(4,366,416)
513,731,628
46,709,703
141,441,317
(1,381,327)

Net Profit/Loss 		

376,703,706

326,961,935

Piyush Raj Aryal
Head - Finance & Treasury

Date: 16 Nov 2011
Place: Kathmandu

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer

Rajendra K. Khetan
Chairman
Bhola Babu Adhikary
C. P. Khetan
G. K. Sikaria
Jiwan Raj Kandel
Ratan Lal Sanghai
Rishi Ram Gautam
Sambhu P Acharya
Directors
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Shashi Satyal
Proprietor
for Shashi Satyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Appropriation Account
For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
Schedule	
This Year
INCOME		
1. Accumulated Profit up to Previous Year		
16,894,378
2. Current Year’s Profit		
376,703,705
3. Exchange Fluctuation Fund		
4. Capital Adjustment Fund transferred		
5. Adjustments in Retained Earnings			
Total		
393,598,083
EXPENSES			
1. Accumulated Loss up to Previous Year		
2. This Year’s Loss		
3. General Reserve		
75,029,019
4. Contingent Reserve		
5. Institutional Development Fund		
6. Dividend Equalization Fund		
7. Staff Related Reserves		
8. Proposed Dividend		
174,098,862
9. Proposed Bonus Shares		
80,676,025
10. Special Reserve Fund		
11. Exchange Fluctuation Fund		
1,716,210
12. Capital Redemption Reserve Fund		
50,000,000
13. Capital Adjustment Fund		
14. Investment Adjustment Reserve		
1,899,530
14. Adjustments:		
Deferred Tax Liability		
Deferred Tax Reserve		
(2,506,495)
Total		
380,913,151
15.Accumulated Profit/(Loss)		
12,684,932

Piyush Raj Aryal
Head - Finance & Treasury

Suman Joshi
Chief Executive Officer

Directors
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21,197,858
326,961,935
192,089
348,351,881
65,407,408
209,757,665
3,370,437
50,000,000
1,540,667
1,381,327
331,457,504
16,894,378

Rajendra K. Khetan
Chairman
Bhola Babu Adhikary
C. P. Khetan
G. K. Sikaria
Jiwan Raj Kandel
Ratan Lal Sanghai
Rishi Ram Gautam
Sambhu P Acharya

Date: 16 Nov 2011
Place: Kathmandu

Previous Year

Shashi Satyal
Proprietor
for Shashi Satyal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the period Shrawan 1, 2067 to Ashad 32, 2068(July 17, 2010 to July 16, 2011)
(in NPR)
Particulars	
(a). Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1. Cash Received
1.1 Interest Income
1.2 Commission and Discount Income
1.3 Income from Foreign Exchange transaction
1.4 Recovery of Loan Written off
1.5 Other Income
2. Cash Payment
2.1 Interest Expenses
2.2 Staff Expenses
2.3 Office Operating Expenses
2.4 Income Tax Paid
2.5 Other Expenses
Cash Flow before changes in Working Capital
(Increase) / Decrease in Current Assets
1.(Increase)/Decrease in Money at Call and Short Notice
2. (Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Investment
3. (Increase)/Decrease in Loans, Advances and Bills Purchase
4. (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
Increase /( Decrease) in Current Liabilities
1. Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits
2. Increase/(Decrease) in Certificates of Deposits
3. Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings
4. Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
(b) Cash Flow from Investment Activities
1. (Increase)/Decrease in Long-term Investment
2. (Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Assets
3. Interest income from Long term Investment
4. Dividend Income
5. Others
(c) Cash Flow from Financing Activities
1. Increase/(Decrease) in Long term Borrowings (Bonds,Debentures etc)
2. Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital & Share Premium
3. Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
4. Increase/(Decrease) in Refinance/facilities received from NRB
(d) Income/Loss from change in exchange rate in Cash & Bank Balance
(e) Current Year’s Cash Flow from All Activities
(f) Opening Balance of Cash and Bank
(g) Closing Balance of Cash and Bank

This Year
1,150,115,110
2,506,163,221
2,292,580,706
79,691,496
63,127,874
807,000
69,956,145
2,000,144,957
1,513,832,927
205,095,639
121,610,418
159,605,973
506,018,264
423,637,900
854,377,086
246,984,127
(653,066,943)
(24,656,370)
220,458,945
216,669,632
(100,000,000)
103,789,313
(150,582,482)
(31,500,000)
(119,082,482)
80,676,025
80,676,025
1,080,208,653
1,840,704,239
2,920,912,892
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Previous Year
(374,970,993)
1,888,043,224
1,728,815,089
48,310,617
47,563,308
3,258,695
60,095,515
1,456,187,297
1,059,788,935
149,001,140
103,756,205
143,641,018
431,855,927
(2,499,278,455)
(498,677,086)
(703,754,733)
(1,280,754,083)
(16,092,553)
1,692,451,536
2,031,654,892
(350,000,000)
10,796,644
(68,742,446)
(68,974,244)
231,799
451,639,954
451,639,954
7,926,516
1,832,777,723
1,840,704,239

Share

Capital

General

Profit/Loss 	Reserve	

Accumulated

Investment

Share	
RESERVE

Fund

Redemption

376,703,705

-

(50,000,000)

-

(1,716,210)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

75,029,019

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,540,667

2,506,495

-

-

Closing Balance at 32 Ashad 2068

1,694,196,525

12,684,932

230,025,003

3,440,197

13,071,581

11,369,339

150,000,000

(0)

2,113,376,723

-

-

-

80,676,025

-

(174,098,862)

(80,676,025)

-

-

376,703,705

-

2,506,495 						

1,899,530 					

- 				

50,000,000 		

- 			

1,716,210 			

- 			

- 			

- 			

- 			

-

1,912,182,735

(2,506,495)

Deferred Tax Reserve 		

(1,899,530)		

100,000,000

- 			

9,653,130

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,071,581

1,912,182,735

Fracional Bonus shares carried over 									

Investment Adjustment Reserve 		

Share Premium 					

Debenture Redemption Fund

80,676,025

(174,098,862)

-

Proposed Dividend

Exchange Fluctuation Fund

Bonus share and Right share collection

(80,676,025)

-

Proposed Bonus Shares

-

-

Capital Adjustment Fund

(75,029,019)

154,995,984

- 							

16,894,378

-

-

1,613,520,500

Transfer to General Reserve

Net profit for the period

Restated Balance

Adjustments in Retained Earnings 		

Total

(in NPR)
Reserve		

Exchange	Debenture	Deferred Tax	

Premium	Fluctuation

RESERVE		

Adjustment

Opening Balance at 1 Shrawan 2067
1,613,520,500
16,894,378
154,995,984
1,540,667
13,071,581
9,653,130 100,000,000
2,506,495
Adjustments 									

				

Particulars

Fiscal Year 2067/68
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 		
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Consolidated Significant Accounting Policies
and Notes to Accounts

i) General Information
a. Reporting Entity
Laxmi Bank Limited ("the Bank") is a
limited liability company domiciled
in Nepal. The address of its registered
office is in Hattisar, Nepal. The Bank has
a primary listing on the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited. The Bank is running a
commercial banking business in Nepal.
b. Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial
statements of the Bank as of 16 July
2011 comprises of the Bank and
its subsidiary. The financial year of
subsidiary is common to that of the
parent company. The subsidiary is
running a merchant banking business
in Nepal after getting license from
SEBON from this fiscal year.
The financial statements were
approved for issue by the Board of
Directors.
ii) Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements
of the group and separate financial
statements of the Bank have been

prepared in accordance with Nepal
Accounting Standards ("NAS") issued
by the Nepal Accounting Standard
Board except otherwise stated,
Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"), Bank & Financial
Institutions Act (BAFIA), presentation
and other requirements of NRB
Directives and in conformity with the
Companies Act.

Standards 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”. In
preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the financial statements
are combined line by line by adding
the like items of assets, liabilities,
equity, income and expenses.
Transaction eliminated on
consolidation: All intra group
transaction and balances, income and
expenses and any unrealized gains/
losses arising from such inter-company
transactions and balances are
eliminated in full while preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

iii) Basis of Consolidation
The group’s financial statements
comprise of consolidation of financial
statements of the Bank and the
subsidiary, Laxmi Capital Market Ltd.
A subsidiary is an entity that is
controlled by another entity (known
as the parent). Control exists when
the bank has the power, directly or
indirectly to govern the financial and
operating policies of and enterprise
from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases.
The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance
with International Accounting

iv) Previous Year's Figures
Previous year's figures are grouped
or regrouped wherever necessary in
order to facilitate comparison.
Notes to Accounts
1. Tax liability reconciliation
Reconciliation of Profit as per financial
statement is reconciled with Taxable
profit to compute tax liability as
follows for the Group and separately
for the Bank:

Notes to Accounts

1. Tax liability reconciliation
Reconciliation of Profit as per financial statement is reconciled with Taxable profit to compute tax liability as follows for the
Group and separately for the Bank:
Amount in NPR ‘000
Bank	

Subsidiary	

Group

Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account
539,408
Add: Adjustments for		
Depreciation as per Schedule 24 considered separately
33,665
Equipment & furniture charged to revenue considered in depreciation
1,745
Leasehold amortization considered in depreciation
10,413
Software amortization considered in depreciation
2,281
Repairs and Maintenance added to the Pool as per Income Tax Act
1,379
Non deductible expenses
Less: Adjustments for		
Depreciation as per Income Tax Act
(50,186)
Profit on sale of fixed assets considered separately
(432)
Dividend income		
Taxable Profit as per Income Tax Act 2058
538,273

Particulars	

2,090
240
60
35
(638)
1,787

541,498
33,905
1,805
10,413
2,281
1,379
35
(50,824)
(432)
540,060

447

161,929

Corporate Income Tax ( 30% for Bank and 25% for Subsidiary)

161,482
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2. Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset)
Carrying amount of Assets & Liabilities where temporary differences arise as on 32 Ashad 2068 (16.07 2011) are as follows:
Amount in NPR
Particulars 	Carrying Amount	
Tax Base	
Net Temporary 	Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset)
			Difference	as at Ashad end 2068 (@ 30% for
				 Bank and @ 25% for Subsidiary)
Bank Fixed Assets
224,759,548
223,844,615
914,933
274,480
Subsidiary Fixed Assets
5,208,037
4,869,991
338,045
84,511
Group
229,967,585
228,714,606
1,252,978
358,991
Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) till Ashad end 2067 – Bank			
Deferred Tax Expense/ (Income) for Current Year – Group			

(2,506,495)
2,865,486

Deferred Tax Liability of the Group as of 32 Ashad 2068 (16 July 2011) is NPR 358,991. NPR 2,865,486 has been recognized as
deferred tax expense in Consolidate Profit and Loss Account in the current year.
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DISCLOSURE AS PER BASEL II
1. Capital structure and capital adequacy
• Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Amount in NPR’000
Particulars	

Amount

Paid up Equity Share Capital
Proposed Bonus Share
Statutory General Reserves
Retained Earnings
Share Premium
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Core Capital

1,613,520
80,676
230,025
11,274
13,072
150,000
2,098,567

• Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components;
Amount in NPR’000

Particulars	

Amount

Subordinated Term Debt (8.5% Laxmi Bank
Debenture, 2072) – (net of Redemption
Reserve of NPR 150 mio)
General loan loss provision
Exchange Equalization Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserves
Supplementary Capital

200,000
152,938
11,369
3,440
367,747

• Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with
information on the outstanding amount, maturity, amount
raised during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as
capital funds.
8.5% Laxmi Bank Debenture, 2072
Outstanding Amount
- Maturity
- Amount raised during the year
- Amount eligible for Tier 2 capital fund
(net of Redemption Reserve)

• Deductions from capital;

NPR 350 Million
24 November 2015
NPR 350 Million
NPR 200 Million

Amount in NPR’000

Particulars	

Amount

Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions
Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
Total

9,740
126,082
447
136,269

• Total qualifying capital;

Amount in NPR’000

Particulars	

Amount

Tier 1 Capital

2,098,567

Tier 2 Capital

367,747

Deductions

(136,269)

Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund)

2,330,045
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• Capital Adequacy Ratio;
- 11.63%
• Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities, if applicable;
The bank’s capital management strategy is designed to maximize shareholders
value. The bank is adequately capitalized not only to comply with individual
capital ratios prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank but also to fund growth of our
assets and operations, absorb potential losses and maintain the confidence of all
the stakeholders.
• Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments,
especially in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital
instruments.
Main features of the Subordinated debt – 8.5% Laxmi Bank Debenture 2072:
Name	Laxmi Bank Debenture – 2072

Amount
Interest Rate
Type
vertible feature
No. of Debentures
Face Value
Maturity Period
Priority to Debenture Holders
Listing

NPR 350,000,000.00 (Three Hundred Fifty Million Only)
8.5% per annum (before tax) payable half yearly
Unsecured and Redeemable at Maturity. No call / con350,000 (Three Hundred and Fifty Thousand Only)
NPR 1,000.00
7 Years
At the time of liquidation, priority of payment to the
debenture holders will be after the depositors
Listed with Nepal Stock Exchange

2. Risk exposures
• Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk;
Amount in NPR’000
Particulars	

Amount

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk
Risk weighted exposures for Operational Risk
Risk weighted exposures for Market Risk
2% Additional RWE under supervisory review
Total Risk Weighted Exposures

18,747,444
868,463
26,101
392,840
20,034,848

• Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk;
Amount in NPR’000
Particulars	

Amount

a) Claims on government & central bank
b) Claims on other official entities
c) Claims on banks
d) Claims on corporate & securities firms
e) Claims on regulatory retail portfolio
f ) Claims secured by residential properties
g) Claims secured by commercial real state
h) Past due claims
i) High risk claims
j) Other assets
k) Off balance sheet items
Total

136,526
862,607
8,890,118
434,425
1,461,907
2,825,028
342,423
617,634
472,219
2,704,557
18,747,444
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• Total Risk Weighted Exposure calculation table;
Amount in NPR’000
Particulars	

Amount

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk
Risk weighted exposures for Operational Risk
Risk weighted exposures for Market Risk
2% Additional RWE under supervisory review
Total Risk Weighted Exposures
Total Capital Fund
Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

18,747,444
868,463
26,101
392,840
20,034,848
2,330,045
11.63%

• Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net) (in NPR ‘000)

o

o

o

o

• Details of additional Loan Loss
Provisions (in NPR ‘000)

Restructured/ Rescheduled Loan
Gross
NPR 112,538
Net
NPR 98,282
Substandard Loan
Gross
NPR 9,925
Net
NPR 7,444
Doubtful Loan
Gross
NPR 3,193
Net
NPR 1,596
Loss Loan
Gross
NPR 13,182
Net
NIL

Additional Loan loss provision		
NPR 678
(Includes loan loss provision in excess
of the regulatory requirement)
• Segregation of Investment portfolio
into Held for trading, Held to maturity
and Available for sale category
Presented in the Financial Statement
schedule 4.12.1, 4.12.2 and 4.12.3
3. Risk Management Function
Risk Management Objectives and
Policies
Laxmi Bank’s objective to risk
management goes beyond mitigation
and control. We believe that our risk
management approach is a Strategic
Differentiator and a key driver for our
sustained and quality growth.

•

NPA ratios

o

Gross NPA to gross advances
0.90%

Our approach to risk managements is
built around:

o

Net NPA to net advances
0.71%

- formal governance processes that is
constantly reviewed and updated

• Movement of Non Performing Assets
Particulars	

Previous Year

		

Amount in NPR’000
Net Addition/

Balance at the

(reduction) during	end of the Year

- top level commitment &
development of risk framework
through close alignment of risk
capabilities to business objectives

		the year

Restructured
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total

101,121
2,125
2,344
13,347
118,937

11,416
7,801
849
(164)
19,902

112,538
9,925
3,194
13,182
138,839

• Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense (in NPR ‘000)
Loan written off
Interest written off

NIL
NIL

• Movements in Loan Loss Provisions and Interest Suspense
Particulars	

Previous Year

		

Loan loss provision
Interest Suspense

176,296
29,252

Addition/ (reduction)

Amount in NPR’000
Balance at the

during the year	end of the Year

13,329
10,862

189,625
40,114
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- ensuring that responsibility for risk
resides at all levels – from the Board
down through all individual employees
- continuous research and
development of new and improved
risk management processes and tools
supported by effective Management
Information Systems
- all businesses are accountable for
managing risk in their own area,
assisted, where appropriate, by
independent risk specialists
- by embedding this approach to
measure and understand key risks to
ensure the viability of all processes and
transactions
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In the past years we have continued to
make significant progress in enhancing
our risk management capabilities
including measuring and monitoring of
risk activities that we undertake in our
normal course of business.

Risk Management Framework
and Organization
The Board sets out the risk appetite
and philosophy for the Bank, which
is supported by various Board /
Management level Executive Committees
who are primarily responsible for
ensuring that the risk standards
are maintained as per the agreed
parameters. The Bank’s Internal Audit
functions independent of management
influence and reports to the Audit
Committee. The Chief Risk Officer has
a role of overviewing risk standards of
the bank and balancing the growing
business of the Bank remaining fully
compliant to the legal and regulatory
guidelines. As part of prudent banking
practices, Laxmi Bank has other senior
executives in the role of risk managers
who work independent of any business
targets. The Credit Risk Department,
Credit Risk Control Unit and Compliance
and Assurance Department are especially
responsible in management of risk in
their respective areas.

Credit Risk
Laxmi Bank - Credit Policy Guide is the
highest level policy document and it
reflects long-term expectations and
represents a key element of uniform,
constructive and risk-aware culture
throughout the Bank. This credit policy
defines acceptable risk parameters and
is periodically reviewed to account for
changing operating environment and
industry behavior.
Laxmi Bank identifies, assesses and
manages the probability of default by
borrowing clients through a number of
proactive risk management techniques

and tools under a broad risk framework.
Board level committee comprising
of non-executive board members
and senior management further
reviews credit portfolio and industry
concentration aspects regularly and
make decisions / strategies based on the
need of the hour.

Credit Approval Process
The Bank has standard procedures
for Credit Approval for both retail and
corporate credit proposals that ensure
that appropriate resources and tools
are employed for the type of credit
assessment required.

Post Disbursal Review and Monitoring
The Bank has standard procedures for
credit review and monitoring systems,
which is documented in Credit Policy
Guide and other Risk Management
Guidelines. The policy stipulates the
frequency and procedures for credit
review and monitoring

Distribution of Risk Assets by Industry
sector / Concentration Risk
It is Laxmi Bank’s policy to ensure that
the Bank’s exposure on any particular
sector/industry does not exceed a
predefined cap of the total portfolio. The
Bank has adopted the NAICS codes to
analyse our exposure on sectors. Industry
analyses help us monitor industries at
risk and make strategic decisions based
on such reviews.

Market Risk
The bank’s foreign exchange risk stems
from foreign exchange position taking
and commercial dealing. All foreign
exchange positions are managed by the
Treasury. Fluctuation in foreign exchange
rates can have a significant impact on
a Bank’s financial position. Laxmi Bank
has adopted measures to appropriately
hedge the risks that arise while carrying
out international trade transactions.
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Code of ethics for treasury dealers is in
place to ensure that professionalism
and confidentiality are maintained and
ethical dealing practices observed. Our
treasury dealers have gained exposure to
international markets as well in addition
to having undergone appropriate
trainings. The Bank has followed the
structure of a Treasury back office
independent of Treasury dealing room
functions.

Operational Risk
Operational risk is inherent in all business
activities. Whilst risks can never be
eliminated, at Laxmi Bank we follow a
number of procedures and practices
like Business Continuity Plan, Whistle
Blowing – A Culture of Speaking Up
to manage and mitigate preserve and
create value of our business.
We manage our operational risks through
standardization of internal processes and
monitoring mechanisms. Data security,
dual control, periodic departmental
reviews are some of the tools that are
used to manage risks.

Compliance and Assurance /
Operations Risk Unit
Recognizing the importance of
Operations Risk in terms of managing
day-to-day business, we have a full
fledged compliance and assurance team
that reports to Chief Risk Officer.
• Types of eligible credit risk mitigants
used and the benefits availed under CRM.
o Credit risk mitigants used are deposits
and cash margin held with own bank
and deposits held with other banks and
financial institutions.
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We believe that the most meaningful
contribution we can make to our society
is by being good at we do – Banking.
In addition to meeting investor and
customer expectations, we deliver our
services in a prudent, professional and
responsible manner that provides long
term and sustainable benefits to all
stakeholders.
Laxmi Bank’s Responsible Banking
initiatives cover 5 broad areas:

Responsible Lending
Our lending decisions are based on
cash flow and financial performance
of the borrower. We ensure that loan
products and structures are based on
the borrower’s needs and conform to
prudent banking norms. We disclose
upfront the terms and conditions of a
loan and the financial and non-financial
obligations so that our customer fully
aware of the implications of borrowing –
legal and otherwise.
As a result we have and will lose some
business to competitors in the current
“overbanked” economy, but will remain
steadfast in maintaining our ethical and
professional standards.

Financial Inclusion
Approximately 3% of our loans finance
micro enterprises either through
intermediaries or directly to the end
consumers. We are committed to
reaching out to the under-banked
segment of the society through different
ways and this commitment is reflected
in our intention to create a microfinance
subsidiary that will drive this initiative
more effectively.
Empowering women entrepreneurs
continues to be a strong driver for our
Small Business Banking program. We
offer specialized banking solutions
and financial advisory services to these
entrepreneurs and feel privileged to have
been a part of the several success stories.
Our Workforce Remittance services
provides a safe, convenient and cost
efficient way for money to reach the
hands of beneficiaries in the cities and
villages across the country. This has
also helped the traditionally un-banked
segment of the population gain access
to various other banking services such
as savings accounts, home loans and
insurance.

Service Excellence
Enhancing customer experience across
all our channels, products and services is
a top priority for us. Our customers are
provided with full access to information
on a product or service they are
buying from us in order to help
financial
inclusion
them make informed decisions that
will ultimately affect their finances.

responsible
lending

electronic
banking

communication

customer
service

A senior level position has been created
to assess, and implement initiatives
aimed to improve our service quality
with the help of Service Excellence Group
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comprising of members from different
service delivery units.
All executives and managers are
responsible for evaluating, monitoring
and improving customer service
standards as part of their job descriptions
and performance objectives.

Electronic Banking
Electronic Banking makes banking safe,
convenient, cost effective and green
(eco-friendly).
Since our inception in 2002 we have
pioneered and promoted the use of
electronic service delivery channels in
the country. We take the responsibility
of being the thought leaders in
electronic banking very seriously and
are committed to working with all
stakeholders to enhance its scope and
dimension. We have taken a number
of steps to educate the consumers
and encourage them to adopt these
channels so that they enjoy the benefits
from progresses made in the field of
communication and technology.

Communication
At Laxmi Bank, communication with
our stakeholders is an important part
of our Responsible Banking initiative.
Customers who make informed decisions
are empowered and can contribute
to the overall financial health of the
economy. Through the years we have
made partnered with a number of
publications to disseminate information
and advises related to personal finances,
small businesses and career planning We
will continue to work with like-minded
partners to improve the awareness
level of the consumers on banking and
financial matters.
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sustainable skills such as candle making,
knitting, etc. These products are then
sold in the market and the funds realized
are utilized for meeting the operational
expenses of the center.
In addition to the ongoing activities,
the center is currently working on
rehabilitating the visually impaired back
into the society.

Laxmi Cares
“Laxmi Cares” is a registered NGO
managed by the employees of Laxmi
Bank.
The primary objective of Laxmi Cares
is to actively contribute to the social
development of the communities in
which we operate and in so doing, build a
better and a sustainable way of life for the
underprivileged sections of the society.
To achieve this vision, Laxmi Cares
promotes social responsibility initiatives
focused on areas such as:
• One account. One tree.
• Education
• Ujyalo Abhiyaan
• Empowering the local community
Laxmi Cares raises funds through a
number of events throughout the year
and supports various causes from the
proceeds. Laxmi Cares accounts are
audited and available for review by all
members of the NGO.
A brief description of the events
conducted by Laxmi Cares in 2010/11:

One account, one tree.
They say the best time to plant a tree was
20 years ago. The next best time is now.

Ujyalo Abhiyaan
‘Ujyalo Abhiyaan’ is an ambitious social
project undertaken by Laxmi Cares. Under
this campaign, Laxmi Cares seeks to
partner with various corporate houses to
install solar street lamps in public places.

As a token of our appreciation to our
clients towards their contribution to a
greener planet, Laxmi Cares plants a tree
for every Green Savings account opened
at Laxmi Bank.
Empowering the disabled and the
physically challenged
Laxmi Cares has partnered with Patan
CBR since 2010 to provide funds to run
the center. Patan CBR is home to 50
mentally disabled children. Under their
care, these children are provided food,
shelter and much needed physiotherapy
by staffs and volunteers free of cost.
The inhabitants are also taught self
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During the year, the funds raised from
the 3rd Annual Laxmi Cares Mountain
Bike Rally have been utilized to install
solar lights at the Police Station, Mangal
Bazaar, Three Star Office Building and
in and around Patan Durbar Square. In
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total, 8 units of home system lights and 8
street lamps have been already installed.
The project cost for the next 5 years
including the regular maintenance costs
will be borne by Laxmi Cares. Thereafter,
the project will be handed over to the
local community.
Other immediate future projects
include lighting up the Bagmati Bridge,
Thapathali. Laxmi Cares has already
initiated talks with the concerned
authorities and implementing partners
to carry this forward.

Empowering the local community: street art
Laxmi Cares partnered with Artudio and
The Image Park, a group of young artists
to paint over the political slogans that
are prevalent on the walls on the streets
of Kathmandu and Pokhara. While Laxmi
Care provided the painting materials to
the artists, the artists volunteered their
time to paint over the walls.
So far, the Himalaya Hotel wall at
Kupondole, Department of Forestry wall,
Tri-Chandra College walls have all been
painted over under the themes ‘positive
art and environment’. During the year,
Laxmi Cares was been invited by the
British Embassy to partner with them in
their painting competition organized
on facebook. The three best artists from
this competition then painted the British
Embassy walls at Lainchour with the
theme ‘promoting sports’ in line with the
London Olympics 2012.

Visually impaired students currently face
difficulties due to the lack of text books
in Braille scripts. The project aimed at
recording the lessons in CDs which in turn
decreased their dependency and gave them
an equal and quick access to the lessons
taught in schools, at par with other students.
Along with audio books, the project
also provided the students with other
accessories such as headphones, MP3

Audio Book Project: Seeing the
world through their ears
On September 23, the courtyard of Patan
Museum grooved to the beat of rap,
reggae and rock music to raise funds,
and create audio books for the visually
impaired. During the event, Laxmi Cares
joined hands with Bijay Dewan and
Sagar Prasain, the men behind the much
acclaimed Audio Book Project.
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players etc. Yogeshwor Amatya, Tsujil
Karmacharya, Himalayan Bob, Albatross
and Lyric Indy performed at the event
to entertain and raise an awareness
regarding the topic. The event also
hosted slam poets Ujjwala Maharjan,
Gaurav Subba and Yanki Shrestha of
Lyrics Indy who entertained the audience
with their poetry that spoke about
Kathmandu and finding inspiration in
little things.

ANNUAL REPORT

2010 | 11

Traditional
weds
Modern

Head Office
Laxmi Complex, Hattisar
Tel : 01 4444684/685
Fax : 01 4444640/743

BRANCHES

SWIFT : LXBLNPKA

KATHMANDU Valley
Bhatbhateni
Tel : 01 4442075/094/095
Fax : 01 4442110

Ekantakuna
Tel : 01 5000532
Fax : 01 5000541

Hattisar
Tel : 01 4444684/685
Fax : 01 4444640/743

Birgunj

Itahari

Adharsha Nagar
Tel : 051 526195, 530394, 530823
Fax : 051 530393

Ithahari Chowk West Line, Sunsari
Tel : 025 587021
Fax : 025 587022

Bhanu Path 2, Ilam
Tel : 027 521793

Biratnagar

Bhanu Chowk, Danusha
Tel : 041 527496
Fax : 041 527497

Lagankhel

Main Road, Morang
Tel : 021 538401, 538402
Fax : 021 538403

Tel : 01 5548375/376
Fax : 01 5548377

Butwal

Maharajgunj
Tel : 01 4016002/088
Fax : 01 4016019

Ilam

Banepa
Arniko Highway West, Kavre
Tel : 011 663425, 663426
Fax : 011 663427

Janakpur 

Khadichaur
Mankha 6, Sindhupalchowk
Tel : 011 482158
Fax : 011 482159

Amar Path, Rupandehi
Tel : 071 551569, 551570
Fax : 071 551571

Narayanghat

Birtamod

Tel : 01 4785306/307/308
Fax : 01 4785309

Anarmani-3, Jhapa
Tel : 023 544615
Fax : 023 544616

Shahid Chowk, Chitwan
Tel : 056 571726, 571973
Fax : 056 571026

New Road

Bhairahawa

Surket Road, Banke
Tel : 081 527901/902, 527692
Fax : 081 527903

New Baneswor

Tel : 01 4233309/310
Fax : 01 4233307

Pulchowk Branch
Tel : 01 5553545, 5552931
Fax : 01 5553974

Sukedhara
Tel : 01 4372850, 4372921
Fax : 01 4444640, 4444743

Teku
Tel : 01 4232501/502
Fax : 01 4232503

Mahankal, Boudha
Tel : 01 4485806
Fax : 01 4485805

Nepalgunj

Aawha Road, Rupandehi
Tel : 071 523461/2
Fax : 071 523421

Pokhara

Charikot

Bhimeshwor 1, Satdobato, Dolakha
Tel : 049 421914
Fax : 049 421915

Damak
Damak Bazar, Mahendra Highway, Jhapa
Tel : 023 585207
Fax : 023 585527

Dharan
Putali Line 9, Sunsari
Tel : 025 533906, 533907
Fax : 025 533908

New Road, Kaski 188
Tel : 061 533580, 540153
Fax : 061 525514
Pokhara Industrial Estate, Kaski
Tel : 061 541783, 522878

Parsa
Khairahani 4, Chitwan
Tel : 056 583597
Fax : 056 583598

Taulihawa
Jamuwar 3, Kapilvastu
Tel : 076 561146
Fax : 076 561147

Hile
Hile 1, Dhankuta
Tel : 026 540580
Fax : 026 540581
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Laxmi Bank is a young and forward looking Bank that
represents ‘traditional weds modern’; our values and
ethics are as strong as Nepal’s culture and tradition.
Our roots keep us grounded and our values bind us
with our stakeholders. Since our inception in 2002
we have dared to be different - adopting new ideas,
processes and technologies - helping Nepali banking
industry evolve along the way. In this journey of 10
years, we take pride in having established ourselves as
a responsible bank.
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